
City Council 

City of Jacksonville Beach 

Agenda 

11 North Third Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Council Chambers 7:00 PM Monday, June 5, 2017 

MEMORANDUM TO: 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

Council Members: 

The following Agenda of Business has been prepared for consideration and action at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council. 

CALL TO ORDER 

OPENING CEREMONIES: INVOCATION, FOLLOWED BY SALUTE TO THE FLAG 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. 17-086 City Council Briefing Held May 15, 2017 

b. 17-087 Regular City Council Meeting Held May 15, 2017 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

CITY CLERK 

CITY MANAGER 

a. 17-088 Appointment of Member to the Board of Adjustment 

b. 17-089 Appointment of Members and Alternates to the Planning Commission 

Page 1 City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 5/25/2017 



 
June 5, 2017 City Council Agenda 

c. 17-090 Appointment of Two Members to the Community Redevelopment Agency 

d. 17-091 Adopt Special Events Policy 

e. 17-092 Approve an Amendment to the Commercial Lease Agreement with Four 
Brothers of Jacksonville, Inc., for a Temporary Reduction to the Monthly 
Lease Rate 

f. 17-094 Approval of Bid No. 1617-11 - Electric Supplies - 12 Months Requirements 

RESOLUTIONS 

ORDINANCES 

a. 17-095 ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8082 (Second Reading) 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 18 "NOISE", OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, 
FLORIDA, AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 18, THAT 
INCLUDES SECTION 18-7 "LOW VOLUME OUTDOOR AMPLIFIED AND 
ACOUSTIC SOUND", PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

b. 17-096 ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8088 (Second Reading) 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; AMENDING CHAPTER 5, 
"ANIMALS AND FOWL," ARTICLE III. - DOGS AND CATS, DIVISION 1. - IN 
GENERAL, SECTION 5-24 "DANGEROUS DOGS," SECTION 5-24.1 
"ATTACK OR BITE BY DANGEROUS DOG."; AMENDING TO APPEAL TO 
THE CIRCUIT COURT AND NOT COUNTY COURT, PROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

c. 17-097 ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8089 (Second Reading) 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8070, SUPPLEMENTING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING REGULATIONS AND PLAN FOR THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY.  (This 
amends the currently approved RD ordinance governing the property at the 
northwest corner of 1st Street North and 6th Avenue North by  

Page 2  City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 5/25/2017 



 
June 5, 2017 City Council Agenda 

increasing the number of hotel rooms and by providing a revised site plan 
and building elevation drawing) 

ADJOURNMENT 

NOTICE 

In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person desirous of appealing any decision reached at this 
meeting may need a record of the proceedings. Such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  
 
The public is encouraged to speak on issues on this Agenda that concern them.  Anyone who wishes to speak should 
submit the request to the City Clerk or to the recording secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting.  These forms 
are available at the entrance of the City Council Chambers for your convenience. 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (904) 
247-6299, extension 10, no later than one business day before the meeting. 

Page 3  City of Jacksonville Beach Printed on 5/25/2017 



 
Minutes of City Council Briefing 

Monday, May 15, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Council Chamber Conference Room, 1st Floor 

11 North 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

 
CC Briefing 170515 min Page 1 of 4 

 
The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M. 
 
The following City Council Members attended: 
 
Mayor: William C. Latham 
 
Council Members: Lee Buck                      Keith Doherty                  Christine Hoffman 
 Bruce Thomason          Phil Vogelsang                 Jeanell Wilson  
 
Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Public Works Director Ty Edwards, Planning and 
Development Director Bill Mann, and Assistant City Clerk Catherine Ponson 
 
Purpose of Briefing 
 
The purpose of the briefing is to update the Council Members on projects and discuss the 
Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan. 
 
City Manager  
 
Public Works - 
 
Mr. Forbes stated that an application is required to lease the bandwidth for the new water meter reading 
program that uses radio communications. Ty Edwards, Public Works Director, explained the application 
requires the Council Members to verify citizenship and any ownership interests in an entity regulated by 
the FCC. 
 
Dune Restoration - 
 
Mr. Forbes announced that at the dune renourishment update meeting held on Thursday, May 11, 2017, 
it was reported that the contract between the Army Corps of Engineers and the Great Lakes Dredge and 
Dock Company would be signed on Friday, May 12, 2017. This contract is for the additional dune 
restoration work. The City of Jacksonville will be putting out RFPs for the trucks to place the sand in 
the correct places. This work will not begin until June 2017.  
 
Board Appointments - 
 
Mr. Forbes informed the Council that Board appointments would be on the June 5, 2017, meeting agenda. 
He advised there were two appointments to be made to the Planning Commission, two appointments to 
be made to the Community Redevelopment Agency, and one appointment to the Board of Adjustment. 
 
Shade Meeting - 
 
City Attorney Susan Erdelyi stated that there needed to be a shade meeting held to discuss litigation 
strategy and expenditures regarding the current lawsuit between the City of Jacksonville Beach and Las 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 
CC Briefing 170515 min Page 2 of 4 

Olas Development, LLC. It was decided that the shade meeting would be held before the City Council 
meeting on June 5, 2017, at 5:00 P.M. in the City Hall Boardroom on the 2nd Floor. 
 
Live Streaming - 
 
Mr. Forbes announced that live streaming of the Council meetings has begun on YouTube.  
 
Four Brothers Lease - 
 
Mr. Forbes advised the Council that the Four Brothers Incorporated of Jacksonville lease at the Golf 
Course would be on the June 5, 2017, agenda. Four Brothers operates the restaurant at the Golf Course. 
 
Outdoor Seating – 
 
Mr. Forbes reported that if the Low Volume Noise Ordinance is adopted, he will go to the Planning 
Commission to change the Ordinance to allow outdoor seating as a permitted use rather than a 
conditional use for establishments that are 200 square feet or less in area. 
 
Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan Update 
 
Bill Mann, Planning and Development Director, updated the Council on the progress of the Downtown 
Action Plan. He stated the first phase of the contract with Dix.Hite+Partners, which was to produce the 
Implementation and Management Plan of the Downtown Action Plan is about 90% complete He added 
that while the City is still under the contract for Phase 1, there are several items that could be looked at 
and moved to Phase 2. Engineering drawings and permittable plans would be included in Phase 2 of the 
project. 
 
Mr. Mann and the Council reviewed the Statement of Probable Costs. He stated he was looking for 
guidance while breaking out the different components and potential steps forward.   
 
Pier Entry - 
  
The Council reviewed the overall Pier Entry concept design. The design depicts a large lifeguard chair 
at the entrance of the pier. It was also discussed that an archway feature had been designed for the Pier 
Entry, and it was shown on the wayfinding and signage illustrations. 
 
Mr. Vogelsang stated that the chair could be utilized as a potential archway. Mr. Mann explained that 
could be decided at the preconstruction design phase.  
 
Mr. Doherty suggested continuing using the surfboard theme.  
 
Mr. Mann stated that based upon Council feedback, the City would ask for an additional design concept 
to be produced for the Pier Entry area to have something to compare the first design with. He added 
Phase 1 would remain open for the additional work for the Pier Entry component.  
 
 
 
 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 
CC Briefing 170515 min Page 3 of 4 

Wayfinding and Signage - 
 
Mr. Mann stated that the wayfinding signage component using the surf-related theme would be moved 
to Phase 2 with Council approval. 
 
Site Furnishings - 
 
Site furnishings, which include some type of low wall seating surrounding existing Palm tree planter 
areas and free-standing cast stone benches, would be forwarded to Phase 2 of the project. 
 
Bicycle Parking - 
 
The new bicycle rack locations were discussed. Mr. Mann stated that in the high-volume areas, basic 
bicycle racks would be used. In other areas, there would be more artistic bicycle racks installed. This 
component would be moved to Phase 2. 
 
Proposed Lighting Plan - 
 
Mr. Vogelsang inquired about more lighting on the Boardwalk, which would encourage more people to 
utilize it. Mr. Mann suggested installing a single railing along the Oceanfront to give protection to the 
ground-level lighting that is contemplated. The lighting plan would be forwarded to Phase 2. 
 
Public Art -  
 
Mr. Mann stated that Dix.Hite has identified opportunities and locations for the display of public art. 
Existing blank wall spaces, the roundabout at 2nd Avenue and the Pier Entryway are all areas that could 
be used. It was agreed to move forward the Public Art component to Phase 2. 
 
Branding -  
 
Mr. Mann explained that the logos were presented at the workshop held on December 5, 2016. One 
depicted the City’s lifeguard chair and said “Relax in Jax” which seemed to promote the City of 
Jacksonville. The “Jax Beach” logo appeared to be well-received. Mr. Vogelsang suggested using 
surfboards as opposed to the lifeguard chair. Ms. Wilson commented that the lifeguard chair is a symbol 
of Jacksonville Beach.  Mr. Mann stated he would seek additional concepts from Dix.Hite under the 
current Phase 1 work effort. 
 
Latham Plaza  - 
 
Mr. Mann reminded the Council that this design was a result of public input as well as Council input. 
Dix.Hite came up with the redesign of the plaza to maximum attraction and appeal to families while still 
maintaining flexibility for large events. 
 
Mr. Thomason asked what problem were they trying to solve as he supports Latham Plaza as it is 
designed now. Mr. Mann answered that the plaza is underutilized. He further stated that he felt the 
terraced seating at the south end of the Seawalk Pavilion lawn would be a good alternative to the portable 
bleachers regularly brought in. Mr. Mann added that the idea of putting a high-volume bike parking area 
behind the terraced seating area was a good idea. 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 
CC Briefing 170515 min Page 4 of 4 

 
Greg Bryla, with Dix.Hite+Partners, stated that there are many components to the redesign of Latham 
Plaza. He explained that the plaza is closed off from everything that is around it. He added that it was 
redesigned to improve access from the edges. Mr. Bryla commented that use of the plaza is now limited 
by the way it is cut up with pavers.The redesign is for flexibility of use in the middle, and was requested 
by citizens wanting something to do. 
 
Mr. Forbes suggested this design be looked at further before moving to Phase 2. 
 
The briefing adjourned at 6:48 P.M. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Catherine Ponson                                    
                         Assistant City Clerk 
 
 

Approval: 
 
   

 William C. Latham, Mayor 
      

   
Date:    



         

 
 

CC 170515 mins  Page 1 of 11 
 

 
 
 
Minutes of Regular City Council Meeting 
held Monday, May 15, 2017, at 7:00 P.M.  
in the Council Chambers, 11 North 3rd Street, 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
 
OPENING CEREMONIES: 
Council Member Wilson gave the invocation, followed by the salute to the flag. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Mayor Latham called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL: 

Mayor: William C. Latham   
    

Council Members: Lee Buck Keith Doherty Christine Hoffman  
 Bruce Thomason Phil Vogelsang Jeanell Wilson 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, City Clerk Laurie Scott, and Assistant City Clerk 
Catherine Ponson 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
It was moved by Ms. Wilson, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, and passed unanimously, to approve the 
following minutes: 

• City Council Briefing held May 1, 2017 
• Regular City Council Meeting held May 1, 2017 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
City Attorney, Susan Erdelyi announced a Shade Meeting pursuant to Florida State Statute 286.011 
for the City Council to discuss and give advice on the case of Las Olas Development, LLC versus 
the City of Jacksonville Beach.  The Shade Meeting would be held on June 5th, 2017, at 5:00 P.M. 
before the Regular City Council Meeting. 

Council Member Doherty commented he would like to explore the possibility of having our 
Municipality on the Supervisor of Elections automated candidate financial reporting system. 
 
COURTESY OF THE FLOOR TO VISITORS 

Speakers: 

•   Jan Bailey, 25 29th Avenue South, Jacksonville Beach, reported several “No Parking” 
signs were missing along Ocean Drive South between 28th and 29th Avenue, between 
29th and 30th Avenue, and at the large beach access at the end of 30th Avenue South 
and would like to see them replaced. 

•   Susan Taylor, 603 15th Street North, Jacksonville Beach, spoke concerning the filing 
requirements of the IRS Form 990 with the Special Events permit application.   



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 2 of 11 
 

Additionally, she advocated for Council Members Hoffman, Doherty and Vogelsang 
to recuse themselves from any decision-making policies regarding special events due 
to their associations with special events in the past, and possible future events.  

Council Member Vogelsang responded to Ms. Taylor’s statements regarding the 
submission of the IRS Form 990 with the Special Events applications. He stated at the 
Council Briefing held on May 1, 2017, they spoke in favor of organizations submitting 
their IRS Form 990 with the Special Events application. During the briefing, Council 
Members asked for clarification in regards to specifically which corporate documents 
would need to be submitted along with the event application. 

•  Rick Knight, 827 8th Avenue North, Jacksonville Beach, discussed the future branding 
of the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

•  James Sorrell, 1410 Pinewood Road, Jacksonville Beach, recognized the City Council, 
City Attorney, Susan Erdelyi, and City Staff on the preparation and training provided 
to the members of the Board of Adjustment and is looking forward to similar training 
being provided to the other City Boards. 

•  [Stephen Wilson, 1031 1st Street South, #802, Jacksonville Beach, submitted a speaker 
card. However, he did not come forward when his name was announced]. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 

(a)       Item #17-076 Presentation by Florida League of Mayors and Florida League of 
Cities to Fletcher Middle School Student Avery Wingate, Second Place Winner in 
the "If I Were Mayor" Essay Contest 
 
Avery Wingate, a seventh grader at Fletcher Middle School, was the second place 
winner of the "If I Were Elected Mayor" essay contest open to all seventh graders in 
the State of Florida, sponsored by the Florida League of Cities and the Florida League 
of Mayors. Mayor Latham read his award-winning essay. Linda Briggs, Director, 
Association Services, Florida League of Cities presented a Resolution recognizing 
Avery Wingate as the second place winner along with a $50 gift card. 
 

(b)       Item #17-077 Presentation by Denise Bunnewith with North Florida TPO on the 
North Florida Transportation Improvement Program 
 
Denise Bunnewith gave a presentation of the Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) for the City of Jacksonville Beach for FY 2017/18-2021/22. 

 
Mayor Latham asked when the J. Turner Butler and I-95 interface would be completed.  
FDOT representative, Jim Green, stated based on the available information; the project 
would be completed this summer. 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 3 of 11 
 

CITY CLERK 
CITY MANAGER 

(a) Item #17-078, Accept the Monthly Financial Reports for the Month of April 2017 

Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to accept the 
financial reports for the month of April 2017, as submitted by the Chief 
Financial Officer. 

Roll call vote: Ayes –  Buck, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, and         
Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
(b) Item #17-079, Approve a Commercial Lease Agreement with Coastal 

Improvement Corporation for Property at the Industrial Park 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to Authorize 
the City Manager and Mayor to execute a lease with Coastal Improvement 
Corporation for property at the Jacksonville Beach Industrial Park. 

 
Mr. Forbes explained the Tenant would like to lease 13,210 square feet of vacant land 
at the Industrial Park as a laydown area, possible covered storage, and a mobile office 
trailer.  The proposed use is acceptable under Sec. 34-346 Industrial District: I-1 
zoning.  Total monthly rent would be $1,188.90 
 
He discussed the key provisions of this lease, which are as follows: 
 

• The lease is for a period of five years. Either party may terminate the lease after 
12 months by providing 90 days advanced written notice. 

• Use of the land is solely for storage of inventory and equipment and a mobile 
office trailer. 

•    The lease rate will increase by 4% each year.  The Tenant is also responsible 
for ad valorem and property taxes. 

• The Tenant shall be responsible for maintaining and keeping the property in 
good condition and repair throughout the term of the lease. 

• The Tenant shall provide privacy fence fabric around the leased space before 
storing inventory and equipment. 

 
Ms. Wilson asked for confirmation that the Tenant would have only one mobile office 
on the property. Mr. Forbes stated, it might be a single or doublewide trailer – but there 
would only be one structure used as a business office. 

Ms. Wilson asked if the Tenant would be responsible for the Florida 7% Sales and Use 
Tax.  Mr.  Forbes explained the Lease requires the Tenant to pay all legal taxes of any 
nature. 

Roll call vote: Ayes –  Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, and 
Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 4 of 11 
 

(c) Item #17-080, Approve the Design of a Master Plan for the Golf Course 
 
Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to approve the 

design of a master plan for the Golf Course as described in the memorandum 
from Jason Phitides, the Interim Parks and Recreation Director dated May 
6th, 2017.  

 
Mr. Forbes reported the objective would be to improve the playability of the course and 
to identify options for expanding its use as a recreational facility for the entire 
community.  The plan would identify cost-effective changes that could be implemented 
over a number of years.  Options that may be considered in the master plan are: 

 
•    Repositioning certain tees, greens, and bunkers to address safety issues and 

improve playability for all ages and skill levels. 
•    Restructuring certain holes to create space to add a putting course. 
•    Enlarge the driving range and increase the number of stations. 
•    Add recreation functions such as trails for jogging or walking, etc. 
•    Including additional activities such as glow golf, or foot golf to utilize the 

course during non-peak hours and evenings. 
 

Harrison Minchew, in association with Applied Technology Management (one of the 
City's continuing services engineering contractors), who provided the design and bid 
specifications for greens 2 and 5 in the previous project, has proposed a fee of $17,500 
to design a master plan. The design would contain proposed changes overlaid onto an 
aerial photo/map and include specifications, timeline, and projected costs, etc. for each 
component of the master plan. He is a local golf course architect who has been 
designing golf courses since 1982. He has designed and constructed courses all over 
the world and was Arnold Palmer's lead architect for many years.  Mr. Minchew 
elaborated on the options that may be considered in the master plan. He stated that the 
golf course is a diamond in the rough and said that the PGA may be willing to help. 

 
Mr. Forbes asked Mr. Minchew to return when his master plans are 50% complete to 
permit Council Members to provide their input.   
 
Mr. Forbes stated the funding of $17,500 to design a master plan, would come from the 
General Capital Projects Fund for the golf course. In response to Ms. Wilson’s question 
about funding for future golf course construction projects, Mr. Forbes stated the 
funding would come from the General Capital Projects Fund, and they are actively 
building the reserve funds in preparation for future construction.  
 
Roll call vote: Ayes –  Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Doherty, and 

Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

(d) Item #17-081, Approve the Expenditure from the General Capital Projects Fund 
for Geographic Information Systems Services Related to the Enterprise Resource 
Planning System 
 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 5 of 11 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to approve the 
expenditure of $134,610 from the Capital Projects Fund, ERP reserve, for 
Geographic Information Systems services provided by Power Engineers, 
Inc. pursuant to the Consulting Agreement dated December 15, 2016. 

 
Mr. Forbes reported the City is in the process of implementing the first stage of a new 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, which includes software to run our 
financial, personnel, payroll and utility billing functions. 
 
All the leading vendors who provide municipal asset management software utilize 
maps with a Geographic Information System (GIS) as a primary data source that 
supports many of the software’s core functions.  A key element of the City’s asset 
management system would be its ability to utilize and integrate with the GIS software. 
 
In order to upgrade our GIS and prepare for full implementation of a new asset 
management system, we must migrate some of our existing data related to streets, 
water, stormwater, and sewer infrastructure to combine all GIS data into one 
centralized system. 
 
The City entered into an agreement with Power Engineers on December 15, 2016, for 
consulting and migration services to assist us with the upgrade of our GIS. The 
agreement includes a general scope of services  
 
The initial estimated cost of the project was $68,400, based upon a GIS ERP Readiness 
Review performed by IT Nexus in February 2016. Since that time, Power Engineers 
has performed extensive analysis and developed a detailed scope of work, resulting in 
a revised budget of $134,610. Funding is available for this project in the Capital 
Projects Fund, reserve for ERP. 
 
Roll call vote: Ayes –   Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Doherty, Hoffman and   

Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
Item #17-082, RESOLUTION NO. 1982-2017 
 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Resolution No. 1982-2017, by title 
only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following:  

“A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 
POSITION CLASSIFICATION AND PAY PLAN FOR MANAGERIAL, 
PROFESSIONAL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND UNCLASSIFIED (NONUNION) 
CITY POSITIONS, EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 2017.” 
 
 

Motion:  It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1982-2017, Amending the Classification and Pay Plan for 
Managerial, Professional, Administrative and Unclassified (Nonunion) City 
Positions, effective May 1, 2017. 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 6 of 11 
 

Mr. Forbes reported this resolution would amend the Pay Plan for lifeguards, adopt a 
car allowance for the police chief and add a Purchasing Administrator position.  
 
Over the past few years, the City has seen the number of applicants for beach patrol 
positions trending lower from one year to the next. For many years, the City routinely 
recruited over 80 lifeguards for the season. Last year the number dropped to 60. This 
trend became a matter of concern this year when at the beginning of April, the City had 
only recruited 40 lifeguards. 
 
Recruitment of lifeguards is an issue throughout the country. Currently, there  is  a 
National shortage of lifeguards. One of the major reasons cited is the low interest in 
certification training, which can be costly and time-consuming. The City’s requirement 
that lifeguards complete a twelve week training program with the Corps is an added 
factor. The typical age range of a lifeguard is age 15 to college, and given many 
students' education and sports commitments; they cannot be counted on to work full 
shifts. 
 
To address this problem, the City reviewed the hourly rate it currently pays its 
lifeguards, the training required to become a lifeguard and the possibility of providing 
an incentive for a lifeguard to work full shifts throughout the season. 
 
Based on this review, the City is recommending the following: 

 
• Amend the Pay Plan hourly rates for lifeguards, rescue swimmers, and beach 

patrol lieutenant positions, and the pay grade for the ocean rescue supervisor to 
make them competitive with neighboring communities.  

• Amend the Pay Plan to provide additional pay for lifeguards and rescue 
swimmers who work a minimum of 300 hours between the months of May and 
September. 

• Shorten the training program to become a lifeguard for the City from twelve 
weeks to eight weeks. 

 
Mr. Doherty inquired whether the recruits are paid while they go through the training 
program.  Mr. Forbes stated they reduced the training weeks from 12 to 8 weeks to help 
streamline the process.  However, they do not receive pay for their training. 

Mr. Forbes stated when the Pay Plan was approved on December 19, 2016; the Police 
Chief position was inadvertently omitted from the positions eligible for a car allowance. 
The Pay Plan is being amended to include the Police Chief position as an eligible 
position for a car allowance. 
 
Mr. Forbes explained the Purchasing Administrator position was previously removed 
from the Pay Plan on March 1, 2015, due to the reorganization of the Property and 
Procurement Division at that time. It is being recommended that this position is 
reinstated in the Pay Plan to allow for the possible restructuring of the division in the 
future. The reinstatement of this position does not increase the number of authorized 
positions or add any additional cost to the division. 
 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 7 of 11 
 

Roll call vote: Ayes – Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason,   and 
Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 

ORDINANCES:  

(a) Item # 17-083, ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8088, First Reading 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2017-8088  
 (First Reading), by title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; AMENDING CHAPTER 5, 
"ANIMALS AND FOWL," ARTICLE III. - DOGS AND CATS, DIVISION 1. - IN 
GENERAL, SECTION 5-24 "DANGEROUS DOGS," SECTION 5-24.1 
"ATTACK OR BITE BY DANGEROUS DOG."; AMENDING TO APPEAL TO 
THE CIRCUIT COURT AND NOT COUNTY COURT, PROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.” 
 
Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt City 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 amending specified sections of Chapter 5, 
Section 5-24, “Dangerous dogs” and Section 5-24.1 “Attack or bite by 
dangerous dog.” 

 
Mr. Forbes stated that Section 5-24 of the City’s Code of Ordinances specifies the time 
allowed to the owner of a dog that has been declared dangerous to appeal the 
classification to a court.  The current ordinance allows 10 business days to file an 
appeal.  In 2016, state law was modified to now allow a person to utilize the Florida 
Rules of Appellate Procedure when filing an appeal.  These rules allow 30 days.  In 
addition, the appellant must file their appeal with the Circuit Court and not the County 
Court. Additionally, changes were made to assure that the sections comply with the 
Florida State Statutes that govern dangerous dogs issues and to remove the ability of 
the dog owner to submit written statements in lieu of attendance at the hearing. This 
change was made to assure due process at special magistrate hearings and to give 
interested parties the ability to cross-examine dog owners. 
 
Roll call vote: Ayes – Wilson, Buck, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang,  and 

Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

(b) Item # 17-084, ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8082, First Reading 

Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2016-8082  
 (First Reading), by title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 18 "NOISE", 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA, AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 18, THAT 
INCLUDES SECTION 18-7 "LOW VOLUME OUTDOOR AMPLIFIED AND 
ACOUSTIC SOUND", PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 8 of 11 
 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.” 

  
Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt 

Ordinance 2016-8082, which repeals the existing Chapter 18 Noise in its 
entirety, and replaces it with a new chapter on noise that includes a section 
on Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permits. 

 
Mr. Forbes reported the Downtown Action Plan directed staff to research and present 
an ordinance that would allow establishments that provide outdoor dining to play music 
at low volume.  
 
The result is the new section of the Code of Ordinances, Section 18-7, “Low Volume 
Outdoor and Acoustic Sound.” This allows for outdoor dining with background sound 
played at low volume. This is a pilot project that expires on June 5, 2018, unless re-
adopted by the City Council. 
 
Low volume is defined in the ordinance as “sound played at a level such that a person 
outside of the property line of the source of the sound, speaking in a normal tone of 
voice, is plainly audible and can be heard clearly and understandably by another person 
standing a maximum of thirty-six inches (36”) away from the person speaking, without 
the aid of a listening device.” 

 
Section 18-7(4)(i) would allow the current 16 businesses permitted under the 2002 
Outdoor Sound Amplification Permit ordinance to be “grandfathered,” to operate under 
that portion of the ordinance.  However, any change in the ownership, name, or location 
of the business would immediately terminate their grandfathered permit.  They could 
only obtain a new outdoor sound permit under the new low volume sound standards 
(18-7(g)).  Violations of the ordinance would go before the Special Magistrate for a 
hearing. 
 
Speaker: 
 

• James Sorrell, 1410 Pinewood Road, Jacksonville Beach stated he felt that it is 
premature to bring this before City Council and suggested bringing this back to 
the City Council when the projects downtown were completed. He expressed 
his concerns that there may be a need for additional law enforcement efforts to 
get compliance with the ordinance. 

 
Mr. Vogelsang recommended the following changes to be made to Ordinances: 
 

• Section 18-5(a)(2), page 9, move the term “Reasonable Time” to Section 18-
3(a) – Definitions.  

• Section 18-7(b)(4)(g), page 14, to remove the phrase ”the following day.”  
 

Amended Motion: It was moved by Mr. Vogelsang, seconded by Ms. Hoffman, and 
passed unanimously to remove the phrase ”the following day.” 
from Page 14, Section 18-7(b)(4)(g). 

 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 9 of 11 
 

 
Mr. Forbes advised the recommendation to move the term “Reasonable Time” to 
Section 18-3 “Definitions” would be reviewed by the City Attorney. 
 
Roll call vote: Ayes – Buck, Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, 
(original motion)            and  Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

(c)  Item # 17-085, ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8089, First Reading (Public Hearing) 
 
Mayor Latham requested that the City Clerk read Ordinance No. 2017-8089  

 (First Reading), by title only, whereupon Ms. Scott read the following: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8070, SUPPLEMENTING THE COMPREHENSIVE 
ZONING REGULATIONS AND PLAN FOR THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY. (This amends the currently approved RD ordinance 
governing the property at the northwest corner of 1st Street North and 6th Avenue North 
by increasing the number of hotel rooms and by providing a revised site plan and 
building elevation drawing)” 
 
 Mayor Latham read the following into the record:  
 
“This ordinance for the Redevelopment District: RD rezoning of a property is before 
this Council for a public hearing and consideration on its first reading. Under the laws 
of the State of Florida, an application to amend the zoning regulations or map governing 
a property is handled as a ‘quasi-judicial’ proceeding. A quasi-judicial proceeding 
means that a governing body is now functioning in a manner similar to a court with the 
Mayor and Council sitting as impartial decision makers hearing testimony and 
questioning presenters, who are to provide substantial and competent evidence to 
support their side of the issue. It is the duty of the Council to arrive at sound decisions 
regarding the use of property within the City. This includes receiving citizen input 
regarding the proposed use on the neighborhood, especially where the input is fact-
based and not a simple expression of opinion. 
 
It is the applicant’s burden to demonstrate that his or her application is consistent with 
the Land Development Code and the Comprehensive Plan. If the applicant is successful 
in showing consistency, then it is up to the local government to produce competent, 
substantial evidence of record that the application should be denied. The Council’s 
decision on a rezoning application is based on the criteria set forth in Section 34-211 
of the Land Development Code. Each member of the Council has been provided a copy 
of the criteria. 
 

In addition, the Council has received a copy of the application and the staff, Planning 
Commission, and Community Redevelopment Agency recommendations on this 
rezoning request.” 

 
 Mayor Latham opened the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2017-8089 at 8:47 P.M. 

 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 10 of 11 
 

Mayor Latham asked if the applicant or the applicant’s spokesperson would like to  
make a presentation: 
 
Scott Gay, representing Dolphin Depot, LLC, 814 North First Street, #101,  Jacksonville 
Beach, spoke on the revised site plan and elevation drawings. He reported that he took 
the original site plans to their builders, conducted a hotel study and determined the plans 
needed to be refined.  He discussed the changes made to the site plans to include 
reducing driveway curb cuts on 7th Avenue North from 2 to 1 and moved the 6th Avenue 
North portion of the building to be more compliant with the City’s Vision Plan. The 
plans reflect increasing the hotel rooms from 36 to 57 and increasing the parking spaces 
from 164 to 193.  He noted they also reduced the size of hotel rooms to approximately 
450-550 square feet.  
 
Mayor Latham asked the City Clerk if any speaker cards were received on this matter.   
She responded by stating none had been received. 

 
Mayor Latham closed the public hearing at 8:52 P.M. 

 
Ex parte communications: 

 
Mayor Latham read the following statement: 

 
“Before requesting a motion on this ordinance, beginning with myself, each of the 
members is requested to indicate for the record both the names of persons and the 
substance of any ex parte communications regarding this application. An ex parte 
communication refers to any meeting or discussion with a person or citizen who may 
have an interest in this decision, which occurred outside of the public hearing process.” 

 
Mayor Latham asked Council Members if they received any Ex Parte Communications 
in this matter.  
 
No Ex Parte Communications were received by the Mayor or Council Members.                      

  
Motion: It was moved by Ms. Wilson and seconded by Ms. Hoffman, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2017-8089, to amend Redevelopment District: RD Ordinance 
No. 2016-8070 governing the property located on the northwest corner of 1st 
Street North and 6th Avenue North. 

 
Mayor Latham read the following statement: 
 
“Before opening the floor for discussion or questions by the Council, please be 
reminded that our decision will be based on the criteria set forth in the Land 
Development Code, and the Council is required to approve a clear statement of specific 
findings of fact stating the basis upon which such facts were determined and the 
decision was made.” 

 
Mr. Vogelsang asked Mr. Gay did the previous plans have two retail spaces or has it 
always been just one? Mr. Gay responded by stating there is a 2,500 square-foot area 



 
 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
Monday, May 15, 2017 
 

 CC 170515 mins                                                                                                                                               Page 11 of 11 
 

of retail space located in the Apartment Lobby on the corner of 1st Street North and 6th 
Avenue North. 

 
Mr. Thomason noted several scrivener’s errors in the Ordinance. Mr. Forbes stated 
they would be corrected by the second reading of the Ordinance. 

 
Roll call vote: Ayes – Doherty, Hoffman, Thomason, Vogelsang, Wilson, Buck,  and   

Mayor Latham. The motion carried unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:55 P.M. 
 

 
Submitted by:  Laurie Scott   

               City Clerk                                      
 

 
 
Approval: 

 
_________________________ 
William C. Latham, Mayor 
 
 
Date: _____________________ 



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6299 

Fax: 904.247.6256 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

May 20, 2017 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Appointment to Board of Adjustment 

Action requested: 
Appointment of member to the Board of Adjustment. 

Background: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

The term of Sylvia Osewalt will expire on August 6th, 2017. Ms. Osewalt was 
initially appointed to the Board of Adjustment as a 2nd Alternate on July 19, 2010. 
On January 18, 2011 , she was reappointed for a new two-year term. She was 
appointed on February 20, 2012, as a 151 Alternate. She was appointed as a 
Regular member on July 15, 2013. Ms. Osewalt has requested that Council 
consider her for reappointment to the Board of Adjustment. 

The following candidates have been interviewed by City Council members: Gary 
Cater, William Dopf, and Lucas Snyder. Their applications are attached for your 
review. 

Recommendation: 
Nominate Sylvia Osewalt for reappointment to the Board of Adjustment for a four
year term expiring on December 31 , 2020. 

/LS 
Attachments 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3n1 Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: g,
1
1 Vi r1- W Q5t:'wlh- T Home Phone: (9oc;J.;Jf</-7t.s-J 

Home Address: .:.:3::,..__pe_ l7_£:_=__:bc;_'n?..:__w_1~1f'--_.J7'r __ c_t.._ ;<5_,,...;fto!_v__:, :....f l....::€;...._.t-~..;::e__:t?_e/...;,~J.-L..f-l-....;;..3_J-..;;.a-....;;ai>:__ ______ _ 

E-Mail Address: .Sen,ors,· t be /isoc.J 'i--A. µE, Cell Phone: (J Pcj) ? ,}..3- "'Y-1 t,, 

Occupation: · GT I R.G'J, Ft:?")) . f!o J T /)-:; t\J ~ -Business Phone: --------

Business Name: ----------------- ------------- ----

Business Address: ----------- - - - - ------------ ---- ---

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 
Have you filed bankruptcy? 

~ 

~ 
Yes 
Yes 

r!3J 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 
No 

j 

If yes, length of time:----- --

If yes, what County: ----------- -
If yes, address: _ _ _____ _____ .;._ 

If yes, Office name: ---------- - 
If yes, position: ---..-------- - -
If yes, Board Name: .6)A£b ~ /i5-1> .. Jv:, T IJ7 t;AI r 
If yes, provide date: - - - - - ------
If yes, provide date: - - ------ - ---
If yes, provide date: _ _ _ _ _ __ _ 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged In the managemenVowners~f any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes (Ng) 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards (Pklase lndicata your p,mnnce.s by ranking · denote your Primary choir:. with a "1", Seco/1dary choice with• "2". 

11 I I Board of Adjustment -~ _____ _ 

i j Communit~ Redevelo ment ency 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: ...,l::;..:...i .:..,~l.f,_~:....:.=..:.:.....;:___~:__~-=-- ~~~..!.II.L·~=..::.:...T;...m.:.:(?Jl//:.:.....;1_ 

Qualifications (Briefly descn'be specific expertise, abilities. or qualificat/ons)J!/<A,L{.- ~ · )... 6-,v '/IL fl.A'. tJ a 4' µ ~,...,_,R. 

-:i-ll2.A,o ~ ~ (!~;:{, pl rzr-e~. r t' 

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of 2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials . Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r American Indian/Alaskan 

Caucasian 

r Hispanic 

r Not Kno'M'l 

Gender 

}'(Female 

r Male 

Physically Disabled 

r ves 
~No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person.ft Your application 
when filed will become a.public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any ?ppointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision ( except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form • 
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application, I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Appl1cat1ons are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their appl1cat1on submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council cons1 ers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct. and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date 

Pleas~ do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: - -----------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: ----------------

Appointed to: ------------------- 

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards- 2016 

Date: 

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page2 of 2 



,4-un . 28 . 2016 01:44 PM 

City of Jacbonvlllt 8tach 
Offlc• of the City Clerk 
11 North 3,.. Strttt 
Jacbonvfllt leach, Ftorlda 322SO 

I 

~~·:i·~ . 
~~~? . 

··~ -

PAGE. 1/ 2 

Appllc::atton for Appointment to City Boards 

Pt[l9otl lOfS!tmatlon (Pfee,e prtnt or ty,,.) 

2 

City Clerk 

Bu11n ... Name: ------------------------------

BualnlH Addre": -----------------------------

~ucatbmtv - PftHt ¢1rc1, 
Are you a rtaid'ent of the Ctty7 
Are you a registered voter? 
Oo you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Ar$ YQlJ currentJy seMng on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of Q felony? 
Have your civil rlghte been rtatored? 
Hav• Y(JIJ ftled b1nkl\lptcy? 

Yet 
v .. 
v .. 
v .. 
¥•• 

If yes, length of time: -'"....i...c=::......,~......_-
tf yea. what County: ~~~......._--,,__ ___ _ 
If yee, addr8$1i: __ • __ -o_o_ .......... =.....,""""'-......... ,__ __ _ 

If yea, Office name: --------~
If yes, poaltlon: ------------
If yea, Board Nema: _., _ ____ _ 
tt yes, provide dale: ---------
If yea, provide date: ---------
If yes. provide date:-------

Potential Confllet of lntar1tt: Heve you ever been engaged In the management/owner~any business 
enterprise that hM .a flnanclal Interest with the City of J$Cktorwllle. Beaeh? Yu ~ 

If yea, please provide details: 

El ~lanntng Commlulon 
J!!.'l,ron TN_1t .... • .... •------------' 

Quiflfla\len• (Srieffy de,c,ti,. n,,,df!c --~patt/a11,· abllffles, or quftl'11ceilons}~------------------

Board Application with Deaorlptlon of Boarda - 2010 



.~U~-~8-~Ulo 01:45 PM PAGE. 2/ 2 
" 

Application for Appolnbr'lent to City Boards (,ont) 

§latt B.!HrllrJa B.t9Ylrtmtnts 
Section 7$).80, Fforlda Statute$, requires that the Cl~ annually ,s,,bmit a report. to the Se(:retary of State d~do$1nU 
race, gender. and physical disabilities of board membol'$ and elected officials. Please circle the approprlato 
responses. 

Ba 
rArr~ 
r- Asi8'l'Paeif,o lsander 

- ·-~;·.=;.;,::.., 

(r ·caucasian_:> 
, ....... ,.,_ ... _..---i,·--·- · 

r-Hspranic 

r Aroorican lndfa~Alaakan Natiw r Not Koov.n 

i!DM! 
f'"'f~ 

c ~.t~~;.:~~-.) 

fboJctUX.Almtti'. 
rvea (··.-r~-~~-:.:: .. .. ) 

Aortda'& Public R~ LBW, Ct'.apter 119, Florida StalutM, •C,.fff: •tt ts tfl& r,ol,cy of ·this slaw the\' -,1 state, 
county, and municipal recorde ahan et all times ba open for a personal inspection by any pel'9onl Your eppllcatiOn 
when filed will become a pvbllc record and subjeot to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a . 
bOard of any potftlcal subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members Of bodlea exercising · 
planning o, 20,1fng. ar$ r0<1uit'ed :to ffet a financlal diacmtn form (Form1) ~ 30 days attet ~ntrn$ll tlftd. 
ti"Mualt.f.lh«twiflat. f<rr .~ d~ i:lf·'dw; a~,ttt>i~~ ·• l'~11•d trJ·~ · l t?, ~ ~ . 

I understand that If I am appointed to one of th& City's boards, f wlll be required to flle a financial disclosure form .. 
Form 1, as deSCt"ibed. above, and I am willing to comply with this requlrem.ent. 

I understand that any falae. Incomplete. or misleading Information given by ma on 1he a,pplicatlon Is iufticlent caUM 
r<>rret0<'.tiM (J{fft~ ~!lon. l ·t~. anct ~ ttatMy $ijtf\ flilf~ •. ~ . or .m~dit)9 ~lation . 
dlacovered on ttila applleatiOn at any time aft&r appotnfrt'\ent k; a tio&rd may reeun trt my retnQVal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated aerv.lces. Addltlonally, If appointed 1 

I am able to attend meetings and otherwis.e fulfill the duties of t~e office. 

ApplfoatlQns ere submitted IQ the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective. for twa y&ars from <hlte of 
c.ornpJetion. 

By submitting this form, I declere the foregoing facts to be tru~. /Jo t, and complete. Addltlonally I hereby 
authortze a criminal background check. LJ / / .,,..._J._ ... 

1 t · z.r -1t ~~ ~ 
Date Appllcant's,lgnature ' 

··\:.: ·.'·.':,·:··.:· _· : · .... ,.:_.:r:.:~<\·.-;,;::,.: : 'F., :?:''.:>,?:- ·. ,;<)~..-..,~'.rl(i,·-..~ ~:stllfiL&•'·:·:· ·.r:·· -:t , .. · :··:,·:: _ .. ; .. , .. ·~:'':: ... .... ... i/t:.:··:'-·· ·.·:·· .···· fl 

Oate applic:41t1on received.: - -------------

Interviewed on: ---------------- -

Eligible for si,pc,lnth'lent Ytt No If not ellglbie tor appointment 

Explanation~ ----------------

Appointed to: ------- ------------

Appolnt$d to: - ----------------

Appointed to: --------- - ---------

Board Applloatlon with Description of Boards - 2018 

Date: - ---------

Date: --~-- -----

Date: ---------

Page 2of 2 



: City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 

11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Application for Appointment to City Boards Received 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

II IN 'J 7 ?nm 

Name: \I.) \LUl',u... )>~~ Home Phone: Jacksonville 13e:ich City ($1t,'i! I 
- ~- ~ SJ L i 

HomeAddress: q2 2..'l~ ~~~ ';;>CM.,~ ~~So~\j \\i~ ~~ EL-. ') 

E-Mail Address: w~f°62..-'1µ.i:i, \, c.o.L::\ Cell Phone: <=to!J-~o~- n:s~ • 
Occupation: ~4\*rl: &.e;,e~h~\- t:-ee, Business Phone: 

~ 

Business Name: ~,~alY.~~t-) ~ L-LC. 

Business Address: 92 2.0\!i 4\..Q ~. ::S fle~"'o eis~~'.U! ~Ao~ 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? (y;;) No If yes, length of time: ------------
Are you a registered voter? ~ No If yes, what County: ------------
Do you own property in the City? @i) No If yes, address: --------------
Do you hold a public office? Yes JNo

0 

If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes If yes, position: --------------
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes If yes, Board Name: ------------
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes No If yes, provide date: ------------
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes <:,rc;) If yes, provide date:--------
Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owner~.P.iij-e( any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~ 

If yes, please provide details: --------------------------------

City Boards Please indicate your preferences by ranking· denote your Primary choice with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

'Z, Plannin Commission 
Communit Redevelopment Agenc Pension Trustee 

-
Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: _Z._;:o;;_;u=-\.,__,~=·-=· e,__--'ly'""A....:;~=-=..:.,.t,.;.::..;>-:...;lCD:::::...._,.,____C:=-i\w·""-~-"~:::;;·,,._~..,,u,.,,...__~=-<.:..=,c.:.l_'-_ 

t~ · ~ 

~ 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 Page 1 of 2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses. 

Race 

~asian 

1 Hispanic 

1 Not Known 

Gender 

1 Female 

fv'1v1aie 

Physically Disabled 

1Yes r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander ~ 
r American Indian/Alaskan Native 

11 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form 1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from 
date of completion. -

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be tr4,1 .1... correct, and omplete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. \-

b t23fie:. _____ u _______ _ 
\ Applicant's s~ natl V Date 

j 

Please do not write below-:- Staff use 

Date application received : ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------
Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

11 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed .to: --------'--------------....c.... 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of2 



William B Dopf 
92 291h A venue South 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
32250 
904 208 1135 
wbdopl'@g111ail.com 
rcsinink@gmail .com 

Career Objective 

To utilize highly effective marketing, operations and management skills developed over a long corporate 
industrial and private consulting career. To help organizations grow in a strategic and sustainable way. 

2005-PRESENT 
RESINSOLUTIONS LLC 

1980-2005 

PRESIDENT 
Formed a consultant practice working with former clients in the industrial chemical 
business. Successfully guided their manufacturing and procurement groups toward 
in-depth understanding of strategic issues with respect to their sourcing decisions. 
Significant realignment of suppliers and an enhanced approach to long term strategic 
procurement was achieved. Savings were in the 7-figure range. Current activities are 
in support of Respol Resinas S.A., Leiria, Portugal and Forchem Oy, Rauma, Finland. 

MEADWESTV ACO CORPORATION 
A fortune 500 paper, packaging and chemicals business 

2000-2005 

1996-2000 

1993-1996 

1990-1993 

Vice President Chemical Division 
General Manager of worldwide pine chemical business. Managed two seperate tall oil 
refinery sites and associated derivative production facilities including product 
development, sales, purchasing, research and customer service for a $200+ million 
business employing 400 professional and plant personnel. Along with management team, 
developed business into the premier supplier in the industry. By utilizing a well 
publicized strategy we drove quality, innovation, and response to new industry standards . 
The group became one of Meadwestvaco's highest ROI business units. 

General Manager-Oleochemicals Department 
P&L responsibility for Department sales and operations worldwide. Managed sales, 
product development, and manufacturing for $120 million business including multiple 
sites employing 200 professional and plant employees. Increased department 
profitability 80% by focusing on proper pricing strategies and cost control. 

General Manager-Europe 
Created plan for European expansion including organization of a Swiss subsidiary to 
minimize tax impact on all European operations. 
Developed marketing strategy and spearheaded sales to penetrate new markets and 
geography. We were able to build a base of business to justify installation of a new 
manufacturing facility. 
Supervised engineering ·of manufacturing facilities, and submitted phase II engineering 
work on time and within budget. 

Marketing Manager 
Successfully developed and implemented aggressive plans for expanding technology to 
multiple continents. 



1987-1990 

1985-1987 

1980-1985 

Built a field sales force and customer service group that achieved a 400% increase in 
sales. Supervised sales, customer service and commercial development of 130 products 
for three different segments of the printing ink industry. 
Achieved dominant position in major markets of 65% and 35%, from 25% and 5%, 
respectively. 

Sales Manager 
Directed sales force which consistently achieved the highest level of sales dollars and 
profitability within the Chemical Division. 

Ink Industry Manager 
Hired a direct field sales force to replace reps and distributors. Successfully 
implemented plan to access new markets. Transitioned newly acquired business into the 
parent sales system while converting the entire customer base to new manufacturing 
location. Growth of the business exceeded 100%. 

Technical Sales Representative 
Traveled North America for three different departments within the Westvaco Chemical 
Division. Covered a variety of territories and product lines with increasing levels of 
responsibility. 

Education 

Colorado State University 
MBA Marketing and Finance 1979 
B.S. Bioscience 1976 

Marquette University, College of Engineering 1972-73 
Awarded U.S. Naval Reserve Officer Training Scholarship 

Professional Development Programs 

Harvard University The Program On Negotiating For Senior Executives 
University of Virginia The Darden School Leadership 
U of Pennsylvania Wharton School Commercial Development and Corporate Venturing 

Westvaco Corp Marketing Professional Development Program 
The Westvaco Supervisor 
Managing Organizational Objectives 
Empowered Leadership Program 

Forum Managing a Strategically Aligned Sales Force 

Professional Associations 

Pine Chemicals Association 
Member of Board of Directors - Chairman 

National Association of Printing Ink Manufacturers 
T.A.M . Board Member, General Board Member 

Community in Schools South Carolina Chapter 
Board Member 

1/2014 

2 



" 
City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

"-,,-<·, ' I • ' V ~ , .. 
'..j 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Board 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

R c )I\Jtl•r 
MAY .. 1 ZO~$ 

Name: Lucas N. Snyder _______________ _ Home Phone: 407-529-4084 ___ _ 

Home Address: 414 101h ST S Jacksonville Beach, FL. 32250 -------------------
1: -Mai I Address: lucas.snyder2@gmail.com ________ _ FAX: 

Business: Business Phone: 

Business Address: 

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? X Yes No If yes, length of time: 6 years 
Are you a registered voter? X Yes No If yes, what County: Duval 
Do you own property in the City? X Yes No If yes, address: 414101hStS, 1821 Tanglewood Rd._ 
Do you hold a public office? Yes X No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes X No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes X No If yes, Board Name: 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes x No 
If yes, please provide details : 

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking· denote your first choice with a "1 ", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

2 3 Plannin Commission 
1 

Please list City meetings you have attended: City Council : Oct 13, 2015, Feb 15, 2016, March 7th 
Board of Adjustments : July 21, 2015, November 3, 2015, ---------------------

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications) ____________________ _ 

Involvement in multiple community service events/locations including The Carver Center, Boys and Girls Club of Jacksonville Beach, ARC Surf Camps 

for underprivileged youth. Donner Park in Atlantic Beach, 

Education: University of North Florida, 12/2007 

Bachelor of Science, Communications/Public Relations ------------------

age o 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

African-American 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 

x Caucasian 
Hispanic 
Not Known 

Gender 

Female 
x Male 

Physically Disabled 

Yes 
x No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

05/2/2016 Lucas N . Snyder _________________ _ 

Date Applicant's Signature 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received : ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: 

Date: 

II 

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Date: -----------

Date: 

Page 2 of3 



'. , ~ucas s nyder 

Summary 

414 10th ST S, Jacksonville Beach FL 32250 
Cell: ( 407) 529-4084 - lucas.snyder2@gmail.co 

Extensive knowledge of administration procedures, management of other workers and conflict resolution. Excels in creative problem 
solving through focused communication and leadership. Dedicated and goal oriented for the purpose of seeing vision become a 
reality. 

Education 
Bachelor of Science : Communications/ Public Relations, 2007 
University of North Florida - Jacksonville, FL, USA 
Cumulative GPA 3.2 

UNF Senior Service Award Winner 

Experience 

League Coordinator 
August 2007 to Current 

i9 Sports/ Jacksonville - Jacksonville, FL 
Responsibilities included overseeing the development and operation of all youth sports programs, execution of local marketing plans 
establishing community relationships, sourcing of volunteers , staffing of sports officials , managing daily inquiries, maintaining 
website, ensuring the highest level of customer satisfaction. 
The program consists of 2,000 + annual participants and generates annual revenue of $500,000 +. 

2006 and 2007 Franchise of the Year 
2008 and 2009 MVP Club Award Winner 
2015 Highest Customer Satisfaction Award Winner 

Dean of Students 
August 2010 to Current 
Beaches Chapel School - Jacksonville , FL 
Responsibilities include establishing policies and procedures through collaborative input that deal directly with student behavior, 
conducting training of faculty/staff in regards to appropriate classroom decorum, reviews and revises disciplinary aspects of the 
student handbook, maintains detailed records and student behavior profiles, assists in developing strategic plans to improve student 
behavior. 
School consists of 200+ students 
F.L.O.C.S Accredited School 

College Basketball Official 
October 2010 to Current 
Women's College Basketball Official - Southeast United States 
Responsibilities include managing all aspects of a basketball game, working closely with fellow referees to foster a team atmosphere 
dealing strategically within conflict resolution, an advanced ability to manage people in a highly stressful situation , making decisions 
in a quick and decisive manner, subjecting yourself to immediate evaluation of the decisions that you make. 

Assistant Director 
August 2004 to August 2006 
Osprey Productions- University of North Florida - Jacksonville, FL 

Responsibilities included overseeing a student programming board which was directly tasked with planning large scale concerts , 
homecoming, movie nights and other weekly events . Administrative responsibilities included managing finances , soliciting communiti 
partners and graphic design of promotional materials. 
Annual budget $2.5 million 
Serving 17,000+ students 

Organizational Involvement 
Children's Miracle Network, Girls Inc of Jacksonville, Life Rolls on Foundation and Christian Surfers United States 

References 
References are available upon request 



Board Aoolicants Listing 

Board Applicant Choice Ranking 
Term 

Recommended Interview Date 
Expiration 

BOA Osewalt Sylvia Re-appointment 8/6/2017 5/15/2017 

Cater Gary 1 y 1/18/2017 

Dopf William 1 y 7/1 8/2016 

Snyder Lucas 2 y 5/4/2016 

CRA Nichols Cory Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/3/2017 

Povloski Frances Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/17/2017 

Cater Gary 2 y 
1/18/2017 

Hall, Jr.* Samuel 1 y 1/18/2017 

Langham Samuel 1 y 5/5/2016 

Lee Jason 2 y 4/12/2016 

Lerman Justin 1 y 5/5/2016 

McCann Michael 1 y 
6/20/2016 

McGowan Jon 1 y 1/17/2017 

Stevens Bill 1 4/3/2017 

PC Dummont Georgette Re-appointment 6/30/2017 4/3/2017 
Declined 

DeLoach Terry Re-appointment 6/30/2017 

did not return our calls - will 
Chantry Michael 2 remove name from consideration 

Dopf William 2 y 7/18/2016 

Hall, Jr. Samuel 2 y 1/18/2017 

Lee Jason 1 y 4/12/2016 

McGowan Jon 2 y 1/18/2017 

Reid William 2 y Not interested at this time 

Snyder Lucas 1 y 5/4/2016 
r!,g uested to change 
his choice section 
from BOA# ! to 

CRA # I rev 5/19/2017 



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6299 

Fax: 904.247.6256 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: May 20, 2017 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

FROM: Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

RE: Appointments to Planning Commission 

Action requested: 

Appointment of members and alternates to the Planning Commission. 

Background: 

The terms of two members of the Planning Commission will expire on June 30, 
2017. 

• The term of Planning Commission member Georgette Dumont will expire 
on June 30, 2017. Ms. Dumont was initially appointed to the Planning 
Commission as a 2nd Alternate on March 4, 2013. On June 20, 2013, she 
was appointed as a Regular member. Ms. Dumont has requested that 
Council consider her for reappointment to the Planning Commission with 
her term expiring December 31st, 2020. 

• The term of Planning Commission member Terry Deloach will also expire 
on June 30, 2017. He has declined re-appointment. 

• Britton Sanders has been serving on the Planning Commission as 1st 
Alternate since February 6, 2017. Mr. Sanders was initially appointed to 
the Planning Commission as a 2nd Alternate on July 21 , 2014. He would 
like to be considered to replace Mr. Deloach. If appointed, his new term 
would expire on December 31, 2020. 

• Margo Moehring has been serving as 2nd Alternate on the Planning 
Commission since August 1, 2016. She would like to be considered to fill 
the remainder of Mr. Brittan's term as 1st Alternate, which expires on 
December 31, 2020. 



Memorandum, Mayor, and Council 
Appointments to Planning Commission 
May 20, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

• A 2nd Alternate would then need to be appointed to a four-year term that 
would expire on December 31 , 2019. The following applicants are 
qualified to be considered for appointment to the Planning Commission 
and have been interviewed by City Council members. Their applications 
are attached for your review: William Dopf, Samuel Hall, Jr. , Jason Lee, 
Jon McGowan, and Lucas Snyder. 

Recommendation: 
Nominate Georgette Dumont for reappointment to the Planning Commission for a 
four-year term expiring on December 31 , 2020. 

Nominate Britton Sanders to the Planning Commission for a four-year term 
expiring on December 31 , 2020. 

Nominate Margo Moehring to fill the remainder of the term of the 1 st Alternate 
term expiring on December 31 , 2020. 

Nominate Jason Lee as the 2nd Alternate to the Planning Commission for a four
year term expiring on December 31, 2020. 

/LS 
Attachments 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Offi~e of the City Clerk 
11 North 3n1 Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: Georgette Dumont Home Phone: 508-493-0156 

Home Address: 507 16th Ave S Jacksonville Beach 32250 
E-Mall Address: Q.dumont@unf.edu Cell Phone: 508-493-0156 
Occupation: professor Business Phone: 904-620-5855 
Business Name: University of North Florida 
Business Address: 1 UNF Drive Jacksonville FL 32224 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 
Have you filed bankruptcy? 

m 
Yes 
(§) 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 
No 
No 

® 

i 

If yes, length of time: 7 years 
If yes, what County: ---iD~1 ~1vH,a,Ml.-----
lf yes, address: 507 16th Ave S Jacksonville Beach 
If yes, Office namePublic Service Grants Council, Jacksonville 

If yes, position: -------------
If yes, Board Name: Plannim,1 Commission 
If yes, provide date: ----------
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: _______ _ 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged In the managem~nership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? ~ No 

If yes, please provide details: 
Vice President for Deck the Chairs Board of Directors 

City Boards {Please indicate your preferences by ranking· denote your Primary choice with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

1 Plannln Commission 
2 Pension Trustee L----'--:.:......C-'-'-...C...:..:.:.C.C:C~--------------' 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: City Council, Planning Commission, 
CRA, Board of Adjustment, budget workshops, budget tours 

Qualifications (Briefly descrtbespeclllcexpertise, abilities, or qual/ffcatlons) In addition to serving on the Planning Commission 

Education: BA - Roger Williams University 
MPA - Bridgewater State University 
PhD - Northern lllmo1s Urnvers1ty 

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

for the last 4 years, my academic field of study is public administration. 

Page 1 of 2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r: American Indian/Alaskan 

Ix Caucasian 

r Hispanic 

r Not KnoVvn 

Gender 

fx Female 

r Male 

Physically Disabled 

rves 
f?<No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, Incomplete, or misleading Information given by me on the application Is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

,.,,. , \are~s'iJb'' itted ;;fr, \fhe ·er tC1erk1'and are \ialid Jor-dwo ··.eats'ifrom ':the· 'date ,fh'e -. af · submitted/ All 

ltMliglb.ll~ , __ ·; ·~
1pJ=filttla~~~3.~1~~=~~~~J~@!~tpb~t~~~:~t~·wii~~~~aW6'l~l"6'6Bfrf;''ih~r61~2

ciaflbl!'t6Y1~1B~is 
i 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, co re'ct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: -------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: ----------------

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of2 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3"' Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 1 O 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@Jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Occupation: -~~2..UJ~~~~~~~!-L...!.c~~a:.a-J-~ 

Business Name: ~ ....... '-=~ ....... -tt-~:1"":<---''rr-'-:----+---"~=:..;..;.~-""-'-'...,_-1"-=-=-:,~_....""'-"~:.:.'.:..k-=---

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 
Have you filed bankruptcy? 

s 
s 

Yes 
Yes 
~) 
~ 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
No 

i 
No 
~ 
No 

lfip) 

If yes, length of time:-------
If yes, what County: -----------
If yes, address:-------------
If yes, Office name: -----------
If yes, position: --..,......----------
If yes, Board Name: ~'[),..,""1/i,.,c,..:..,1::...:n....c.:....:1 ~c.:.,~~· c..------
lf yes, provide date: -'----------
If yes, provide date: ------------
If yes, provide date: ________ _ 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owners~ of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes Q!9 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your Primary choice with a "1 ", Secondary choice with a "2". 

Plannin Commission 

mee~ings yoH have_ atteQded: ~...L.,!~_.!,,,.:.::~-.1......!,.!...:.=:..!.:.~¥:::...L-'o.=-...;;..;;..::;....;=--..__ 

.o~, t'-'1 ss~,"'-

Board Application with Description of Boards- 2016 Page 1 of2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r American Indian/Alaskan 

,OCaucasian 

r Hspanic 

r f'.bt Knooo 

Gender 

r Female 

fMale 

Physically Disabled 

rves 
r f'.b 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition. any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning , are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112. Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure fom, -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their application submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council considers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: ------------
Date: -----------

Date: ------------
Page 2 of 2 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

AX: ~fi.i4~J.
-mail~ ffi'a& fl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boar 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

JUN 2 8 2016 

City Clerk 

Name: M c""'r'a..; "~ DE...~ r , ~ 
Home Address: l ~ L~ C ·· ,,... .-.R 0 :'::'.':'1 , ::J ,::Jl 

Home Phone: q o-< 1.. -t 2.. °t 3 1-. ~ 
~~~ FL .31.l..S-0 

' I 
E-Mail Address: '"" "'.::, ~ ""- .r , "'V\@ "e f-v-c.. • ~ ~-"'. Cell Phone: 

Occupation: ~ k, .,.._ P \. ~ "' ,:,../ 
Business Name: t..l "~-~~ . .:-~::i. \.- f t ~ .- ~ ''- fl. ....e, . :> . • , .. Jl 

Business Phone: '\ D \.t 1.. "l 'i Dt:!~ l;> 

C. .;; ,__c......J-

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? I No If yes, length of time: l l:. y ,,,__... ~ 
Are you a registered voter? s No If yes, what County: --~'--1,,.\._v_.:.R.. _______ _ 
Do you own property in the City? s No If yes, address: l ~ 'i" <.. .... rc-.JI.. w G'""'\ 

Do you hold a public office? Yes ~
0

0 If yes, Office name: ~ 
Are you employed by the City? Yes If yes, position: --------------
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes ~ If yes, Board Name: ------------
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes @ If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes No If yes, provide date: ------------
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes @ If yes, provide date:--------
Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owners~of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~ 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards Please indicate your preferences by ranklng - denote your Primary choice with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

1- Board of Ad'ustment Plannin Commission 
Community Redevelopment Agency Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: - ~---\
1 
__ L_ ... _, -Vw,v\.--~-·--'---',-"""- e.._e..,\-' __ \_~_..,,,...:s._\,.J_~_.k'\.-__ _ 

Sr:~ t-r 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, a_bilitie~. or qualifications) W o..-l~ p \... . ....,,__...,,_...,... .S) .... , .e. l <'t '3 '1 
w~ ~l:f.....,. "", s ~ • ~ 5 .... ,x":S, .. ._ ~ c. ., ,~.,.~ ""-~-' ... .., :... f ~=-:::s; . 

Education: 8 e- ~ e.A.,.. .r of- Av- h · 1..., 

~ <w.r- ::i ~ ' ' \ 1- ti 

In 

I 
\, ,dl .. , JJ. C, ...... l , £, ' 

Board Application with Description of Boards -April 2012 Page 1 of 2 



r . 
Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses . 

Race Gender 

Wemale 

1Male 

Physically Disabled 

1Yes 1 African-American ifcaucasian 

I Hispanic 

1 Not Known 

r Asian/Pacific Islander rv1Jo 
r American Indian/Alaskan Native 

II 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes . 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Add itionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from 
date of completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete . Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date Applicant's Sf§Oature ) 

Please do not write below- Staff use 

Date application received : ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------- Date: 

Appointed to: --------------------- Date: 

Appointed to: --------------------- Date: 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 Page 2 of 2 



'city of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: ~ \LUf',u.,_ 'J)~~ Home Phone: 

Home Address: q '2. 2.Cf~ ~~~ 5~~ ~~~O~\J i,\i~ 

Received 

II It.I 1 i ?"1~ 

Jacksonville t,e;i~h Cliy ~r1< 
- ·· --

~~~ FL 
E-Mail Address: w\Mc\?~~~µA,\, c.o,v\. Cell Phone: G\oy-~c~- i!'3~ . 
Occupation: t,1'4\*e\ ~e~h~i ~-e~; Business Phone: 

~ 

Business Name: ~\~v\v..-\t.~(') ".::> L-L C. 

Business Address: G\2 2.0\IZ( .(\~ e,. . :S-A:.~~t>s~..w\i~ ~~ 
Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? (y;;;) No If yes, length of time: ------------
Are you a registered voter? ~ No If yes, what County: ------------
Do you own property in the City? ~ No If yes, address: --------------
Do you hold a public office? Yes 1No

0 

If yes , Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes If yes, position: --------------
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes If yes, Board Name: ------------
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes No If yes , provide date: 
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes ~ If yes, provide date:--------
Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owner~.tu~--e{ any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~ 

If yes, please provide details: --------------------------------

City Boards Please indicate your preferences by ranking. denote your Primary choice with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

I Z.,. Planning Commission 
Pension Trustee 

., 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: _-3_..;:0:;._U=\.~""·:..:::,· "'---lv~"4c...:..~=.:.e.~..::...J.-=-)CO=--+\ _.::eCw\w·~~'--'12:v:=:·""'~ ...,\l!C.JL~~t'.,"", c..:.l-=--'-f".J2&u . .:,. ~ 

~ 

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 Page 1 of 2 



-' ·'* 
Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses . 

Race 

~asian 

r Hispanic 

r Not Known 

Gender 

1 Female 

lv'lv1aie 

Physically Disabled 

1Yes r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander ~ 
r American Indian/Alaskan Native 

II 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application wben filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from 
date of completion . 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be tr4' _,__ correct, and omplete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

I 

\ 
Date Applicant's S~ natl~ 

• 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received : ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - April 2012 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of 2 



William B Dopf 
92 29111 A venue South 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 
32250 
904 208 1135 
wbdopf@gmail .com 
rcsinink@gmail .com 

Career Objective 

To utilize highly effective marketing, operations and management skills developed over a long corporate 
industrial and private consulting career. To help organizations grow in a strategic and sustainable way. 

2005-PRESENT 

RESINSOLUTIONS LLC 

1980-2005 

PRESIDENT 
Formed a consultant practice working with former clients in the industrial chemical 
business. Successfully guided their manufacturing and procurement groups toward 
in-depth understanding of strategic issues with respect to their sourcing decisions. 
Significant realignment of suppliers and an enhanced approach to long term strategic 
procurement was achieved. Savings were in the 7-figure range. Current activities are 
in support ofRespol Resinas S.A., Leiria, Portugal and Forchem Oy, Rauma, Finland. 

MEAD WESTVACO CORPORATION 
A fortune 500 paper, packaging and chemicals business 

2000-2005 

1996-2000 

1993-1996 

1990-1993 

Vice President Chemical Division 
General Manager of worldwide pine chemical business. Managed two seperate tall oil 
refinery sites and associated derivative production facilities including product 
development, sales, purchasing, research and customer service for a $200+ million 
business employing 400 professional and plant personnel. Along with management team, 
developed business into the premier supplier in the industry. By utilizing a well 
publicized strategy we drove quality, innovation, and response to new industry standards. 
The group became one ofMeadwestvaco's highest ROI business units. 

General Manager-Oleochemicals Department 
P&L responsibility for Department sales and operations worldwide. Managed sales, 
product development, and manufacturing for $120 million business including multiple 
sites employing 200 professional and plant employees. Increased department 
profitability 80% by focusing on proper pricing strategies and cost control. 

General Manager-Europe 
Created plan for European expansion including organization of a Swiss subsidiary to 
minimize tax impact on all European operations. 
Developed marketing strategy and spearheaded sales to penetrate new markets and 
geography. We were able to build a base of business to justify installation of a new 
manufacturing facility. 
Supervised engineering of manufacturing facilities, and submitted phase II engineering 
work on time and within budget. 

Marketing Manager 
Successfully developed and implemented aggressive plans for expanding technology to 
multiple continents. 



Built a field sales force and customer service group that achieved a 400% increase in 
sales. Supervised sales, customer service and commercial development of 130 products 
for three different segments of the printing ink industry. 

1987-1990 

1985-1987 

Achieved dominant position in major markets of 65% and 35%, from 25% and 5%, 
respectively. 

Sales Manager 
Directed sales force which consistently achieved the highest level of sales dollars and 
profitability within the Chemical Division. 

Ink Industry Manager 
Hired a direct field sales force to replace reps and distributors. Successfully 
implemented plan to access new markets . Transitioned newly acquired business into the 
parent sales system while converting the entire customer base to new manufacturing 
location. Growth of the business exceeded 100%. 

1980-1985 Technical Sales Representative 
Traveled North America for three different departments within the Westvaco Chemical 
Division. Covered a variety of territories and product lines with increasing levels of 
responsibility. 

Education 

Colorado State University 
MBA Marketing and Finance 1979 
B.S. Bioscience 1976 

Marquette University, College of Engineering 1972-73 
Awarded U.S. Naval Reserve Officer Training Scholarship 

Professional Development Programs 

Harvard University The Program On Negotiating For Senior Executives 
University of Virginia The Darden School Leadership 
U of Pennsylvania Wharton School Commercial Development and Corporate Venturing 

Westvaco Corp Marketing Professional Development Program 
The Westvaco Supervisor 
Managing Organizational Objectives 
Empowered Leadership Program 

Forum Managing a Strategically Aligned Sales Force 

Professional Associations 

Pine Chemicals Association 
Member of Board of Directors - Chairman 

National Association of Printing Ink Manufacturers 
T.A.M. Board Member, General Board Member 

Community in Schools South Carolina Chapter 
Board Member 

1/20 14 

2 



city of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 1 O 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Personal Information 

I. RcceTv,..,r·1 

Au,.. 1 0 -: -. ·~· 
\) ~ l •J !,) ' 

. Application for Appointment to City Boardf J.c i :o:·. ·:, , ., <,· .• f 
(Please pnnt or type) _ • _. • • : • M • • ~ J 

Name: Samuel Hall.Jr .. _______________ _ Home Phone: 904-504-4243 ___ _ 

Home Address: 404 3rd Ave. North 32250 _______________________ _ 

E-Mail Address: samhalldist2@gmail.com ________ _ FAX: 

Business: Retired _________________ _ Business Phone: 904-504-4243 __ _ 

Business Address: P O Box 330042 Atlantic Beach 32233 _________________ _ 

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? X Yes No If yes, length of time: 2.5 years 
Are you a registered voter? X Yes No If yes, what County: Duval County 
Do you own property in the City? X Yes No If yes, address: 404, 406, and 414 3rd Ave N. 
Do you hold a public office? Yes X No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes X No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes X No If yes, Board Name: 

Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Have your civil rights been restored? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes x No 

If yes, please provide details: --------------------------------

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a "1 ", second choice with a "2". etc.) 

(
- i 

3
1 2 Planning Commission 

ment Agenc 4 Pension Trustee ,..___...__ ___ ___,, ____ .,__ __ -=. _ _._ __ ___, ._ _ _,__ ________________ __, 

; 11;.. . t./a c< (c.uf.d ~-, / t ijt;· r•,.lr.r.,l-, 1 l . .,:tc~{,./t /< , & / 11; , , -~A L; <~;/ ,.: .L . · r~--:-- ! ' ,I , ·
11 

· 1,,. . 

Please list City meetings you have attended: City Council, Beaches Watch Sponsored meetings, School Board meetings 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications) Leadership skills, experience serving on boards as a member and as chair, 

was employed at Fortune 500 companies where I worked within groups to achieve common goals .. ______________ _ 

Education: BS degree in Biology and Chemistry Minor ______________________ _ 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

x African-American 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 

Caucasian 
Hispanic 
Not Known 

Gender 

Female 
x Male 

Physically Disabled 

Yes 
X No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form 1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1 , as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a crim inal background check. / 

_/ /I 
.,,--:7/ /A=. ~ ' ,,,,. / '. -~/J~ . 

A 13lie:ifnt's Signatur Date 1 1 

·Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: 

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Page 2 of 3 

Date: 

Date: -----------

Date: ------------



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

. , 

Phope; (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cifycierk@iaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards . . 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: 
\ 

V l'-SO r, Lc::e Home Phone: ___ 1v_l_A __ _ 
Home Address: _I ~3~8~1~_r_,_{l.._n_t_c_J_-i =.o...c...ri__,___,G~! '~.:..-'-k~.::.--o__._r-_; ..,._\/....,c".=-~ _..case.-· o_ .. ~_.\._~--.---,j---~-_x __ ·-=,3_ec....;:c_.<- C.---'. i1 

E-Mail Address: _ \.,.,):;.....;;;..c~;;_s=·-=c,:....:o_.__ ... tf);:;...···-'-;"'--e-,f"'"·-!.l~c"'"'> .;;..l..<_,,_c=·..;;.e_,_, ..;;;t.'-1=5'--- Cell Phone: 9()41- t'/.?.~ - 6 o.571 
Occupation: ___ S_. 'c--c_ ... ~\_<:~~~-· ----------- Business Phone: ___ /_' __ /_' __ 

Business Name: __ R __ c"" . .._n ......... s~o~1.,-t_1-_C....;;;c...<:...=.: -----------------------

Business Address: _/_J_g_/~1') ...... b_C:._n~f_c ....... )_,_Ci_n_~O---c~~ k __ :,_-c.t)_r_,_..· v---e_S_'-=-('.l-"ic--'A-- h--'---+-; _':r;_o,.._x __ ~_d_::i-G_ -h_ 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? ( jii;) 
Are you a registered voter? ~ 
Do you own property in the City? r~) 
Do you hold a public office? Yes 
Are you employed by the City? Yes 
Are you currently serving on a Board? "·~ve0 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes 

No 
No 
No 
--· ") 

LJw..-, 

' ~ 
No 

' _ l'i9>._ 
<;~ 

If yes, length of time: _ __,/.,::-()_· _,L/r-_c:_,t1.,-,_--_;5 ____ _ 

If yes, what County: --"""7)'--'-l-'_lv-'--• .-.._l'-----,------,-
lf yes, address: i-3~·/ /J/e, ... f,:.l, ,e.,. C'lti. kJ t)r. ~ 

If yes, Office name: ------------
If yes, position: ---=--'"7"9---,--------
lf yes, Board Name: ..... 3'-'rc:""'~~·-=--)-~,_, f--_-'-H_o_· -=-A ___ _ 
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the managemenUowner:.ship of.any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ( ~ 

If yes, please provide details: -------------------------------

City Boards {Please Indicate your preferences by ranking. denote your first choice wtth a "1 ", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

/ Plannin Commission 
Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: --'("'"·;_,-:_{'l_e_r_.::_0 \_...,,C .... 'i""'~'--...,1-\----""'"'/6""'1.r'--fl_c::.._·, _\ _ _._\v_\_~_c.._!-_;_J__,·1--=---

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications) Wo d~ t..,.) • \-"' l ou. \ h C> +- e.\5 c../i...._ k, -5 
(" •:,h:,uf'cn-t'S ~\-<;.. . \\-osr. : ~c:.\;~ ;,, J ,.,,.":>~1-· ~o., _,_, \n o~.,_.\-l,, C"-~ e.~, -:._ '..\-e_c., .rnj 

J 

Board Appointment Application - April 201 2 Page2 of 2 



. ' ,, 

Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses. 

Race 

,£ucasian 

r Hispanic 

Gender Physically Disabled 

1 Yes 1 African-Arrerican 

vKb'' 1 Asian/Pacific Islander 

r Arrerican Indian/ Alaskan Nati~ r Not Kno'M'l 

II 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion . 

By submitting this form , I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. ~ 

Date 

Please do not write below- Staff use 

Date application received: ----------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: 

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Board Appointment Application - April 2012 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of2 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cit clerk ·axbchfl.net 

RECEIVED 
Application for Appointment to City 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

ards 
DEC O 6 2016 

Name: Home 
City Clerk 

Home Address: 5 r.J 11.\-l A ,Je-

E-Mail Address: 

Occupation: ____ (;._,..._,.._..-.--'-\ _rl_<::-'-f_rt_e_N_.e._v_lL-_______ _ 

Cell Phone: q O <.;_ S fr l.. I J 7 O 

Business Phone: 1 D '-t ]7 '2 c:, 77 o 

Business Name: 5 kd1J A ... ~ 
s ;J I -,~... A ..)e.. * 'i '() l 

( ON\) e,- -., O,'I 

Business Address: 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? ffiV No If yes, length of time: l Z. :;rs 
Are you a registered voter? ~ No If yes, what County: D0v,h. 

Do you own property in the City? @::> No If yes, address: 5 rJ ,1~ }t-.J-l.. ~'101 
Do you hold a public office? Yes ~ If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes ! If yes, Board Name: 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes ~ If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownersb!R of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes / No'-

'-- --
If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards {Please Indicate your preferences by ranking • denote your Primary choice with a "1 ", Secondary choice with a "2". 

2 Plannin Commission 
Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: _ __;.A.L-:=1.._L __ o_F __ -n-1..:-.c._'=-_ll-.. ___________ _ 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities, or qualifications)_+-P-'-r-=-o_,..=1c..;c_'"-~ __ <>_(.: __ B_c _~_1 ef_·_-_w_A_x__,_P_1 e_A_c._1-l __ _ 
( 

Education: 

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r American Indian/Alaskan 

- - -~ 
( r CaucasiaJJ_J 

- -----·r Hispanic 

r l\bt KnoW1 

Gender 

1 Female 

Physically Disabled 

r Yes 

~ 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their application submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council considers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date Applicant's Signature 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: 

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: 

Appointed to: 

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of 2 



WORK EXPERIENCE 

Jonathan A. McGowan 
5 N 1 ?1h Ave #401 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 
(904)982-1330 

President/ Director of Corporate Partnerships and Government Relations 
2014 - Present 
Shooting and Outdoors Convention 

• President of production company organizing a regional firearms, hunting, and outdoors trade 
show in Jacksonville, FL. 

• Created strategic relationships with city and state elected officials 
• Sought out grant funding from government and non-governmental agencies 
• Sought out corporate sponsorships and develop strategic relationships with other companies to 

facility the success of the event. 

President/ Event Production, Government Relations, Media Relations 
2013 - Present 
Better Jacksonville Beach 

• Founder of business organization focused on changing the image of the Jacksonville Beach 
Downtown. 

• Created strategic relationships with local elected officials 
• Developed contacts with local media to get earned media for organization and was the go to 

spokesperson for the area. 
• Organizer/ promoter of the Jax Beach Art Walk and the Jax Beach Classic Car Cruise. 

Talk Show Host/ Radio Personality 
2013-2015 
Straight Shooting w/ Jon McGowan on AM 600/ FM 102.3 

• Host of a weekly talk radio program focused on Florida Politics and the firearms industry. 
• Interviewed local and state elected officials on issues. 
• Moderated debates for candidates of state and local races. 
• Researched and summarized every bill filed in the Florida legislature. 

Owner 
2009-2015 
McGowan Firearms 

• Owner of firearms retail store in Atlantic Beach, FL 

Political Consultant 
2003 -2009 

• Worked as independent political consultant for campaigns throughout North East and North 
Central Florida regions. Responsibilities include strategy, networking, promoting candidate or 
issue, public speaking, fundraising, media relations, volunteer recruitment, and management. 
Clients include: 

• Business Industry Political Action Committee (BIPAC) 
• Florida Chamber of Commerce 
• Randy Johnson for Florida Chief Financial Officer 
• Doug Gallagher for U.S. Senate 
• Local campaigns 



LEADERSHIP/ ACTIVITIES 

Office of Mayor-elect Lenny Curry 
Streamlining for Growth & Opportunity Committee Member, 2015 

Jacksonville Regional Chamber of Commerce 
Government Affairs Standing Committee: Member, 2007 - 2009 
JaxBiz: Member, 2008- 2009 
South Council : Member, 2008 - 2009 
IMPACTjax: Governmental Affairs Committee Chair, 2008 
IMPACTjax: Voice Committee Co-Chair, 2007 
IMPACTjax: Member, 2007 - 2009 

First Coast Tiger Bay Club 
Board Member, 2009 
Member, September 2007 - 2009 

Beaches Business Association, Member, 2007 - 2012 

Jacksonville Beach Gator Club, Member, 2007 - 2014 

Duval County Republican Executive Committee 
Precinct Committeeman, 2005 - 2010 

John McCain for President 
Florida Co-Chair of Young Professionals for McCain, 2008 

EDUCATION 
Bachelors of Arts in Liberal Arts 
December 2006 
Major: Political Science 
University of Florida, Gainesville, FL 

Associates of Arts 
December 2002 
Major: Business Administration 
Florida Community College of Jacksonville, Jacksonville, FL 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 
Life, Health, and Variable Annuity License 2-15, February 2005 
State of Florida 

Real Estate Sales Associate License, March 2005 
State of Florida 

NRA Firearms Instructor, 2009 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Board 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

R c ,v~·r
MAY • :1 iij~~ 

Name: Lucas N. Snyder _______________ _ Home Phone: 407-529-4084 ___ _ 

Home Address: 414 101h ST S Jacksonville Beach, FL. 32250 _________________ _ 

'E-Mail Address: lucas.snyder2@gmail.com ________ _ FAX: 

Business: Business Phone: 

Business Address: -----------------------------------

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? X Yes No If yes, length of time: 6 years 
Are you a registered voter? X Yes No If yes, what County: Duval 
Do you own property in the City? X Yes No If yes, address: 414 101h St S, 1821 Tanglewood Rd._ 
Do you hold a public office? Yes X No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes X No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes X No If yes, Board Name: 

Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Have your civil rights been restored? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes x No 

If yes, please provide details: ---------------------------------

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a "1 ", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

2 3 Plannin Commission 
1 Communit Redevelopment A enc Pension Trustee c._____1. __ :..c....::...:.c:__cc...:....:......:....:...:....:... _________ ___, 

Please list City meetings you have attended: City Council: Oct 13, 2015, Feb 15, 2016, March 7th 
Board of Adjustments: July 21, 2015, November 3, 2015, ---------------------

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications). ____________________ _ 

Involvement in multiple community service events/locations including The Carver Center. Boys and Girls Club of Jacksonville Beach, ARC Surf Camps 

for underprivileged youth, Donner Park in Atlantic Beach, 

Education: University of North Florida, 12/2007 

Bachelor of Science, Communications/Public Relations ------------------

age o 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender,' and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials . Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

African-American 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 

x Caucasian 
Hispanic 
Not Known 

Gender 

Female 
x Male 

Physically Disabled 

Yes 
x No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form 1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

05/2/2016 Lucas N. Snyder _________________ _ 

Date Applicant's Signature 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: 

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: 

Page 2 of 3 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------



:.Lucas Snyder 

Summary 

414 10th ST S. Jacksonville Beach FL 32250 
Cell: ( 407) 529-4084 - lucas.snyder2@gmail.co 

Extensive knowledge of administration procedures, management of other workers and conflict resolution . Excels in creative problem 
solving through focused communication and leadership. Dedicated and goal oriented for the purpose of seeing vision become a 
reality. 

Education 
Bachelor of Science : Communications/ Public Relations, 2007 
University of North Florida - Jacksonville , FL, USA 
Cumulative GPA 3.2 

UNF Senior Service Award Winner 

Experience 

League Coordinator 
August 2007 to Current 
i9 Sports/ Jacksonville - Jacksonville, FL 
Responsibilities included overseeing the development and operation of all youth sports programs, execution of local marketing plans 
establishing community relationships, sourcing of volunteers, staffing of sports officials, managing daily inquiries, maintaining 
website, ensuring the highest level of customer satisfaction . 
The program consists of 2,000 + annual participants and generates annual revenue of $500,000 +. 

2006 and 2007 Franchise of the Year 
2008 and 2009 MVP Club Award Winner 
2015 Highest Customer Satisfaction Award Winner 

Dean of Students 
August 2010 to Current 
Beaches Chapel School - Jacksonville , FL 
Responsibilities include establishing polici~s and procedures through collaborative input that deal directly with student behavior, 
conducting training of faculty/staff in regards to appropriate classroom decorum, reviews and revises disciplinary aspects of the 
student handbook, maintains detailed records and student behavior profiles, assists in developing strategic plans to improve student 
behavior. 
School consists of 200+ students 
F.L.O.C.S Accredited School 

College Basketball Official 
October 2010 to Current 
Women's College Basketball Official - Southeast United States 
Responsibilities include managing all aspects of a basketball game, working closely with fellow referees to foster a team atmosphere 
dealing strategically within conflict resolution , an advanced ability to manage people in a highly stressful situation , making decisions 
in a quick and decisive manner, subjecting yourself to immediate evaluation of the decisions that you make. 

Assistant Director 
Augu~2004toAugust2006 
Osprey Productions- University of North Florida - Jacksonville , FL 

Responsibilities included overseeing a student programming board which was directly tasked with planning large scale concerts, 
homecoming, movie nights and other weekly events . Administrative responsibilities included managing finances , soliciting communit: 
partners and graphic design of promotional materials. 
Annual budget $2.5 million 
Serving 17,000+ students 

Organizational Involvement 
Children's Miracle Network, Girls Inc of Jacksonville, Life Rolls on Foundation and Christian Surfers United States 

References 
References are available upon request 



Board Aoolicants Listing 

Board Applicant Choice Ranking 
Term 

Recommended Interview Date 
Expiration 

BOA Osewalt Sylvia Re-appointment 8/6/2017 5/15/2017 

Cater Gary 1 y 1/18/2017 

Dopf William 1 y 7/18/2016 

Snyder Lucas 2 y 5/4/2016 

CRA Nichols Cory Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/3/2017 

Pavloski Frances Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/17/2017 

Cater Gary 2 y 1/18/2017 

Hall, Jr.* Samuel 1 y 1/18/2017 

Langham Samuel 1 y 5/5/2016 

Lee Jason 2 y 4/12/2016 

Lerman Justin 1 y 5/5/2016 

McCann Michael 1 y 6/20/2016 

McGowan Jon 1 y 1/17/2017 

Stevens Bill 1 4/3/2017 

PC Dummont Georgette Re-appointment 6/30/2017 4/3/2017 
Declined 

DeLoach Terry Re-appointment 6/30/2017 

did not return our calls - will 

Chantry Michael 2 remove name from consideration 

Dopf William 2 y 7/18/2016 

Hall, Jr. Samuel 2 y 1/18/2017 

Lee Jason 1 y 4/12/2016 

McGowan Jon 2 y 1/18/2017 

Reid William 2 y Not interested at this time 

Snyder Lucas 1 y 5/4/2016 
ri;guested to change 
his choice section 
from BOA # I to 

CRA # l rev 5/19/2017 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6299 #10 

904.247.6250 #11 

Fax: 904.247.6256 

E-Mail : cityclerk@jaxbchfl .net 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

May 20, 2017 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

RE: Appointments to Community Redevelopment Agency 

Action Requested: 

Appointment of two members to the Community Redevelopment Agency to fill 
the expiring terms of Frances Povloski and Cory Nichols. Their current terms will 
expire on June 17, 2017. 

Background: 

Frances Povloski was originally appointed to the Community Redevelopment 
Agency on June 17, 2013, and has requested that Council consider her for 
reappointment to the Community Redevelopment Agency with her term expiring 
December 31st, 2020. 

Cory Nichols was originally appointed to the Community Redevelopment Agency 
on June 17, 2013, and has requested that Council consider him for 
reappointment to the Community Redevelopment Agency with his term expiring 
December 31st, 2020. 

The following applicants are qualified to be considered for appointment to the 
Community Redevelopment Agency and have been interviewed by City Council 
members. Their applications are attached for your review: Gary Cater, Samuel 
Hall, Jr., Samuel Langham, Jason Lee, Justin Lerman, Michael Mccann, Jon 
McGowan, Bill Stevens. 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that the Council either re-appoint Frances Povloski or Cory 
Nichols to the Community Redevelopment Agency for new 4-year terms, expiring 
on December 31 , 2020; or consider appointing one of the above applicants. 

/LS 
Attachments 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 

11 North 3n1 Street E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: F(a Y"\QA~ C.. , oJlo~I(,..,\ 
Home Address: ~.........:;-..L.:::..<.--t\._1.._...._.__,'\__.______,..,_..;;;.Ct-=C=~~c):<..,..'{\_V;....\...;,_vle__=·.>....:~ ~ '-"h__,P__..~c ..._,-Z=---=-'\l..:):..=.. __ 

E-Mail Address: Jl~Ll J:J o'f\C.J Cell Phone: C>Pf/ L/91,L 
Occupation: f1?r \JC1!YID' · 61W) Business Phone: '3 7 2-,L{C[ c) 0 

Business Name: ,&:µ_c V\6 \ k ~ 5 LA )-ec,. {YJ E}cufrc:Jf-e-.. p 
Business Address: ;3) .$&.cCY'")O\ (\)µ. ~ - /0 -J±-2..a>a ~t' 2>< h f:=-/ -:JZZ:::ZJ 

Eligibility - Pl'ease Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? ie~ No If yes, length of time: ~ 
Are you a registered voter? Y . No If yes, what County: ~ .... Unl .............. _c.i,_~\ __,.. __ - __ _ 
Do you own property in the City? e No If yes, address: Lj_{)~ J-5;-tr..at /u @y &h 
Do you hold a public office? gu/J~ If yes, Office name: yY)g.m ~ o fu&CAlA: 90/ 3 -2'1 17\ 
Are you employed by the City? Yes o If yes, position: --~-,-l'T---------~ 
Are you currently serving on a Board? ~ o If yes, Board Name: c£A /:::::. 
Have you been convicted of a felony? ~ ~o If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes d If yes, provide date: -'-AJ=---8-· ---------
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes No If yes, provide date: - - --- ---

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the managemenVown~ any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~ 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking. denote your Primary choice with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

I Planning Commission 
Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended:--------------------

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities, or qualificatlons) _________ ________ _ 

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American (f2aucasi;> --·--- --r Asian/Pacific Islander r Hispanic 

r, American Indian/Alaskan r Not KnoVv'l1 

Gender 
- - --- ·=;;,---

, _:!." F~ 

rMale 

Physically Disabled 

rYes 

~ 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

• · · ,,. • '"··ere· '"rcreik.1lna., file'""'afii;t :fori £wo\ ''e~rs::: om Yhtf;da'te lhe··· afe::sutfmitfed."!Afi 
~:.:,·x:t.~·· ~., ~~i1°•1"•~-jm1tfiiiY~-t6~~ti~i ~i~tWc'd'frf:.f~"e"a1htcSJr1eifm'rf~raJi~ .. :tr,ti,t$'. ~ .... _J).¥'"' 9 ". ,' •. ,' , . . , .. ···--- ... . . . 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

~A~~. 
plicant'sSignature""""" <-:..::) 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: -------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: ---~~-----------

Appointed to: ~~-~~--------------

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: -------~~---

Page2 of2 



Frances Carter Pavloski 
402 15th Street North 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

Education: 

904-372-4900 (W) 904-891-4915 (C) 
fra nee. povloski@raymond ja mes. com 

• Security Licensed (Series 7 and Chartered Retirement Plans Specialist) 
• Licensed Florida Life, Health and Annuity Agent 

• Bachelor of Social Science, primary study in Sociology and Public Administration 
Florida State University- Tallahassee, FL August 2000 

Experience: 
12/01/2012 - Current Owner of Beachside Benefits and Wealth Strategies, an independent firm 

Raymond James Financial Services 
My experience includes business ownership and the responsibilities that go with runn ing a business; 
such as bookkeeping, marketing, compliance, networking and sales. I am a Financial Planner and 
Chartered Retirement Plans Specialist for business owners and their employees. My experience as a 
Financial Advisor is mentioned below. 

04/2005 - 12/01/2012 Financial Planner/Sales Assistant with Mary Carter Financial Services 
11/2001- 04/2003 Financial Planning Assistant with Mary Carter Financial Services 
Provide services to high net worth clients in the way of reviews, insurance service and processing, 
product research. Responsible for client recognition, in the form of luncheons and trip planning to the 
home office. Assist w ith health insurance questions, billing problems, sales and date entry. Assist with 
sales presentations, product research and reviews of high net worth client assets. Write insurance sales, 
LTC sales, 529 sales or process other FA sales with follow up. Professional contact w ith Wholesales, 
CPA's Attorney's, other FA's and cl ientele. Exposed to Estate planning basics and software. Experience 
in Retirement planning/accumulation planning and servicing for business owner and their employees'. 

09/2003-04/2005 Commission Accounting Department for AHL/Allstate 
Daily accounting, reconciliation and research. Systems work in AWD, Medaviewer, Life 70, MSA and 
Windows. Use of Bl to adjust and mange workflow queue. Provided assistance to agent in regards to 
commissions in the way of research, support and basic training. Research, analyze and process special 
projects/ audits per assignment. Coordinate team building events. 

Additional experience available upon request. 

While Employed: 
06/2013 - 06/2017 Member of Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 

06/2002 -02/2006 Owner or Captured Photography 
A free-lance photography business that requires constant record keeping, organization, book keeping, 
marketing and managing. Looked to for advice and guidance in the wedding planning and activity 
planning. Creative solutions to problems as well as customer satisfaction techniques. 

09/1999 - 01/2000 Human Resource Internship (Toys R Us) 
Organization of 1st Softball team, interviewing and hiring of seasonal help, use of security computer files 
and new hire training and orientation sessions. 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rc1 Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: Cory W. Nichols, P.E. 

Home Address: 11071st St S, Unit C 

E-Mail Address: Cory.Nichols@comcast.net 

Occupation: Professional Civil Engineer 

Home Phone: N/A - ------ - -

Cell Phone: 904-614-4800 

Business Phone: N/A ----------- ----
Business Name: ___ A_E_E_ng ... i_n_ee_r_in_.g"'"",_ln_c_. ___________ _ ______ _ __ _ 

Business Address: _ __ 644........;.;:0._S=oa..au=th'"""pa..ao=in=t..:..P=ar=kw=a .... v,'-"Sa..au=it=-e"""30"'"'0.__ _ _ _ _______ _ ___ _ 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? x Yes No If yes, length of time: 10 years 
Are you a registered voter? x Yes No If yes, what County: Duval 
Do you own property in the City? Yes X No If yes, address: 
Do you hold a public office? Yes X No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes X No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? X Yes No If yes, Board Name: CRA 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored?N/A Yes No If yes, provide date: 
Have you filed bankruptcy? N/A Yes No If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes X No 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards (Pleau fndicate your preferenc , by ranking . denote your Prim ry choice with• 1 ", Secondary choice with a *2" 

I Planning Commission 
Pension Trustee 

··-··=i 
Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: _ _ C~ity~C~O-Y-D-ci ... 1, .... B....,u...,,d.._g..,.et .... ,...,.C~RA-,~P-1a-n=n=jn ... g ... , ~A=dJ ... ·u-s=tm=e=n-t_, _ 

workshops, -

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities, or qualifications) Currently on CRA, Professional Civil Engineer 
specializing in infrastructure development (see attached for additional information). 

Education: -=B=SC=E~(CJ .... iv...,,il._.E=n:.:1g=in=e=~r .... in"-=g"'-} =U=oi""ve=r=si....,.ty...,o,.,.,f_._F....,fo=ri..,.da=---------------- 
MSCE (Civil Engineering - Construction Management) University of Florida 

(See attached for additional information) 

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 
' 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

!" African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

F' American Indian/Alaskan 

k Caucasian 

i' Hispanic 

1= t-bt Known 

Gender 

( ' Female 

iX' Male 

Physically Disabled 

r Yes 

f " t-b 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Fonn1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application, I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their application submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council considers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments . 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

4/3/17 
Date 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received : ---------------

Interviewed on: - - --- --------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: ----------------

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: -------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

· Page 2 of 2 



Cory W. Nichols, P.E. 

Qualifications for Jacksonville Beach - Community Redevelopment Agency 

• Current member of the Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) -

Appointed by the Jacksonville Beach City Council on June 17, 2013. 

• Licensed Florida Professional Engineer (P.E. # 53941) - Civil Engineer, specializing in 

infrastructure development and construction management (19 years). 

• Active Senior Project Engineer on many types of construction projects throughout 

Florida with over 50 projects completed, totaling hundreds of millions of dollars. 

• Authorized by FOOT to approve contract modification and funding expenditures through 

Supplemental Agreements. 

• Master's and Bachelor's degrees in Civil Engineering from the University of Florida (2000 

and 1994). Specialty in Construction Management, with training in Urban Development. 

• Business Owner (SO+ employees) -AE Engineering, Inc. is a Civil Engineering company 

that specializes in Construction Engineering & Inspection (CEI). 

o Major clients include the Florida Department of Transportation (FOOT), 

Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA), Palm Beach County, City of West 

Palm Beach and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP). AE 

Engineering takes the role of the owner's agent. 

o As an agent, we are tasked with ensuring that taxpayer dollars are spent 

prudently, construction projects are completed within contract time and on 

budget, while being built per contract documents. 

o We are selected based on our teams' qualifications, NOT low bid. 

o AE Engineering, Inc. has active roles in ongoing projects in the State of Florida 

totaling over $500 million. 

o AE Engineering, Inc. has had active roles in projects totaling in excess of $1 

Billion. 

• Graduate of FICE/FTBA Leadership Academy. 

• 22 years of combined experience working as a State of Florida Employee for the FOOT 

and working successfully as a consultant for the FOOT. 

• Has developed relationships with the majority of business and property owners within 

the CRA regions. 



CORY NICHOLS, P.E. 
SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER 

SUMMARY OF EXPERIENCE 
Cory has 22 years of CEI experience. His relevant experience and outstanding industry reputation makes him an excellent team leader 
and asset to the Department. Cory is well known for providing project management focused on timely issue resolution, claim prevention, 
and thorough schedule reviews. Cory has extensive experience with Interstate and Lump sum contracts and his attention to detail make 
him perfectly suited for the Sr. Project Engineer role. Cory experience includes over 25 projects as a Senior Project Engineer. 
Additionally, he had over 20 construction projects as the Project Administrator, including 3 bridge projects, for the FOOT Gainesville 
Construction Office where he was the Bridge Specialist under Steve Plotkin's residency. He was also the Construction Project Manager 
for the 391h Ave Bridge over 1-75 in Gainesville. 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE: 
SR-12 Mill and Resurfacing, Gadsden, FIN: 428848-1-52-01, $3.5M, 06/2016 to 11/2016- CEI SCORE 4.0 
Reference: Jeff Kerwin, P.E.: (850) 245-7927, FIN #428848-1-52-01 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer - Improvements under this District Contract consist of resurfacing, superelevation correction 
overbuild, cross slope correction overbuild, minor drainage improvements, minor shoulder reconstruction, ADA improvements, minor 
sidewalk replacement, signing and pavement markings, bridge joint replacement, and guardrail removal and replacement along SR 12 from 
Yon Creek Bridge to West of SR 10 (US 90) in Gadsden County. There are four (4) existing bridges within the project limits: BR500109, 
BR500116, BR500016, and BR500119 

SR 122 {Golfair Blvd) and SR 117 (Norwood Ave), Duval. FIN: 430562-1-52-01, $~.9M, 03/14/2016 to Present 
Reference: FDOT: Jessica Tippett, P.E. (904) 360-5504 .. , · 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer, This is a federally funded,.~nit price project that_ consists of the North area of Jacksonville,_ Duval 
County, Florida and includes SR 122 (Golfair Blvd) and SR 117 (Norwood Ave) from 1-95 to M9in Street and From 1-95 to Golfair Blvd. The 
project is a total of 2.281 miles of improvements includi~g embank.ment, reconstruc.ijon, milling and resurfacing of existing roadway, 
guardrail, drainage, and signing & pavement markings. This contri',IGt all o includes two Lump Sum, Joint Project Agreement (JPA) with JEA 
for utility adjustments and relocations. 

Soutel Drive Roadway and Transit Improvements, Duval.-JTA; 15-027, $1.BM, 11/2015 to 06/2016 
Reference: JTA: Andy Rodgers, P.E. (904) .633-8537; AE Engineering Inc. 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer, ·This project includes the construction of a new transit station and roadway extension. The 
proposed roadway will include a two. (2) lane urban sec;tion (asphalt paving) with curb and gutter, 9" concrete paving, drainage 
improvements with two (2) storm'.y~t~r man~gement f~pilities, earthw~rk with removal of unsui!able material, erosion control , 
landscaping, lighting, signalization with mast arms and drilled shafts, handrail, sidewalk and passenger amenities (shelters, benches, 
trash receptacles, vending machine, _etc .. . ), P._edestrian and business access and public information. 

SR 10 (Atlantic Blvd) Resurfacing from Brookview to Kernan, Duval. FIN: 430546-1-52-01, $2.3M, 12/2014 to 08/2015 
Reference: FDOT: Brian Bento_n, P.E. (904) 360-5544 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Pay Item 3R project that included milling and resurfacing, drainage improvements, signalizations, 
full depth reconstruction, sidewalk, signing, pavement marking, pedestrian access and public information. 

CR 214 East, from SR 100 t9 CR 315C,, Keystone, Clay County- FOOT; FIN: 426229-1-52-01, $1.3M, 10/2009 to 04/2010 
Reference: FDOT: Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559~9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Lump sum design-build ARRA contract including 6.524 miles resurfacing with shoulder 
treatment/construction, drainage improvements, highway signing and pavement markings, guardrail, highway lighting and other 
incidental construction. 

SR 15 {US 17) at Kingsley Ave., Clay County 7 FOOT; FIN: 426231-1-52-01, $352K, 10/2009 to 05/2010 
Reference: FDOT: Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Lump sum design-build ARRA contract including mill and resurface with widening, drainage 
improvements, ADA ramp improvements and traffic signal installation - State Road 224 (Kingsley Avenue) at the intersection of US 17 in 
Orange Par!<. 

SR 55 (US 19) from Lebanon Station to Otter Creek, Levy County- FOOT; FIN: 210376-6-52-01 / 210376-4-52-01, $8.2M, 02/2009 
to 01/2010 
Reference: FDOT: Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 



' ' 

Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface 14.096 miles including, shoulder treatment/construction, turnout 
construction, drainage improvements, traffic signal improvements, highway signing, guardrail, bridge barrier railing, three-beam retrofit, 
and other incidental construction. 

SR 20 (US 27)- FOOT Lake City; FIN: 210669·5·52-01, $8,8M, 01/2008 to 08/2008 
Reference: FOOT Reference: Jason Bordner (386) 961-7050; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; 8 Mile, Rural 2 lane mill and resurface project including: minor widening, ADA sidewalk 
improvements, drainage and highway signing improvements, along with other incidental construction, Lump Sum Project. 

SR 55 (US 19), Levy County- FOOT; FIN: 210376-2-52-01 / 210376-5-52-01, $6.5M, 09/2007 to 03/2009 
Reference: FOOT: Lori Will iams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface 9.858 miles including base work, shoulder treatment/construction, turnout 
construction, drainage improvements, curb & gutters, traffic signals, highway lighting, signing, guardrail, bridge barrier railing, three
beam retrofit, sidewalks/bicycle path, and other incidental construction. 

SR 24 Cedar Key, Levy County- FOOT; FIN: 210384-3-52-01, $5.4M, 09/2007 to 03/2008 
Reference: FOOT: Michael Sandow, P.E. (386) 961 -7577; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface 7.14 miles including base work, shoulder treatment/construction, turnout 
construction, drainage improvements, curb & gutters, traffic signals, highway signing, guardrail, bridge barrier railing, three-beam retrofit, 
and pavement markings. 

SR 25 (US 441), Alachua County- FOOT; FIN: 207849-8-52-01, $10.3M, 05/2007 to 01/2008 
Reference: FOOT: William McQuaig (Retired); Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Four-lane, mill and resurface 11.462 miles including tum lane construction, reworking of 
shoulders, drainage improvements, highway singing and chemical grout soil stabilization. 

SR 45 North (SR 500 to Alachua County Line), Levy County- FOOT; FIN: 210432-3-52-01, $4.7M, 10/2006 to 06/2007 
Reference: FOOT: Michael Sandow, P.E. (386) 961-7577; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface 13.089 miles including base work, construction of paved shoulders, 
shoulder rework, drainage improvements; turnout construction, curb and gutter, guardrail, highway signing, and other incidental 
construction. 

SR 15 (US 1)-FDOT; Duval County: FIN: 210669-2-52-01, $6.1M, 06/2006 to 01/2008 
Reference: FOOT: Shannon Mobley (904) 360-5554; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface project including: 2' and 5' shoulder widening, turnout construction, super 
elevation corrections, weigh station and agricultural inspection station improvements, drainage improvements, guardrail, and three beam 
retrofit. Surety Company completed this project with alternate work forces after default of the original contractor. 

SR 45 South (Marion County Line to a Pt. South of SW 5th Ave.), levy County- FOOT; FIN: 210432-2-52-01, $6.2M, 04/2006 to 
03/2007 
Reference: FOOT: William McQuaig (Retired) ; Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Project Administrator / Senior Project Engineer; Mill and resurface 11.7 40 miles including base work, ARMI layer, 
construction of paved shoulders, shoulder rework, drainage improvements; turnout construction, traffic signals with loop assembly, highway 
signing and other incidental construction. 

SR 331 (Williston Road), Alachua County- FOOT; FIN: 207734·3·52-01 / 207849-7-52-01, $6.6M, 09/2005 to 06/2006 
Reference: FOOT: William McQuaig (Retired); Lori Williams, P.E. (352) 381-4200; KCCS: Glenn Ivey, P.E. (863) 559-9549 
Role on Project: Project Administrator; Mill and resurface project, four lanes with urban and rural sections. Adjacent to the University of 
Florida. 

Completed over 23 projects as a Project Engineer/Administrator 
Florida Department ofTransportation, Gainesville Construction (1996 • 2002): 
Role on Project: Project Engineer/ Project Manager, Level V / P.E. Trainee 

EDUCATION 
BSCE University of Florida, 1994, MSCE University of Florida, 2000 

REGISTERA TION 
Florida Professional Engineer License No.: 53941 

CERTIFICATION, TIN# N24211970; CTQP QC Manager, CTQP Asphalt Paving - Levels 1& 2, ATSSA Maintenance of Traffic -
Advanced, Critical Structures Construction Issues - Self Study. FDEP Qualified Stormwater Management Inspector 



-~u'n.28.2016 01:44 PM 

City of Jacbonvlll• fltach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3"' StrMt 
Jtckaonvillt leach, Ftorlda 32250 

Appllcatlon for Appointment to C4ty Boards 

'PtC1RP1f 1Df2(matlon (Please prtnt or ty~) 

PAGE. 1/ 2 

2 

City Clerk 
--...-,;...._ ..... __ ._ 

Name: &a.. I'' .. , (~ . ./ e 1~· Hom.a Phan•~ ~ .... ~o ~?.!.? ~?.:i..~111 
7 

Hom• AddrNI: 3:totJ Oc ee,, jJr s 
E·Mall Addre11: fr('cl t'((_j_, ~ (lur,~~1..st:, l'J·e./ Cell Phone: ~$ ... 0 3 Z2 VZ./ !J-
Occupatlon: 1-(I/ S.t :c, 'g t:·1 Bu1lnN1 Phone: -------

eu,tn ... Name: ----------------------------

Bualn .. AddrtH: -------------------------------

Elfallzlfltv - f'lntt c;1,c1, 
Are you a resid'ent of'the ctty7 
Are yoiJ a regl1tered voter? 
Oo you own property In the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Ar$ you currently 5eNlng on a Board? 
Have you bfaen convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil tights been restored'? 
Havll Y(IIJ ftled bankl\lptcy? 

Yet 
Yea 
Yea 
v .. ,,. .. 

No 
No 
No 

' 
Potential Confllct of lnter11t: Have you ever been engaged In the management/owne~any business 
enterprise that has a flnencial tnterest with the City of Jackaonvllle. Seaeh? Yee ~ · 

If yea, please provide details: 

'1b: lilRlrdl (Plet•t lndlcat. )"OUI' prefeft(t(Jea by ranlt(ng • Mttoi. your Prlm•ry Cl!Olc• With a "1'~ Secomta,v cholc• With• ".2", 

IE-1-.......... ,....;;;•;.;;;.oa=nl.;;..! .;;.cof:...:;.Ad.o:;;&.;;i~=·tm=•n=t-------11 [_I Plannlna Camml•lon 1 
LJ. 

1 

Com.,,unltv Redev,1oement Aa•noi _ L .J!!D,lon TN ___ tt=•.;;;..•-----------') 
P•aa•ef'let thttype of City m•tlnga you have attended:------------------

QuaJlflCIIIPnt (lriflrtt t1escrtl>fl lt»df/C e~p,,lf/at,-ablHtles, orqu1111t1cettonsJ~~--------------

Board Appllcatlon with Deaorlptlon of Board• - 201 e Page 1 of2 



. ~u~.~8.£Ulo Ol:45 PM PAGE. 2/ 2 
" 

Appllcation for Appointment to City Boards (,ontJ 

§tatt B.uenla&-8.t9&df'!m1nts 
Section 7$).80, Florida Statute$, r.equiros that the Cl~ annually submit .. report to the S~etary of s• d~dosrny 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board membor, and elected officials. Please circle the eppn:,pclato 
responses. 

BISI 
-;-;:..:...,....--;:.;::.::::..~;::..,_ 

i!D!llr 
r-fema1e 

.~ 

I .... Afr~ 

r- AsiM'Pacif"to Islander 
(~.~~~-- -..) 

r-Hspanic 

r ~can lndfar#Jaskan Nafi119 r t,bt ~ 

c ~.ti,;.;.~.~- :> 
rve.s 

(·-~t:·~ -~.:: .... ,) 

Aortda'& Pubtlc R~ Law, Ctq>ter l19, t:torlda Stal.Utet, iCa'88: •tt Is tfl& s,olicy of Uris •• that· .it stat.$-, 
county, and municipal recorde shan al all times be open for a personal Inspection by any peraonJ' Your application 
when filed will become a public rec::ord and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a . 
bOard of any potltical aubdlvlston (txcept members of solely advisory bodlea) and ell members Of bodies exercising · 
planning o, 200fng. aro requited to ff$ a financlaf diacto5UM form {form1) WIWn 30 days aftet ~ntrn$\l and. 
afMU«iltf ~-at. f<rr .~ d~~··1he a~1l°M-l!II'~ ·• i,~ed by·~t:r ., 1-2. ~ .~. 

I underatand that tr I am eppolnted to one of th& City's boards, f wlll be required to flla a financial disclosure form ~ 
Form 1, as deSCfibed above, and I am wmrng to comply with this requlrem.ent. 

I understand that any falae. Incomplete. or misleading Information given by ma on the eppllcatlon Is sufficient ceuee 
r«ret0('-tiM ot· fflk. ~~- t ·undtn;.istttt .an<t aqM tmt .any wd\ ftlf~. h:a~. or .m~din9 ~latiOn : 
dlacover$d on thl~ a-pplieatiOn at "1fly titne aft&r api,ctntment ~ a eo,rd may l"e!utt tn my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Addltlonally, If appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwis.e fulfill the duties of t~e office. 

Appllcatlc:,ns ere submitted lo th$. City Council when vacancies occur and art effectlVI! for twa ywa from ~te of 
compJeMn. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facte to be true, c~ct, and complete. 
·authorize a criminal baekground check. Jj / l 

I ( l.n--t-,~•i 
&- Z.'(-/t .. ~ 

Date Appllcant's-+1-gn"""'a'""'tu-re'"'"· ---------

Addltlonally I hereby 

. , ··,::.: ·.'·:·:::,.:,,. · ~ ·- · .,.: _.:.:.;~<\'\:< ·::·':r.~;.:'(~ · · ,;<·.,· ~~-~'.rioi'~·btloW:..·st:lltju.,,·:··:· )'.>/ / .. · : .. _.,. :: >;:., ..... ~_.,, :: .......... 2:'\ :··:\· < ·· . ·.·. 

Oate appllcatlon received.: --------------

Interviewed on: -----------------

EliQlbla for appalnttnent Yt• Na If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: ----------------

Appointed to: -----------------

Appolnt$d to: ----------------

Appointed to: ------------------

Board Applloatlon with Description of Boards - 2018 

Date: ---...-------
Date: ----------
Date: -·--------

Page2of2 



city of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

" 0 .• ~·,· 

Personal Information 

f Rcceiv,. <1 

AUu 1 ~ Li! !,1 I 
Application for Appointment to City Board~ . ; .. .. .. . , . . i 

(Please print or type) [} .< •0 ·_·. ; : : • •• t -~ '; ·.: } 

Name: Samuel Hall,Jr .. _______________ _ Home Phone: 904-504-4243 ___ _ 

Home Address: 404 3rd Ave. North 32250 --------------------------
E -Ma ii Address: samhalldist2@gmail.com. ________ _ FAX: ------------

Business: Retired _________________ _ Business Phone: 904-504-4243 __ _ 

Business Address: PO Box 330042 Atlantic Beach 32233 _________________ _ 

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? X Yes No If yes, length of time: 2.5 years 
Are you a registered voter? X Yes No If yes, what County: Duval County 
Do you own property in the City? X Yes No If yes, address: 404, 406, and 414 3rd Ave N. 
Do you hold a public office? Yes X No If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes X No If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes X No If yes, Board Name: 

Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Have your civil rights been restored? Yes X No If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes x No 

If yes, please provide details: ---------------------------------

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a "1", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications) Leadership skills, experience serving on boards as a member and as chair, 

was employed at Fortune 500 companies where I worked within groups to achieve common goals. ______________ _ 

Education: BS degree in Biology and Chemistry Minor ______________________ _ 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

x African-American 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 

Caucasian 
Hispanic 
Not Known 

Gender 

Female 
x Male 

Physically Disabled 

Yes 
X No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1 , as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. 
authorize a criminal background check. / 

Date ' ' 

/ . 
' /'A: 'u,n,µe, 

A 13lie::ant's Signatur 

-Please do not write below- Staff use 

Additionally I hereby 

I 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Not eligible for appointment 

II 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Page 2 of 3 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------



' City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: 
(' 
)(,~~ "- Home Phone: 7 Y 'l icJ · ? '7 · , 3 

Home Address: \ 1 'i3 1 L ""' ~ e.. <,. , ---------- --------- --------- ------
E -Ma ii Address: :.. · t,e.~ '~ •- FAX: __ 'i_u_'f_ -_?._·..,_· -~ _ J_'i_'_I _I __ 

Business: -~--.-+-~~-----.......... - ~- ~~~l~-- -' )_t_"_!_\!_SL_' ,__t _l<... Business Phone: ~) .:.J'l 2 "tq · 1"j ~ > 
Business Address: ______________ s: ___ J_ .. _ ... "1_1 

__ ~ __ " ___ "'--_- ---~-----------

Eligibility 

Are you a resident of the City? 
time: 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 
Have you filed bankruptcy? 

, Ye§..., 
-,2.1 , r -

No 

No ~ 
<.Y_d 
Yes 
Yes 

N9 
C No 1 

( ~ 
Yes (No 1 

Ye& <f.J _E., 1 

Yes ;.:iq_ J @ · 
Yes ( No, 

If yes, length of 

If yes, what County: __ \\.-_ \_v_..,_A_ ~ -,------,1-' _ 
If yes, address: n :\ 1 t · I~ cl -s t.1

. ,:\--:1;_ I 2511 ~ I ~-

If yes, Office name: ------------
If yes, position: 

If yes, Board Name: -----------
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: ------------

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes No 1 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking - denote your first choice with a "1", second choice with a "2", etc.) 

ment Agenc 
I Planning Commission 

Pension Trustee 

Please list City meetings you have attended: ---'v,'--.. :_n-,--, u_..,_ 1_--'t::,==-=...,--=' .>..;'.,.....:.)lc....t/_ ..,_J_ -"-1---+-=-.....<"-j-"-.,rt.~ -"-(._- _ ~ __ /_:>....:le...<_ • .,_, ... _1..:..1-_ 

t .._. ""' ,""?' ; ~ .._J v.... C"B ... ~ " ~ £).I ~ \ t \,-.l- y € "-'l l 

(1 ' • Ll . 
Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, a~ilities or q'!alificat:::ns) I\& cJ b b:;t~ n,. :_t;/ t..1 1 S c.-t ~ 

73 ,. , ;<,.,,,, c., ,,t, /J (v v1. ~u t/~,A f~ ·l}~,a.;:1-h-J <li.,.Jvu (.:~-, J {<,,,,,-1Jl (0 .,../. 

-----,----.., Received 

APR 2 7 20\6 
hcksonv;Jlc b1 J< II Crrt ( ' " i 

Page 1 of 3 



Education: t ,-

; • ' (1 .. ... , ,_ 

Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

(( 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

African-American 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 

< Caucasian 
Hispanic 
Not Known 

Gender Physically Disabled 

Yes 
No· 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes . 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

y/n Ln 
Date ' 1 1 

1--
Applicanf's Signature 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Page 2 of3 

II 



QUALIFICATIONS OF SAMUEL A. LANGHAM 

Educational Background 

• M.B.A., Finance and International Business, University of Florida, May, 1988. 

• B.S.B.A., Economics, University of Florida, December, 1984. 

• Postgraduate Coursework 

Real Estate Principles and Practices (Course II) 
licensed Residential Appraisal Course my firm (ABl) 
Residential Construction for Agents 
Commercial Real Estate Brokerage 
Standards of Professional Practice, Part A (410) 
Standards of Professional Practice, Part B (420) 
Appraisers' Florida Core Law 
Certified General Appraiser Course (AB3) 
The Appraisal of Partial Acquisitions 
USPAP/Law Update 
Advanced Income Capitalization (510) 
Basic Income Capitalization (310) 
Appraisal Procedures (120) 
Appraisal Principles (110) 
The Appraisal of Real Estate Appraisal 10th vs. 11th Edition 
Highest and Best Use (520) 
Advanced Applications (550) 
Advanced Sales Comparison & Cost Approach (530) 
USPAP/Law Update (ACE 2093) 
Report Writing & Valuation Analysis (540) 
Standards of Professional Practice, Part C (430) 
General Demonstration Appraisal Report Writing Seminar 
Appraising Conservation Easements and Other Less Than Fee Interest 
Appraising Wetlands 
Environmental Hazards Impact on Real Estate 
USPAP and Florida Law Update 
Eminent Domain 
Law of Easements: Legal Issues and Practical Considerations 
Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions 
Timberland Appraisal Seminar 
Appraisal Independence: What Appraisers and Bankers Need to Know 
Residential Subdivision Analysis 
15-Hour National USPAP (1410N) 
Business Practices and Ethics (420) 
Valuation of Wetlands 
Valuation of Conservation Easements 
Appraisal of Local Retail Properties 
The Appraiser as an Expert Witness: Preparation and Testimony 
litigation Appraising: Specialized Topics and Applications 
National Association of Realtors Code of Ethics Course 
General Demonstration Report Writing 
7-Hr National USPAP Update/Supervisory Appraiser/3-Hr Florida Law 
Site Analysis and Valuation 
Appraising Historic Properties 
Retail Center Analysis for Financing 
Appraisal of Real Estate 14th Edition 
Appraising Cell Towers 
Broker's Continuing Education 
General Demonstration Report-Capstone Program 
Beyond The Headlines - The new Real Estate Economy 
Appraiser's Continuing Education 
Beyond The Headlines - The new Real Estate Economy 
The Valuation of Bank Branches 
Right-of-Way-Three Case Studies with Two Approaches to Value 
Review of Court Decisions on Valuations - Lessons Learned 

Licenses/Certifications 
• Florida State-Certified General Real E

1

state Appraiser No. RZ2274 

• Florida Real Estate Broker BK 393794 

• Private Pilot 

'); LANGHAM APPRAISALS, INC. 

Real Estate Institute 
Real Estate Institute 
Real Estate Institute 
Real Estate Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

Real Estate Institute 
IRWA 

Real Estate Ed. Specialist 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

McKissock Data Systems 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

RE Institute of the SE 
RE Institute of the SE 
RE Institute of the SE 
RE Institute of the SE 

CLE International 
Lorman Educational Services 

Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

Al/American Bankers Ass. 
Bert Rogers 

Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institutes 

NAR 
Appraisal Institute 

Appraisal University 
Appraisal University 
Appraisal University 
Appraisal University 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

Bert Rogers Schools 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

Ed Klopfer 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 
Appraisal Institute 

4/92 
5/93 
2/94 
3/94 
6/94 
6/94 
6/94 
6/95 
10/96 
11/96 
2/97 
3/97 
3/97 
3/97 
6/97 
9/97 
9/97 
5/98 
10/98 
12/98 
10/99 
5/00 
10/00 
10/00 
10/00 
10/00 
10/01 
3/03 
3/03 
2/04 
2/04 

11/04 
8/06 
9/06 
9/07 
1/08 
9/09 
10/09 
10/09 
10/12 
10/12 
11/12 
11/12 
11/12 
11/12 
11/13 
12/13 
2/14 
5/14 
9/14 
11/14 
9/14 
9/14 
10/14 
11/14 

Page I of3 



QUALIFICATIONS OF SAMUEL A. LANGHAM 

Professional Experience 

• Managing Member, REABC, LLC. 2014- Present. Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

• President, LANGHAM APPRAISALS, INC. 1998 - Present. Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

• Appraiser, Broom, Moody, Johnson & Grainger, Inc. 1993 -1997. Jacksonville, Florida. 

• Broker/Consultant, Langham, S.A. & Co. 1992 - 2002. Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

• Consultant, Ernst & Young. 1988 -1991. Jacksonville, Florida. 

• Realtor Associate, Property Care Services, Inc. 1989 -1990. Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

• Regulatory Analyst, Gulf Power Company. 1987 Summer Internship. Pensacola, Florida. 

• Realtor Associate, Ed .Baur Inc., Realtors. 1982 -1984. Gainesville, Florida. 

Memberships and Designations 

• A Member Appraisal Institute 
• Member International Right-Of-Way Association 

• Eagle Scout 

Appraisal Experience 
• Single & Multi-tenant Office Buildings • Commercial & Retail Properties 

• Industrial & Office/Warehouses Properties • Apartment Buildings 

• Water and Wastewater Utilities • Subdivisions 

• Residences of all types • Parcels Under Condemnation 

• Easement Parcels • Partial Interests 

• Conservation Lands • Waterfront Commercial & Residential Properties 

• Upland and Coastal Wetlands • Retention Ponds & Special Purpose Properties 

• Qualified expert witness in federal court • Gas Stations and Convenience Stores 

Consulting Experience 
• Des Moines, Iowa. 98/99 fiscal year utility computations. 

• Julington Creek Plantation Utility Company, St. Johns County, Florida. Utility valuation. 
• Shadowrock Utility, Duval County, Florida. Utility valuation. 

• Des Moines, Iowa. FY 94 model revisions & FY 92 ICA true-up calculations. 

• Conway, South Carolina. Water & sewer utility financial plan, cost-of-service and rate study. 
• North Charleston Sewer District, Charleston, South Carolina. Water utility feasibility study. 

• Grand Strand Water & Wastewater Auth., Conway, South Carolina. Cost-of-service and rate study. 

• Wichita Water and Wastewater Dept., Kansas. Financial plan, cost-of-service and rate study. 

• Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. Cost-of-service and revenue sufficiency study. 

• Des Moines, Iowa. Cost-of-service and sewer rate study. 

• Spartanburg Water System, Spartanburg, South Carolina. Cost-of-service and rate study. 
• Delray Beach, Florida . Cost-of-service and rate study. 

• South Broward Utility, Inc., Miami Lakes, Florida. Consultant during rate case before the PSC. 
• Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority. Utility valuation (GOU, West Coast Division). 
• Lincolnton, North Carolina. Water and wastewater rate study. 

• Saint Andrews Public Service District\ of Charleston, South Carolina. Wholesale wastewater user fee study. 
• Orange County, Florida. Utility customer service operational review and management audit. 
• Commonwealth of Virginia. Procurenient and property review for the EPA. 
• Orange County, Florida. Solid waste pickup and recycling program rate structure review. 

• Seminole County, Florida. Water & wastewater utility customer service procedures study. 
• Phoenix, Arizona. Development of a water resources acquisition fee. 

LANGHAM APPRAISALS, INC. Page 2 of3 



QUALIFICATIONS OF SAMUEL A. LANGHAM 

Partial List of Clients 

Amresco 
AmSouth Bank of Florida 
Nations Bank 
Baptist Hospital 
Boatmen's First National Bank 
City of Jacksonville Beach 
Clay County Bank 
Crestar Bank 
CSX Real Property 
Damber Management Ltd. 
Fabco Properties, Inc. 
First Union National Bank of Jacksonville 
Florida Communities Trust 
Florida Medical Association 
General American Life Insurance Company 

United Technologies 
Hanover Insurance Company 

LANGHAM APPRAISALS, INC. 

ICF Kaiser Engineers 
Jacksonville Port Authority 
JEA 
Jacksonville Transportation Authority 

Jones Edmunds & Associates, Inc. 
Korpacz & Associates, Inc. 
National Park Service 
Norfolk Southern Corporation 
Schmitz Development Co. 
SouthTrust Bank 
SunTrust Bank 
The Nature Conservancy 
Tri-Net Corporation Realty Trust, Inc. 
US Army Corp of Engineers 
US Department of Agriculture, FmHm 
Various Attorneys and Private Land Owners 
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 

Page 3 of3 



City of .Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rt1 Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247 .. 6256 
E-mail: cityclerk@iaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

' L Name: __ v_· _c .... _s_o_,'""' ____ C:._"'_e _________ _ Home Phone: ___ l..f_l_A __ _ 
Home Address: _I __:,3"-'=8_1'---'-F>_l -=;.o._n_t_c .. _t_i__,,c"-1 '--'r,'--"(""'?""'Li.._' -'-k-'-~--o__,_r-_; ..... \{--"c".=~--'s"'-:·_o_ ... _ .. _+_\ri_-,-, __ J_&_:..._x __ i3_. _<::_C_'-C._- i, 

Cell Phone: 9(}L/- ~?~ - 6 oS? E-Mail Address: J l~ 5 c, o eD r-e.f ~ o t<'7' C e , t f .5 

Occupation: ___ S-'. =-C.._ .... __,_\ """'e:"--=5..,"--· -----------

,II ,1, 

Business Phone: 

Business Name: kc._p S G '-t 1- C..C:... 

Business Address: /Jg/ !")kn fc .. ),e,n O(.dc:, ur/ve S~}L .. ..J-h 
) 

Eligibility - Please Circle 
..... --. 

Are you a resident of the City? ( ~ 
Are you a registered voter? t~ 

Do you own property in the City? r~ 

Do you hold a public office? Yes 
Are you employed by the City? Yes 
Are you currently serving on a Board? '- ·_Ye~ 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes 

No 
No 
No 
.. . ) 

~ 
' ~_N_g..) 

No 

' - "!-~. 
s.l!V 

If yes, length of time: __ :;.../-=O_· _'-'-.,_{...;;<'...ce_t ,_.--..;:;S ____ _ 

If yes, what County: __ ....,D.c....c.l_-'l. ___ v_ .... __,_l __ ___,,-------::--
If yes, address: / .3f/ /J/1:,,..fe../.,a ,,.. c'lti k.f 1)r. ~ 

If yes, Office name: ------------
If yes, position: ---=----.--,--------
If yes, Board Name: ..... P-.._rc"'"'::."'""•-"-)_.,."'-,,-~--"-H_O---",A ___ _ 
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: ------------

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owne~_ship of. any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes <. ~ 
If yes, please provide details: -------------------------------

City Boards (I 'tease fndicat11 your preferences by ranlllng. d, te )' first cholc Ith a "1", second choke with a "2", etc} 

/ Plannin Commission 
mentAgenc Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: _..;:("'";_e2.....;."_e_r_~·_l_L=1

"-'i..,_~~..,e---..:::'=
1 

' '""'v....;.fl_c.._· ·_, \ __ ~._v\-'-e_c.._!-_;., __ ,s-+-lr __ 
\ J 

Qua I ifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifications).--'W;...,..;;;.r.i_,-"\-_· --'l.,,j:;__•--'\-..,_~-'----t..c::=..;..:..-h.:--&_' _t-_c:.._\-=..s;...,...._C.=· ..a.( _""-_lo~~ 
c'":Jh.'.11.Arc . ...,\--.:s ~\-c... \\;-.:i5 . :~ ... \;~ ;."'J ... ,.~ h- ~ c, .~.,_ \,._ (;~ ... ~\--i le~, .,....,_s 

J 

Board Appointment Application - April 2012 Page2 of2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the 
appropriate responses. 

Race 

r~casian 

r Hispanic 

Gender Physically Disabled 

1Yes r African-Arrerican 
vrb/ r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r Arrerican Indian/Alaskan Nati'-1:? 1 Not Known 

II 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above. and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally , if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion . 

By submitting this form , I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. , 

Date 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: ----------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 
Explanation: 

II 

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Board Appointment Application - April 2012 Page 2 of2 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3111 Street 
Jacksonvllle Beach, Florida 32250 

Receive 

NovJ.I,, 
JJckson,~ ,h 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247..&256 
E-mail: cltyclerk@Jaxbchfl.net 

Application for Appointment to City Boards 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Name: Justin Michael Lerman Home Phone: 561.926.0214 

Home Address: 1732 71h Street North Jacksonville Beach FL. 32250 

E-Mail Address: justinlerman@gmail.com 

Business: University of North Florida 

Business Address: 1 UNF Drive Jacksonville FL 32224 

Ellglbllltv 

Are you a resident of the City? XO Yes 0 No 
Are you a registered voter? XO Yes 0 No 
Do you own property in the City? XO Yes 0 No 
Do you hold a public office? 0 Yes XO No 
Are you employed by the City? 0 Yes XO No 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 0 Yes XO No 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 0 Yes XO No 
Have your civil rights been restored? 0 Yes 0 No 

FAX: N/A 

Business Phone: 904.620.5299 

If yes, length of time: 1 Year 
If yes, what County: U.S.A 
If yes, address: 1732 7111 Street North Jacksonville Beach 
If yes, Office name: 
If yes, position: 
If yes, Board Name: 
If yes, provide date: 
If yes, provide date: N/A 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged In the management/ownership of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? 0 Yes XO No 
If yes, please provide details: -------------------------------

City Boards (Please indicate your preferences by ranking- denote your first choice with a ·1·. second choice with a "2", etc.} 

2 I~ t:::;:~• r=::aoleA rf1=i. I 
Please 11st City meetings you have attended: I attended a city meeting on February 07. 2011 regarding special permits to 
sell alcohol past midnight. 

Quallflcatlons (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities or qualifica/ions) 

Good organizational and negation skills 
Excellent written and spoken communication skills 
Logical approach to solving problems 
Team player 
Strong computer skills 
Equal opportunist 

Page 1 of 3 



...... 

Please see attached resume for experience and education. 

Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.BO, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State 
disclosing race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please check the 
appropriate boxes. 

II 

Race 

D African-American 
D Asian/Pacific Islander 
D American Indian/Alaskan Native 

XO Caucasian 
D Hispanic 
D NotKnown 

Gender 

D Female 
XO Male 

Physically Disabled 

D Yes 
XO No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your 
application when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed 
member of a board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of 
bodies exercising planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after 
appointment and annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida 
Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient 
cause for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete or misleading 
information discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if 
appointed, I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Council when vacancies occur and are effective for two years from date of 
completion. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Dater I 

Please do not write below - Steff use 

Page 2 of 3 

11 



EDUCATION 

2014-Present 

2012-2013 

2007-2011 

EXPERIENCE 

2013-Present 

2013-2015 

2012-2013 

2011-2012 

2007-2011 

2007-2011 

Spring 2011 

Justin Lerman 
1732 7th Street Nrnth, Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

j.le1man@w1(edu 
(561)926-0214 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH FLORIDA 
Doctor of Education in Educational Leadership 
UNIVERSITY OF NORTH FLORIDA 
Masters of Educational Leadership and Technology 
UNIVERSITY OF NORTH FLORIDA 
Bachelor of Arts in Education 
• Graduating GPA 3.5 

Jacksonville, FL 

UNF CENTER FOR INSTRUCTION & RESEARCH TECHNOLOGY Jacksonville, FL 
Coordinator of Distance Learning Training & Support 
• Distribute distance learning course offerings and schedules and web sites where they can be accessed 
• Maintain web sites and online databases used for distance learning programs 
• Communicate to faculty and students any change or updates to distance learning courses and materials 
• Support Faculty and Staff on Blackboard related issues 
UNFCOLLEGE OF EDUCATION Jacksonville, FL 
Adjunct Professor 
• Used a wide variety of teaching methods to ensure student success 
• Provide personalized feedback for all assignments submitted 
UNFIT DEPARTMENT 
Help Desk Technician 
• Provided tier one support by phone and in person as needed to minimize downtime. 
• Perfom1ed troubleshooting and implemented solutions, documented help desk tickets/resolutions 
• Worked with C techs, reimaging computer labs 
KELLY EDllCA TIONAL STAFFING 
Substitute Teacher (Grades K-12) 
• Filled in for absent teachers in emergency and on short and medium tem1 assignments 
UNIVERSITI' OF NORTH FLORIDA OSPREY TELEVISION 
Osprey TV Station Manager 
• Responsible for hiring, managing and maintaining a staff 
• Managed the budget 
Osprey TV Technical Director 
• Created and maintained otlicial Osprey TV website 
• Responsible for maintaining servers 
CampGesher 
Camp Technical Director 
• Responsible for hiring, managing and maintaining a staff 
• Create and present a budget based on the guidelines of the Finance Committee 
• Track and record actual spending and compare to budget weekly 
• Oversee all transportation into and out of the camp 
• Create daily schedule for campers and staff 
Head of Waterfront 
• Responsible for health and safety procedures of the camp 
• Attended leadership seminar in Waynesboro, Pennsylvania to improve leadership skills 
• Led team in teaching advanced swimming levels to campers - course had a I 00% pass rate 
EDUCATIONAL INTERNSHIP 
Kings Trail Elementmy School 
• Worked with benchmark data to create small groups and to develop future lessons 
• Developed and taught lessons while following a focus calendar 
• Developed individual behavior plans 
• Administered and graded Developmental Reading Assessments (DRAs) 
• Administered pre- and post-tests and analyzed data 

Jacksonville, FL 

Jacksonville, FL 

Jacksonville, FL 

Ontario, Canada 

Jacksonville, FL 



.,. 

SKILLS AND ACTIVITIES 

• Proficient in BMC Remedy, TeamDynamix, Microsoft Office, Final Cut Pro, computer hardware repair, Altiris, Microsoft 
SharePoint, Blackboard, E-Leaming, Instructional Design, Technical Writing, and Leaming Theory 

• Graduate of the Illinois Online Network, Master Online Teacher Certification Program 
• Certified Quality Matters Program, Apply the QM Rubric 
• Certified Blackboard Learn Trainer 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3n1 Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904} 247-6256 
E..m2II: cJtyderk@Jaudlchfl.n&t 

Application for Appointment to City Boar s 
Personal Information (Pfass-3 print c, typa) 

ECEIVEO 
MAY 2, 20f6 

Nmw~: Michael Mccann taom'E> PhonL. 904-~ ~)(sf~~~ile) 

Homa Address: 2311 Oceanwalk Dr. West Atlantic Beach, Fl 32233 

E-P~·Waill Address: mike@resource-group.net FAX: - --- ------! B\l.~\iW-$$: The Resource Gcaup B\li$\Mli>s. Poooo-:. 9Q4-.242.-9'\95 ex\. 2QS 

Leus3ngssi Addresg: 135 Second Ave. North Suite #3 Jacksonville Beach, Fl 32250 

Eligibility 

Ara you a resident of lhe Ciiy? 
f:.r.e ~ a feg~tered 'itat-&'? 
Do you own property In the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by nw Ciiy? 
Are you currently seuving on a Board? 
Have you baen convicted tiJf a felony? 
Hava your civil rights b~ n restored? 
Hgve you filf.i'd bankruptcy? 

Yes 

~ 
Y8S 
Yei; 
Yl1! 
Yes 
Ye$ 

qp 
No 

I 
NIA No 

OE) 

If yes, length of time: - - - - --- ---
t{ '§et., what. Count'J: --- --- - - -
ff yss, address: Office Building - 6 Resident Units 

If yes, Offrcs nama: - ----------
tf yes, pos!Qioo: - --------- - -
If Y£>S, Board Name: ----------
If yes, provide c!lata; - ----------
t1 yes, provide date: - ------ --- 
If yes, provide date: --- --- - -----

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged In the managemenVownerst.e of ry bus inS$S 
enterprise tMt has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes No 

If~~. please provide details: - ---- - ----- --- ------------------

City Boards (Pk,.:ss indicc:;19 ya;r preferences by r:enklng • denols your first chc1c<J with a '1~ SS<:Ond cholcs with a "2~ otc.) 

• ~~ Commission 

Pension Trustee - - ---3 
Please list Ctty meetings you have attended Rezoning hearings/Redevelopment workshops since 2002. 

Qualifications (Brlefiy descr1t;-3 ~ci'iir: e1Cpertise, tlbH :::.,s cr qua11fi~t.011s}_ Significant experience in financial and practical 

feasability for real estate ventures, business plan development, buying and selling companies and startup operations. 

Education. ------·--------- - ------ ------- - --- - ----

See Resume Attached 

' 



MIKE MCCANN 

Mike Mccann is the President and CEO ofThe Resource Group, LLC, a 

Jacksonville-based investment firm. Mike is a seasoned investor and 

entrepreneur who applies research and vision to ident ify and pursue sound 

opportunit ies and then, t hrough strong team leadership, guides his projects 

through a defined management process to meet or exceed projected returns. 

This methodology has allowed Mike to take several ventures from start up to 

significant profitability. He has a proven track record over the past 25 years that 

includes successful businesses built and sold. 

His expertise in marketing and fiscal prudence has proven itself most recently in 

his real estate ventures, and in the past in successful enterprises t hat include 

manufacturing, distribution and product development. In his last such endeavor, 

after selling to a public company, Mike was retained to spearhead product 

development and marketing, eventually taking over as President/Chief Operating 

Officer of a global corporation . He then left to pursue interests in the local real 

estate market in the southeastern U.S. With appropriate partners when prudent, 

Mike continues to develop his portfolio within Florida and beyond. 

In each new endeavor, Mike applies a systematic approach in which key variables 

are identified early and tracked regularly when considering acquisition, 

management, development and disposition of a given asset. This allows M ike and 

his partners to enjoy the maximum return with optimal leverage of t ime, 

expertise and capital. 

Mike has spent the majori ty of his life as a Florida resident and currently lives in 

Atlantic Beach. He has three children and has been married for 25 years. He is 

active in the non-profit community and heads up a family foundation with a 

mission to feed the hungry. 



. ' . 
. 

? 

City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 

Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cit clerk ·axbchfl.net 

RECEIVED 
Application for Appointment to City 

Personal Information (Please print or type) 

ards 
C O 2n1fi 

Name: 
City Clerk 

Home Address: ----'5'--_rv __ l_l_+_L_Ac...:::J:....e.. __ ~_"-1-'o:;__l __________________ _ 

E-Mail Address: 00 ,.. e 5"ko..J ,~_, 1,-~ oA~ wtL co~ 

Occupation: ~ ,,.1 fl.. tc f (l.e N-! v!L 

Business Name: 5 ka:J. lJ A ... ~ Du--r/Jor:,,C, 

Cell Phone: q O 'i 't ls' l.. I .3 7 0 

Business Phone: 1 DI..( ]7?. c:i 77 a 

( Or,J\,) er-..,-, 0.N 

S .-_, I ·11" A '" J..\--_ L '(.) l Business Address: __ .:;c__....;f'l_.;..__--''--u_c.-_~ __ -, ____________________ _ 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? div No If yes, length of time: l 2. :J'S 
Are you a registered voter? ~) No If yes, what County: Dvv-A\.. 

Do you own property in the City? @:> No If yes, address: 5 rJ 11-11-A.J'- ~'101 
Do you hold a public office? Yes ~ If yes, Office name: 
Are you employed by the City? Yes If yes, position: 
Are you currently serving on a Board? Yes $. If yes, Board Name: 
Have you been convicted of a felony? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have your civil rights been restored? Yes If yes, provide date: 
Have you filed bankruptcy? Yes ~ If yes, provide date: 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owne~LR of any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? -Yes No"\ 

----
If yes, please provide details: 

I 

City Boards (Ple,se indicate your preferences by ranking· denote your Primary chofce with a "1", Secondary choice with a "2". 

"2 Plannin Commission 
Comm unit Redevelopment A ency Pension Trustee 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: -----'A--'--'=L_L. __ o....;F __ -n-\..:......;__G:._!I... ___________ _ 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities, or qualificationsJ_ +{)....;..r-=-{-5,-=1c..cc_..,_~ __ <>_(: _ _ E_e _}_t er_· _-_-~_-_A_x_.,_P_e_/!_, c._i-:i _ _ _ 
l 

Education: -------------------------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of 2 



Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 
·---:---,,.___ (r Caucasian _ _, 
- ----r Asian/Pacific Islander r Hispanic 

r American Indian/Alaskan r Not Kno'Ml 

Gender 

r Female 

c-:-.E.Mgte-> 

Physically Disabled 

1 Yes 

~ 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 
discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their application submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council considers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments. 

By submitting this form , I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

Date Applicant's Signature 

Please do not write below - Staff use 

Date application received: ---------------

Interviewed on: --------------------

Eligible for appointment ·ves No If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: -----------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: --------------------

Appointed to: ---------------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: -----------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of 2 



"' ' 

.... , . 

WORK EXPERIENCE 

Jonathan A. McGowan 
5 N 1 ?1h Ave #401 

Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 
(904)982-1330 

President/ Director of Corporate Partnerships and Government Relations 
2014 - Present 
Shooting and Outdoors Convention 

• President of production company organizing a regional firearms, hunting, and outdoors trade 
show in Jacksonville, FL. 

• Created strategic relationships with city and state elected officials 
• Sought out grant funding from government and non-governmental agencies 
• Sought out corporate sponsorships and develop strategic relationships with other companies to 

facility the success of the event. 

President/ Event Production, Government Relations, Media Relations 
2013 - Present 
Better Jacksonville Beach 

• Founder of business organization focused on changing the image of the Jacksonville Beach 
Downtown. 

• Created strategic relationships with local elected officials 
• Developed contacts with local media to get earned media for organization and was the go to 

spokesperson for the area. 
• Organizer/ promoter of the Jax Beach Art Walk and the Jax Beach Classic Car Cruise. 

Talk Show Host/ Radio Personality 
2013-2015 
Straight Shooting w/ Jon McGowan on AM 600/ FM 102.3 

• Host of a weekly, talk radio program focused on Florida Politics and the firearms industry. 
• Interviewed local and state elected officials on issues. 
• Moderated debates for candidates of state and local races. 
• Researched and summarized every bill filed in the Florida legislature. 

Owner 
2009-2015 
McGowan Firearms 

• Owner of firearms retail store in Atlantic Beach, FL 

Political Consultant 
2003 -2009 

• Worked as independent political consultant for campaigns throughout North East and North 
Central Florida regions. Responsibilities include strategy, networking, promoting candidate or 
issue, public speaking, fundraising, media relations, volunteer recruitment, and management. 
Clients include: 

• Business Industry Political Action Committee (BIPAC) 
• Florida Chamber of Commerce 
• Randy Johnson for Florida Chief Financial Officer 
• Doug Gallagher for U.S. Senate 
• Local campaigns 



~ . . . 

LEADERSHIP/ ACTIVITIES 

Office of Mayor-elect Lenny Curry 
Streamlining for Growth & Opportunity Committee Member, 2015 

Jacksonville Regional Chamber of Commerce 
Government Affairs Standing Committee: Member, 2007 - 2009 
JaxBiz: Member, 2008 - 2009 
South Council: Member, 2008 - 2009 
IMPACTjax: Governmental Affairs Committee Chair, 2008 
IMPACTjax: Voice Committee Co-Chair, 2007 
IMPACTjax: Member, 2007 - 2009 

First Coast Tiger Bay Club 
Board Member, 2009 
Member, September 2007 - 2009 

Beaches Business Association, Member, 2007 - 2012 

Jacksonville Beach Gator Club, Member, 2007 - 2014 

Duval County Republican Executive Committee 
Precinct Committeeman, 2005 - 2010 

John McCain for President 
Florida Co-Chair of Young Professionals for McCain, 2008 

EDUCATION 
Bachelors of Arts in Liberal Arts 
December 2006 
Major: Political Science 
University of Florida, Gainesville, FL 

Associates of Arts 
December 2002 
Major: Business Administration 
Florida Community College of Jacksonville, Jacksonville, FL 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 
Life, Health, and Variable Annuity License 2-15, February 2005 
State of Florida 

Real Estate Sales Associate License, March 2005 
State of Florida 

NRA Firearms Instructor, 2009 



City of Jacksonville Beach 
Office of the City Clerk 
11 North 3 rd Street 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida 32250 ' ~ 

, 
Phone: (904) 247-6299 ext 10 
FAX: (904) 247-6256 
E-mail: cjtvclerkl@iaxbchfl.net 

Received 
~ 

Application for Appointment to City Boards APR O 3 2017 
Personal Information (Please print or type) 

Jacksonville B0 ~~,. r.1111 ,., __ ,. 

Name: ··~ iLl. 5T'€:v r..,v__s. Home Phone: ~17-~'-·2 
Home Address: 7.3']_ r1 ,V.i) 8 U 'i._ , ,ul '":f"" ~ ')(" ''?) C .;J_ 

E-Mail Address: 'lJ li\-G.lt$.(~f....,S t-0, r.,l ~~ ~t,,t,4£.~ .. ,, tv~1 Cell Phone: &, lJ:. - ~ 3. f_fl 

Occupation: 'R 1,,# r LC,£_ 

Business Name: ·B '£. H c4-t .s (D E-

Business Address: J..31:. , s, :5 T. IU , 

Eligibility - Please Circle 

Are you a resident of the City? 
Are you a registered voter? 
Do you own property in the City? 
Do you hold a public office? 
Are you employed by the City? 
Are you currently serving on a Board? 
Have you been convicted of a felony? 
Have your civil rights been restored? 
Have you filed bankruptcy? 

No 
No 
No 

($) 
Yes I Yes 
Yes /.._ No 
Yes riv/A 'No 
Yes '-:.:.. ·· @) 

Business Phone: ;J ~t,, - o;;..1¥ 
, !)' 

,Jlt)( . (!; L-ff~ 

If yes, length of time: Mc:s-r c::=:-

lf yes, what County: -D~u__.v"'"''d....-L=------
lf yes, address: _...;.a..,__.,·g'-o_u_..e,..,"'----------
lf yes, Office name: ----------
If yes, position: ------------
If yes, Board Name: ----------
If yes, provide date: ----------
If yes, provide date: -----------
If yes, provide date: __ _ 

Potential Conflict of Interest: Have you ever been engaged in the management/owner~i~ any business 
enterprise that has a financial interest with the City of Jacksonville Beach? Yes ~ 

If yes, please provide details: 

City Boards , .ue ,nc,ute your prefe,e res y, nk ng den 

Please list the type of City meetings you have attended: 

P, • he ce Wlt'i ., I i,;i t/Jo1ce ,,..,th, 2 

BPlannin Commission 
Pension Trustee ______ __. 

e R A, ? tit ,t.',:!, µc._ '> e,.. fry 

Qualifications (Briefly describe specific expertise, abilities, or qua/if/cations) k IVC U Li,J)l, L t,1 f" D l..'l),1JTL 1"'v
1 
A,/ {J 1 • .> /: ~ //CJ ~' ~ 

Ci, o1..u1,t. c,v Sl,v.!,· L Pt:i'P /!..oA .:-II 
1 

·1(}_•'( -rD FuJ~) :lot. UT rc,t.i_s ;u ~T PRot;L Z.>-t S 

Education: ./f5. e.11... ..... Jl ..... t) _ _____ F_L __ l;.~--' c._· f-(----'-l.....,IL __ · ----- --------------
? #12-5 Sf!cflT oF PlfYSrc.5 Vf.?.i.._~....,f_'---------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 Page 1 of 2 



r 

Application for Appointment to City Boards (cont.) 

State Reporting Requirements 

Section 760.80, Florida Statutes, requires that the City annually submit a report to the Secretary of State disclosing 
race, gender, and physical disabilities of board members and elected officials. Please circle the appropriate 
responses. 

Race 

r African-American 

r Asian/Pacific Islander 

r: American Indian/Alaskan 

~aucasian 

r Hispanic 

r Not Kno'M'I 

Gender 

r Female 

P-Male 

Physically Disabled 

r ves 
·f?-No 

Florida's Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, states: "It is the policy of this state that all state, 
county, and municipal records shall at all times be open for a personal inspection by any person." Your application 
when filed will become a public record and subject to the above statute. In addition, any appointed member of a 
board of any political subdivision (except members of solely advisory bodies) and all members of bodies exercising 
planning or zoning, are required to file a financial disclosure form (Form1) within 30 days after appointment and 
annually thereafter, for the duration of the appointment as required by Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

I understand that if I am appointed to one of the City's boards, I will be required to file a financial disclosure form -
Form 1, as described above, and I am willing to comply with this requirement. 

I understand that any false, incomplete, or misleading information given by me on the application is sufficient cause 
. for rejection of this application. I understand and agree that any such false, incomplete, or misleading information 

discovered on this application at any time after appointment to a Board may result in my removal. 

I also understand that all board appointments are for voluntary, uncompensated services. Additionally, if appointed, 
I am able to attend meetings and otherwise fulfill the duties of the office. 

Applications are submitted to the City Clerk and are valid for two years from the date they are submitted. All 
applicants are interviewed following their application submittal. When vacancies occur, the City Council considers 
all eligibile applicants and votes to make board appointments. 

By submitting this form, I declare the foregoing facts to be true, correct, and complete. Additionally I hereby 
authorize a criminal background check. 

1()_ /__,_-/"+..,___ __ _ 
Date 

~ ' ·.· ·. .. 
Pleas~ do not write below - Staff l!Se 

Date application received: -------------- - 

Interviewed on: -------------------

Eligible for appointment Yes No If not eligible for appointment 

Explanation: ----------------

Appointed to: ------------------

Appointed to: ------------- - -----

Appointed to: ------- -------------

Board Application with Description of Boards - 2016 

Date: - - ---------

Date: -----------

Date: ------------

Page 2 of 2 



Board AIHl.licants Listing 

Board Applicant Choice Ranking 
Term 

Recommended Interview Date 
Expiration 

BOA Osewalt Sylvia Re-appointment 8/6/2017 5/15/2017 

Cater Gary 1 
y 1/18/2017 

Dopf William 1 y 7/18/2016 

Snyder Lucas 2 y 5/4/2016 

CRA Nichols Cory Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/3/2017 

Povloski Frances Re-appointment 6/17/2017 4/17/2017 

Cater Gary 2 y 1/18/2017 

Hall, Jr.* Samuel 1 y 1/18/2017 

Langham Samuel 1 y 5/5/2016 

Lee Jason 2 y 4/12/2016 

Lerman Justin 1 y 5/5/2016 

McCann Michael 1 y 6/20/2016 

McGowan Jon 1 y 1/17/2017 

Stevens Bill 1 4/3/2017 

PC Dummont Georgette Re-appointment 6/30/2017 4/3/2017 
Declined 

DeLoach Terry Re-appointment 6/30/2017 

did not return our calls - will 

Chantry Michael 2 remove name from consideration 

Dopf William 2 y 7/18/2016 

Hall, Jr. Samuel 2 y 1/18/2017 

Lee Jason 1 y 4/12/2016 

McGowan Jon 2 y 1/18/2017 

Reid William 2 y Not interested at this time 

Snyder Lucas 1 y 5/4/2016 
reguested to change 
his choice section 
from BOA # I to 

CRA#I rev 5/19/2017 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6268 

Fax: 904.247.6276 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Latham 
Members of the City Council 

FROM: Trish Roberts 

Deputy City Manager 

DATE: May 25, 2017 

RE: Adopt Special Events Policy 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Adopt Special Events Policy. 

BACKGROUND 

The Special Events Policy was initially developed to guide the City's 

management of special events held on public property, primarily in the downtown 

area. In the last five years, the number, size, complexity, and frequency of 

special events have grown, requiring more oversight and management on the 
part of the Police, Fire, Parks and Public Works Departments. 

Staff from those departments have been meeting to develop recommendations 
for changes to the special events policy. The changes are intended to clarify the 
policy and to make it easier to enforce. A summary of major changes to the 

policy was discussed with the City Council at a briefing on May 1, 2017. 

Definitions of City-contracted events and City-produced events have been added 
to the policy based on discussion at the May 1, 2017 City Council meeting. 

The major changes are as follows: 

Definitions of Festival and Special Events rewritten: 

o A Special Event is defined as any festival , meeting, activity, or gathering of 

persons invited by public notice, announcement or advertisement for the 
purpose of witnessing or participating in any common purpose, entertainment 

1 



or exhibition , or purchasing or selling any merchandise, food or beverage or 
consuming any food or beverage upon any City-owned public facility, street, 

sidewalk, alley, park, parking lot or other public place. 

A special event is expected to require, for its safe and successful execution , 
the coordination of City services and the organizer of the event to a degree 
above that which the City provides under ordinary, everyday circumstances. 

Any of the following characteristics may cause a special event to be defined 
as a festival and/or create additional permit requirements: 

• Road closures 
• Amplified music 
• Length of event more than four hours 
• Alcohol sold , distributed or consumed 

o A Festival is defined as an event held in the Facility Rental Area which 
includes alcohol sales, distribution, and/or consumption and is more than four 
hours in length. (A City-produced event is not considered to be a festival.) It 
is the intention of the City of Jacksonville Beach not to allow a concert in the 
Facility Rental Area that includes the sale, distribution or ·consumption of 
alcohol if the event is less than four hours in length. 

o Other option (not included in the proposed policy): Events 
that offer alcohol for sale, distribution or consumption may be 
approved if they meet the following criteria: 

• Length of the event is a maximum of 3 hours, and 
• Location of the event is limited to SeaWalk Pavilion Area 

only (Facil ity Rental Area A) , and 
• There must be one full weekend without a festival prior to 

and following the event (i.e. , one weekend on, one 
weekend off). 

Special Events that involve road closures, the use of amplified music, or the 
distribution, sale, or consumption of alcohol (whether by sale, admission , a 
ticket, a donation, a membership fee , a meal charge, or a gratuity) may cause 
a special event to be defined as a festival or cause additional permitting 
requ irements. 

2 



Definitions of City Produced and City Contracted Events added: 

o A City-produced Event is any event that is produced and managed by the 

City and authorized by the City Manager. 

o A City-contracted Event is an event that does not meet the ordinary 

definition of a festival or special event, is being produced and managed by an 

individual or group, and is held through the sponsorship of the City. They are 

intended to be family-friendly and require the approval of the City Council. 

Examples of such events are Deck the Chairs and the Art Walk. City

contracted events shall not allow alcohol to be sold , distributed or consumed . 

City-contracted events must provide an annual income statement and 

balance sheet prepared by a Certified Public Accountant in sufficient detail to 

demonstrate the sources and uses of revenue generated by the event. Any 

net income from the event must be donated to the City of Jacksonville Beach, 

unless an alternate distribution of the net income is specifically allowed in the 

contract approved by the City Council. 

Definition of Organizer or Producer revised: 

o The holder of the Alcoholic Beverage Temporary License/Permit will be 

considered to be a co-organizer/producer of the event and will be required to 

sign the Special Event Application and the Special Event Permit. 

o Sitting members of the City Council , City boards and agencies, City staff and 

any of their immediate family members, shall have no financial interest, direct 

or indirect, in entities that organize or produce festivals . 

Facility availability and the scheduling of special events clarified: 

o Maximum length of any event which is not a festival is two consecutive days; 

these events may be held between 6:00 am and 10:00 pm. 

o Maximum length of any festival is shown below; these events may be held on 

Friday from 5:00 pm until 10:00 pm; on Saturday from 12:00 (noon) until 10:00 

pm or from Sunday from 12:00 (noon) until 8:00 pm . 

• October through February: two consecutive days 

• March through September: one day 

• Exceptions: 

• Springing the Blues, which is two days 
3 



• Air Show, which is three days 

o In years that the City of Jacksonville Beach hosts the Air Show, no festival 

may be held within two weeks of the Air Show. 

o The area available for paid , priority seating is limited to half of the Seawalk 

Pavilion area and excludes Latham Plaza. Exceptions are made for the Air 

Show and on the Pier during City-produced events. Nothing can be placed in 

or around the paid priority seating area that may obstruct the visibility of others 

outside the area. 

o Delivery and installation of fencing used to define the areas where alcoholic 

beverages will be served is the responsibility of the producer. Fencing may 

not exceed four feet in height. Banners and other materials that may obstruct 

the visibility of others outside the paid priority seating area are not allowed. 

o Reservation dates will be accepted but are not considered to be confirmed 
until after a completed Special Event Application has been received and a 

reservation has been confirmed, in writing , by the City. A confirmed 
reservation is not to be construed as an approval of a special event permit. 

Non-issuance or revocation of a special events permit: cancellation of an 
event clarified: 

o Permit may not be issued if the organizer/producer fails to meet requirements 
stipulated in the Special Events Policy or the Rate Resolution. 

o The City Manager is authorized to deny or cancel a special events permit for 

violations of the Special Events Policy, or for failure to meet the requirements 

of the Special Events Permit. 

o The City of Jacksonville Beach will not be responsible for any economic loss 
or damage resulting from non-issuance or cancellation of a special event 
permit. 

Additional application requirements: 

o An organizer/producer will be required to submit the organization's articles of 
incorporation and registration with the State of Florida Division of Corporations 
(Sunbiz). The most recent IRS Form 990 may be required, where applicable. 

4 



Insurance requirements increased: 

o Minimum amount of insurance coverage for General , Liquor and Automobile 
Liability has been increased to $2 .0 million for each type of coverage. 

Additional requirements for holders of temporary alcohol permit 

o Within 30 calendar days after the completion of a festival , the holder of 

the festival 's temporary alcohol permit is required to: 

a. Submit a delivery bill of lading from the alcohol provider, signed by 
the holder of the festival 's temporary alcohol permit, indicating the 

type and amount of alcohol that was delivered for the festival , and ; 

b. Submit a signed, final accounting and invoice from the alcohol 

provider indicating the amount of alcohol that was billed to the 
holder of the festival 's temporary alcohol permit. 

Following adoption of the Special Events Policy, a resolution adjusting fees for 
special events will be presented for the City Council 's consideration . 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the Special Events Policy dated June 5, 2017. 

5 



Possible amendment to the Special Events Policy, if desired by the City Council: 

Revise the proposed Special Events Policy to add the following language to 
Section I, Subsection D: 

"Events that offer alcohol for sale, distribution or consumption may be approved if 
they meet the following criteria: 

• Length of the event is a maximum of 3 hours, and 

• Location of the event is limited to SeaWalk Pavilion Area only (Facility 
Rental Area A) , and 

• There must be one full weekend without a festival prior to and following 
the event (i.e., one weekend on , one weekend off). " 

6 



SPECIAL EVENTS POLICY 
June 5, 2017IES 

City of Jacksonville Beach 
Parks & Recreation Department 

2508 South Beach Parkway 
Jacksonville Beach, FL 32250 

(904) 247-6157 
www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

-

Special Events Pol-ieJesPolicy & Procedures - June 5, 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

I 



A.mended: 0//16 
Corrected: 01/09/15 
Amended: 
Adopted: 

Special Events PolieiesPolicy & Procedures-June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

II 

12/01/14 
12/16/13 



City of Jacksonville Beach 

SPECIAL EVENTS POLIC:XIES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE ....................................................................................................................... 2:2, 

JI. PROCEDURE FOR SCHEDULING A SPECIAL EVENT .............................................................................. 44 

A. Approval of Application ...... ... ... ........ .. .. ... .... ............. ............................ .... .... ... ... ..... ... ..... ...... ............ ... .. ...... 44 

I. Availability of City Facilities and Scheduling of Events .............................. .. ...... .. .. ........ .. .. .... .... .. 44 

2. Pre-Application Submission .... .... .. ...... ........ ... ........ ... ... ... ................................ ......... ... ....... .... .... .... 66 

B. Denial of Special Event Request ......... ..... ................. .. ... ......... ... ...... .. .......... ...... .... ...... .............................. ... 99 

C. Appeal of Denial of Special Event Request or Cancellation of Special Event Permit .... .. .. ...................... I 0-l-O 

IIJ. APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR HOLDING A SPECIAL EVENT ...................................................... 1111 

JV. 

V. 

VI. 

A. 

B. 

Initial Request ... .......... .......... ....... ............ ...... ............. .. ........... ... ........... ... .. .. ... ................................. .. .. .... 11-l+ 

Application Requirements .............. ............................. .......... ...... ....... ........ ........... ................... .. ... .... .. ...... 12£ 

FEES AND CHARGES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS ........................................................................................ 1414 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS ....................................................................... 15-15 

A. 

B. 

Organizer/Producer ................................... .... ..... ...... .............. ... ......... ........... ...... .. .................................... 15-l-c} 

Liquor Liability .... ... ......... ...... ...... ....... .... .... .... ............................................... .... ......... ............. ... ... ........ ... 15-l-c} 

REQUIREMENTS REGARDING SALE, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC 

BEVERAGES AT SPECIAL EVENTS ......................................................................................................... 1711 

A . 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Request at time of Special Event Application ........ .. .. ............ .... ........ .. .............................. .. ................ ... .. 17++ 

State Temporary License/Permit ... .... .. ... ... ..... .. ........... ... .......... ......... ......... ................ .................. .. ..... ...... 17++ 

Conditions for Approval.. ........ .. ..... ........... ........ ..... ........ ... ..... ...... ......... ....... .. ........ ............... .... ......... ....... 17++ 

Requirements for Events Selling and/or Distributing Alcoholic Beverages .. .. .................. .. ..................... 18+& 

General Rules .. ...................................................... .................... ......... ............................... ... ...... ..... ........ .. 19-l-9 

VII. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPEClAL EVENT PERMITS ........................................................... 21:2,1 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

Compliance with City Codes ...... ................... ......... .. ... ... .. .. .... ........ .... .. ........... ... ........ .......... ...... ........ ... .... 21 U 

Health and Sanitary Requirements ............. .. ....................... .. ......... .. ........... .. ........................................... . 2 I U 

Fire/Rescue Personnel ...... .. ........ .... ....................... ....................... .......... ........................... ...... .... ... .... .. ..... 2 IU 

Ocean Rescue Personnel .............................. .... ......................... .... ............................ ............................. ... 22±± 

Police Personnel ... ......... .. .... ............... ...................... ............ .... ....................... ........ ... ... .. ... ...... .......... ... .. .. 22P-

Other City Personnel .. .......... ...... ... ............ ...... .. ............. .... ... ..... ....... .... .......................................... .... ...... 22R 

Special Events PeliciesPolicv & Procedures - June 5, 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

III 



G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

0 . 

P. 

o. 

Cleanup .... .............. ..... ... ....... ......... .... .... .... ...... .................................. ...................... .... .. .... ... ... ................. 23~ 

Temporary Bathroom Facilities .. .... .... ........... ............. ..... ... ..... ....... ..... ... .... ....... ... .. .. .. .... ... ... ..... ...... ..... ... .. 23~ 

Banners, Promotional, and Informational Material s .... .... ..................... .. .................................................. 24i4 

Road Closures ........ .... .... ... .... ..... .... .................... ....................... .... ........... ........... ................ .......... .......... .. 24i4 

Municipal Parking Lot .... ............. ..... .... ......... ....... ............ .. ... .... ... .... ............. ..... ... .......... ............ ..... ........ 24~ 

Overnight Parking .... .. ... .... ............ ... .. ............ ............... .................... ........................................................ 25~ 

Additional Licenses .. .... .... .... ............. ..... ... ......................................... .................... ........................ ........ ... 25~ 

Public Announcements ........... ....... ....... .......... ... .... .. .. ..................... ....... ............... ...... ...... .......... ..... ........ .. 25~ 

Surf Contests and Beach/Ocean Activities ................. ..... .......... ............ ...... ... ..... .......................... ..... .. ..... 25~ 

Requested Documents for City Signature ....... ............ .. ... ..... .......... ..... .. .. .. ......... ..... ..... .... .... .... .. .. .......... .. 25~ 

Driving in the Event Area .. .. ........ .... .... ........... ...................... .................... ...... .. .. ... ..... .... ... .. .. ........ .... .... .. . 25~ 

VIII. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENT VENDORS .......................................................... 2727 

IX. 

A. 

8. 

C. 

Food and Beverage Vendors ................................... ... .. ... .. .. .. .. .. ...... .. .... .. ..... ............... ........ ...................... 27±1-

Cleaning ........... ..... .......... ... .... .... ... ....... ......... .... .............. ... .. .. ...... ............. ......... ... .......................... ...... .... 282-S 

Amusements ....... ... .......... ......... ... ...... .... ... .... ..... ........ ......... .... ......... .......... ..... ..... ............ .... ...................... 292-9 

CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS HELD ON THE BEACH ................... 3030 

APPENDIX I - FACILITY RENT AL AREA ........................................................ .................................................... 323i 

APPENDIX II - FLORIDA DEP REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................... 353S 

APPENDIX III - FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................... 3939 

APPENDIX IV -TEMPORARY FOOD SERVICE EVENTS ................................................................................. 4141 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

Licensing ......... .... .... .. ..... ... ......... ......... ............. ..... ...... ............... ........... ...... ....... .... ................................... 4 14+ 

Licensing Exemptions .... ... .............................................. ........................................................ .... .............. 42e 

Fees ....... ...................................................................................... ....... ....... .. .... ............ .......... .... .......... ..... . 42e 

Fire Safety ... ....... .... ... ......... ............................................... ............................ ... ... .... .. ...... .......... ..... ......... .. 42e 

Personnel ................... ................... .. .............. ....... ...... ............. ..... .... .... ... .... ............................................... 42e 

Facilities .. ... ..... .. ........... ....... ......... ...... .. ..... ..... ................................................................................. .... ...... 434,; 

Water ... .... ...... ................. .......................................................... ... ....... ....... .............. .. ..... ... ....... ..... ......... ... 434,; 

Solid and Liquid Waste .... .. ....... ...... ........................................................... ....... .......... ...... ........ ........ .. .... .. 434,; 

Required Items ........................... ....... ......... .... ... .... ............ ... ......... ........................................................ .... 4444 

APPENDIX V - SITE INSPECTION AND CLEANUP AGREEMENT ............. ..................................................... 454-S 

AGREEMENT - SIGNATURE BEFORE THE EVENT ........................ .... .... .... .. ......... ........................ ............... .4646 

AGREEMENT - SIGNATURE WITHIN 48 HOURS FOLLOW1NG THE EVENT .. .. .......................... .............. 484& 

APPENDIX VI-TIMELINE OF DUE DATES ................................................................... ..................................... 4848 

I. INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE ........... .. ...... .................. ................................................................................. ......... 1 

Special Events P-olieiesPolicy & Procedures- June 51 201 7s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

IV 



Ill. 

IV. 

V. 

VI. 

PROCEDURE FOR SCHEDULING A SPECIAL EVENT .................................................................................... 2 

Approval of Application ... ..... ... ........ .. ..... .. .......... ... ....................... ....................... ...... ....... .............................. 2 

l. Availability of City Facilities and Scheduling of Events ....... ........................................................... 2 

Pre Application Submission ... .... ..... ........ ... ......... .... ........ .... ... ..... .. ................ ........ ......... .. ... .. ....... ... . 4 

APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR HOLDING A SPECJAL P/ENT ............................................................... 7 

FEES AND CHARGES FOR SPECL• .. L E\'ENTS .................................................................................................. 9 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS ................................................................................. 9 

Organizer/Proclueer .......... ..... .. ... ... ......... ........ ............. ............. ... ............ ... ......... ... .. ... .. ..... .... ..... ....... ... ...... . 9 

Liquor Liability .. .... ............ .. ... ....... .......... .... .. .... .. ........... ......... ....... .... ........................... ..................... ........ .. 10 

REQUIREMENTS REGARDING SALE, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC 

.8EVE.R) .. GES f .. T SPECIAL EVENTS ................................................................................................................... 11 

VU. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS .................................................................. 14 

Clean up .... ..... ...... .. ....... ..... ......... ... ............ ....... ................. ... ... ......... ......... .. .. .............. ... ....... ................ .... ... 15 

The City ofJacksonville Beach has an ordinance prohibiting discharge of any liquid or solid i:nto the storm water drainag1 

system or onto the grass. This is a health and sanitation issue. If provider fails to comply, they will be issued a violation and finec 

addition, the provider will be prohibited from doing business within the City of Jacksonville Beach .. ...... ...... ...... ..... ....... .. .... 16 

H. Temporary Bathroom Facilities ..... ............ ... ... ... ..... .................... ...... ................ ........... ............... ...... ... .... .... . 16 

Organizers/producers are required to provide adequate temporary bathroom facilities for their event including facilities fo 

handicap access as determined by the Special Events Committee. The port o let provider must dispose of all trash removed from ti 

inside of toilets. This includes items/trash found when vacuuming the ·n•aste from the toilet itself. Any debris/material, etc., must b 

bagged and removed from the premises by the provider. No such material may be disposed of in City trash receptacles or placed 01 

the side0walks, grass, landsc@ing, hardscape, or any other part of the Facility Rental Area. Units may ·NOT be washed down on si1 

but must be returned to the provider's facility for cleaning .. .... .... ..... ... .... ............ .......... ............ .. ... ... .... ........ ........................... 16 

The City of Jacksonville Beach has an ordinance prohibiting discharge of any liquid or solid into the storm water drainag1 

system or onto the grass. This is a health and sanitation issue. If provider fails to comply, they will be issued a violation and finec 

addition, the pro,•ider will be prohibited from doing business within the City of Jacksonville Beach ..... ...... ..... ........ ............ .. 16 

L. 

L 

L. 

M. 

N. 

Banners, Promotional, and Informational Materials ...... ........... ..... ... ......... ................................................... 16 

Road Closures .......... ................... ...... .... ................. ..... ....... .... .... .. .. ........ .... ... ...... .... ...... ... .. ........................... 16 

Municipal Parking Lot .. ............. ........ ............. ................................ .......... .... ... ... .. .......................... ..... ..... ... . 17 

Overnight Parking ... ................. ....... .. ... .. .... ...... ........ ....... .. ........ ............. ....................................................... 17 

Additional Licenses .... .... ........ ...... ........ ......... .. .................. ... ........... ........ ... .... ......... ... ..... ... .. ......... ........ .... .... 17 

Public Announcements ...... .... ... ................. ........................................ ... ... ... ............ ........ ..... ... .......... ........ ... .. 17 

VIIl. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENT VENDORS ................................................................. 18 

APPENDIX I 21 

Special Events Pe!iciesPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

V 



Licensing ...... ........ ......... .... .. .. ....... .. .. ........ ... ... .. .... ... ......... ........ ...... ... .......... ....... .......... ...... .... ... ... ... .................. ........ .. 27 

Licensing E*emptions .. .... ... ..... .... .... ...... ..... .. ... .. ..... ...... ...... ......................................... .................................... ........... 27 

28 

Fire Safety .............. ..... .................................................. .... ..................................................................... .... ... ............. . 28 

Personnel ..... ..... ........ ..... ............ ............ .... .. ....... .... .. ........ ...... .... .... ..... ... .... .... ..... .... ...... ... ............. ............ ....... .......... . 28 

Faci lities ............ ... .... ....... .......... .... ..... ...... ..... ..... .......... ...... ..... .... ............ ........ ........... ......... .... .... .............. ........ ...... .. .. 28 

~ 29 

Solid and Liquid 'Haste .. ........ ............ ..... ..... ....... .... ... .... .... .... .. .. ........... .... ......... .... ....... .... ............................. ....... ...... 2 9 

Required Items .. .......... ........ ... .... .... ........ ........ .. ....... ............ ........ .. ........... ... .. ...... .... ............ .. ... ... ... ..... .. ... ...... ........... .. 29 

Special Events P·e.'ieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 201 7§ 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

VI 



CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
FOR FESTIVALS,\...~ SPECIAL EVENTS HELD ON CITY FACILITIES 

Special Events PolielesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

1 



!:I. __ :1It.. --INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF THIS DOCUMENT 

The City requires The purpose of this doeumeflt is to outline the polieies and proeedures required to 
hold a festival or speeial eveflt Ofl City property. Special Events be permitted for the safety and well
being of participants and the public and to safeguard the public property belonging to the citizens of 
Jacksonville Beach. The purpose of this document is to outline the policies and procedures required to 
hold a special event on City public property. For the purposes of this document, the following 
definitions will-apply: 

_A_. __ A. A Special Event is defined as any festival, meeting, activity, gatheriflg or group of 
persons, animals or vehieles, or eombiflatiofl thereof, ha-Ying a eornrnofl purpose, design or goal, 
upofl afly publie faeility, street, sidewalk, alley, park, parking lot or other publie plaee. The 
teRfl. "speeial event" shall not inelude a fleighborhood bloek party, soeial, reereational 
gatheriflg, or any other type of assemblage. PLEl-. .. SE NOTE THE CITY WILL NOT 
APPROVE A.~ OUTSIDE SPONSORED SPECIAL EVENT OR FESTIVAL ON,+._ 
CITY RECOGNIZED HOLIDAY OR THE WEEKEND ADJACENT TO A CITY 
RECOGNIZED HOLIDAY WEEKEND. THE CITY COUNCIL WILL DETERMINE IF 
A JULY 4'™ EVENT IS SCHEDULED. Oely aee fl) Saeeial Enet sellieg, distFibutieg 0F 
eaesumieg ale0h0I will be peFmitted maethlv; or gathering of persons invited by public 
advertisement for the purpose of witnessing or participating in any common purpose, 
entertainment or exhibition, or purchasing or selling any merchandise, food or beverage or 
consuming any food or beverage upon any City-owned public facility, street, sidewalk, alley, 
park, parking lot or other public place. 

A special event is reasonably expected to require, for its safe and successful execution, the 
coordination of City services or the organizer of the event to a degree above that which the City 
provides under ordinary, everyday circumstances. 

Any of the following characteristics may cause a special event to be defined as a festival and/or 
create additional pennit requirements: 

1. Road closures 
11. Amplified music 

111. Length of event more than four ( 4) hours 
1v. Alcohol sold, distributed or consumed 

B. The Special Events Committee is a committee appointed by the City Manager, and is presently 
eornposedcomprised of the Direetor of Parks ftftd& Recreation Director as Chairperson.,_, afld 
the Directors of Police, Fire, and -Public Works, the supervisorBuilding Maintenanee, fromftftd 
Ocean Rescue~ or their designees. 

The Special Events Committee is designated by the City Manager with the responsibility Qfer 
reviewing and approving an application to conduct a special event within the City~t 

C. A Special Event Permit is a permit th-at-ts-issued after all requirements are met by the 
requesting organi:mtioa organizer/producer and all applicable advance fees are paid. The permit 
will cover the event organizer/producer and their selected vendors. A Special Event Permit 
must be issued for each event. Additional permits and licenses may be required for tents, 
alcohol, outside vendors, signs, electrici!yal, and miscellaneous construction. No person shall 

Special Events ,PoliciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

2 



engage in, participate in, aid, form or start any special event unless a Special Event Permit has 
been obtained from the Special Events Committee0 -;-

D. A Festival, as defiAed iA this doeumeAt, is defined as an event whieh is held at the Sea Walk 
PavilioA l:lA&or Latham Plaza,in the Facility Rental Area is more thf:lA six (6) hours iA duratioA, 
whicha-Ad includes alcohol eoAsumptioA aA&or sales sales, distribution, and/or consumption and 
is more than four ( 4) hours in length .. (A Gity-City-producedsponsored event is not 
considered to be a festival.) It is the intention of the City of Jacksonville Beach not to allow a 
concert in the Facility Rental Area that includes the sale, distribution or consumption of alcohol 
if the event is less than four (4) hours in length. 

Special Events that involve road closures, the use of amplified music, or the distribution, sale, 
or consumption of alcohol (whether by sale, admission, a ticket, a donation, a membership fee, a 
meal charge, or a gratuity) may cause a special event to be defined as a festival or cause 
additional permitting requirements. -;-

E. The-AA Organizer{·&-Producer, as defiAed iA this doeument, is the person(-s-) or persons who 
tsare financially responsible for all fees, deposits, damages or other charges for holding dtte-te 
or eaused by an event hele-in Jacksonville Beach. This person(s) has authority to make 
decisions regarding the event, including cancellation of the event due to weather conditions or 
for other reasons.-;--1:lAd The holder of the Alcoholic Beverage Temporary License/Penn it shall 
be considered to be a co-organizer/co-producer of the event and will be required to sign the 
Special Event Penn it. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

Sitting members of the City Council, City boards and agencies, City staff, and any of their 
immediate family members shall have no financial interest, direct or indirect in entities that 
organize or produce festivals. Immediate family members are defined as: father, mother, son, 
daughter, brother, sister, stepmother, stepfather, stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, 
wife, husband, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, first cousin, nephew, 
niece, grandparents, grandchildren. 

~uFf Contests end Beeeh/Oeeen Aeti'iities must toke pleee e minimum af 300' feet 
fFam the pieF~[JLZl]Facility Rental Area is-the 8eav,calkSeaWalk Pavilion, Latham Plaza, 
and the municipal parking lot as outlined in Appendix I; and 

A Qty--City-producedSpaesaFed Event is any event produced and managed by the City and 
authorized by the City Manager. 

A City-contracted Event is an event that does not meet the ordinary definition of a festival or 
special event, is being produced and managed by an individual or group, and is held through the 
sponsorship of the City. They are intended to be family-friendly and require the approval of the 
City Council. Examples of such events are Deck the Chairs and the Art Walk. City-contracted 
events shall not allow alcohol to be sold, distributed, or consumed. 

City-contracted events must provide an annual income statement and balance sheet prepared by 
a Certified Public Accountant in sufficient detail to demonstrate the sources and uses ofrevenue 
generated by the event. Any net income from the event must be donated to the City of 

Special Events PolieiesPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

3 



Jacksonville Beach, unless an alternate distribution of the net income is specifically allowed in 
the contract approved by the City Council. 

=II;.;... __ .... 11...,_, --PROCEDURE FOR SCHEDULING A FESTIV}·,rL OR SPECIAL EVENT 

Scheduling a festival or special event is determined by two factors: 1) The availability of City facilities 
on a specific date(s) each calendar year; and, 2) Approval of a Special Event Applicationissuance of a 
Special Event Permit. The following sections outlines the conditions for determining availability and 
approval. 

If there is an unauthorized and unpermitted Special Event in the City of Jacksonville Beach, the City 
Manager or designee shall have the authority to cancel and suspend the unpermitted Special Event. 

A. Approval of Application 

The Organizers/producersProducers will make initial contact with the Parks &-and Recreation 
Department to determine the availability of the date(s) and site(s) for their-the proposed event. 
~available, the City will tentatively reserve the date(s) and facility(ies) until receipt of aA 
applicatioAtJLZ2] 

1. Availability of City Facilities and Scheduling of Events 

a. The use of City facilities is reserved on a ~first-come, first-served~ basis. First 
priority is given to Gity-City-producedproduced events, City-contracted events, 
and annual events which have taken place for two (2) or more consecutive years 
unless the event organizer/producer's application is denied due to violations of 
the Special Events Policy identified in the After-action Repo1t. (If a returning 
event is canceled due to weather, it will not preclude the consecutive year rule.) 

b. Only one festival may be scheduled held in any one month. 

I. 

II. 

In years that the City of Jacksonville Beach hosts the Air Show, no 
additional festival may be held within two weeks of the Air Showtfl-the 
saffie month . 

Festivals may be held during the following hours:-froffl 
5:00 P.M. until I 0:00 P.M. on Friday, 
-12:00 P.M. (noon) until 10:00 P.M. on Saturday, aooor 
12:00 P.M. (noon) until 8:00 P.M. on Sunday. 

Special Events Pe!iciesPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

4 



e. 

111. 

IV. 

The City will not approve a non-City produced special event or festival 
on a City-recognized holiday or on a weekend adjacent to a City
recognized holiday. City-recognized holidays are: 

l) New Year' s Day 
2) Martin Luther King Birthday 
3) Memorial Day 
1.)_ 4th of July 
5) Labor Day 
6) Veteran's Day 
7) Thanksgiving Day 
8) Friday after Thanksgiving Day 
9) Christmas Day 
The City Council will determine if a July 4111 event is scheduled. 

~v~. __ The sales, distribution and consumption of alcohol will not be allowed 
at a 4th of July event. 

vi. SThe and sound levels must conform to the City' s noise ordinance. AH 
festivals must end at 10:00 P.M. This item is effeetive JanUaf)' 1, 2003 . 

Only one special event per v,reekend, 1:1nless prior approval ey the Parks & 
Recreation Director. 

The maximum length of a festival is as follows: 

I. 

11. 

lit. 

Events occurring in October through February: two (2) consecutive 

Events occurring in March through September: one (]) day 

Exceptions: Springing the Blues, which is twoJ1} days; lin'lited to one 
day. The only exceptions to the one dctj' limit are Springing the Blues 
attd-the Sea & Sky Speetae1:1larAi r Show, which ~are three fl.} days~ 
Other e>teeptions are festivals that are scheduled for October, 
November, Dece1Reer, Jan1:1af)', and Feeruat')', which mElj' not e>(Ceed 
20 hours two (2) consecutive days. 

=d~. __ -Any activity or athletic event such as a beach run that may be associated with a 
festival wi ll be considered separately from the festiva l and will be permitted 
independently.In years that the City ofJaeksow,i lle Beach hosts the Sea & Sky 
Spectacular, one additional festival may ee held in the same month. 

ede. 

ef. 

Special events other than festivals may be held betweendttri-n-g the hours ofrem 
6:00 A.M. andtlflti..l 10:00 P.M.,-and-s Sound levels must comply nform towith 
the City' s noise ordinance.The length of a special event is limited to tv,o 
consec1:1fr,e days. 

The length of a special event, which is fr-flOO-not a festival, is limited to two (2) 
consecutive days. 

Special Events PelieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 20] 7§ 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

5 



f. Festivals may be held during the hoHrs from 12:00 P.M. (noon) until 10:00 
P.M., and sound levels must eonform to the City' s noise ordinanee. 

gfg. No pt:thlie-events will be considered that have paid admission. Admission fees 
Paid, Fees for 13referred or priority seating isareis allowed only in the 
SeawalkSeaWalk Pavilion as long as at least one-half of the Seav,'alkSeaWalk 
Pavilionevent area is open and free to the general public without charge. (See 
Appendix I.) 

hgh. The reservation date will be accepted but is not considered to be confirmed 
until after a completed Special Event Application has been received and ~ 
reservation has been confirmed, in writing, a Special Event Pennit has been 
~a1313roved by the City. A confirmed reservation is not to be construed as 
an approval of a request for a special event pennit. 

m i. The City reserves the right to further limit the number of events during each 
calendar year based on the physical limitations of the facilities, the general wear 
and tear of special events on City facilities and landscaping, and on the 
availability of City personnel to provide services. 

2. Pre-Application Submission and ReYiew 

a. The requesting organization organizer/producer must email-provide a detailed 
description, including the requested dates, of the proposed event to the Parks & 
and Recreation Department for review. 

b. Upon receipt of the proposed event descriptionemail, a representative from the 
Parks &-and Recreation Department will review the request, make an initial 
evaluation based on the information provided, and, if necessaryrequired, will 
contact the requestor for additional information. 

c. If the venue is available, theft-the requestor will be instructed to submit an 
application to the Parks &-and Recreation Department. Upon receipt of the 
application, and payment of the required deposit, the festival or special event 
will be tentatively added to the special events calendar. 

d. A completed a1313lication for a Special Event ApplicationPefmtt must be 
received no later than @ninety (90) calendar days before the date of the event 
and no earlier than three hundred and sixty-five (365) calendar days before the 
date of the event. 

~- Because of the time and personnel requirements plaeed on the City to su13port 
sueh events, no ap13lieation for a 813ecial Eveat Permit ean be processed unless 
this 60 day lead time is pro•,ided.J[JLZ3] 

Special Events ... TJ.elieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

6 



~- Returning event orgaAizer/prodHcer must contact the Parks & Recreation 
Department with reqHested dates for their special event or festival and for ae 
app lication.J[ JLZ4] 

3. Special Events Committee Meeting 

a. 

b. 

g_e. 

A Special Events Committee meeting is required at least sixty (60) calendar 
days before the event date for all festivals. Attendees will--aoo includes City 
staff and representatives from the requesting organization. ~epending 00 the 
size and scope of a first time special event, a Special Bveets Committee 
meeting may ee require~[JLZ5]-c 

For first-time special events, and any special event the Committee deems 
necessaiy, a Special Events Committee meeting may be required depending on 
the size and scope of the proposed event. 

The purpose of the Special Events Committee meeting will be to review the 
details of the festival or special event, address concerns of City departments, 
and determine the specific requirements necessary to secure a permit. Deposits, 
fFees er-and charges for City services will be identified as well as any 
additional permits and licenses that may be required for tents, alcohol, outside 
vendors, signs, electrical services, and miscellaneous construction. 

+he-Any organizer/producer listed on the special event pennit, including the 
Alcoholic Beverage Temporary License/Permit holder and filD'._decision makers 
must attend any Special Events Committee meetings held for their particular 
event. 

4. Issuance of a Festival 8F Special Event Permit 

_a_. __ a. To secure a Special Event Permit, the event organizer/producer must 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

meet all stipulations and any requirements determinedspecified in the Special 
Events Committee meeting, if one is held, and is responsible for obtaining all 
required permits and licenses. 

The person or entity whose name is listed on the State Temporary Alcohol 
License/Permit, if different fromthan the person designated as 
organizer/producer on the Special Event Permit, must be listed as one of the 
event organizers/producers. 

The City will issue a DRAFT permit fifty (50) calendar days prior to the date of 
the event. 

The event organizer/producer must submit a security deposit and the advance 
fees to the Special Events Coordinator not less than forty-five ( 45) calendar 
days before the date of the event. 

The event organizer/producer must submit a copy of all required pennits, 
temporary licenses, and insurance ce1tificates, if applicable, to the Special 
Events Coordinator not less than twenty (20) calendar days before the date of 

Special Events PelieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 20175 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

7 



f. 

b. 

e. 

d. 

the event. 

If all stipulations, requirements, and time line due dates are met by the 
organizer/producer, and if all required permits, temporary licenses, insurance 
certificates, if applicable, security deposit and advance fees are received from 
the organizer/producer, the Parks &attd Recreation Director or designee will 
issue the Special Event Permit not less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the 
event date. 

ti'he event organizer/produeer must submit a eopy of all required permits, 
ten:iporary lieenses, insuranee eertifieates, and payment of advanee fees to the 
Speeial E·,ents Chairman not less th8:R 30 ',Yorking days before the date of the 
event.J[JLZ6] ~ hould the event produeer/organizer fail to submit all required 
pem~its, tempor0:I)' lieenses, insuranee eertifieates, and payment of advanee 
fees not later than 30 days before the date of the event, the seeurity deposit 
refund v,rill be forfeited~[JLZ7]The event organizer/produeer must submit a 
seeurity deposit and the advanee fees to the Speeial Events ChairpersoA not less 
than forty fi>re (4 5) ealendar days before the date of the event. 

0,11 organizer/produeer(s) and deeision makers must attend any Speeial E>,ents 
Committee meetings held for their partieular event.J[JLZ8]The event 
organizer/produeer must submit a eopy of all required permits, tempora:ry 
lieenses, and insuranee eertifieates, if applieable, to the Speeial Events 
Chairperson not less than twenty (20) ealendar days before the date of the 
e't•ent. 

If all stipulations, requirements, and timeline due dates are met by the 
organizer/produeer, and if all required pem~its, temporary lieenses, insuranee 
eertifieates, if applieable, seeurity deposit and advenee fees are reeeived from 
the organizer/produeer, the Parks & Reereation Direetor or designee 'Nill issue 
the Speeial Event Permit not less than ten ( l 0) ealendar dro•s prior to the event 
date. 

5. Non-Issuance or Revocation of a Permit 

a. 

b. 

~-

AAfi eveat permit Special Event Permit may not be issued sheu-klif the event 
organizer/producer failsfai.l to meet requirements (e.g., permits, licenses, 
notifications, insurance, timeline due dates, security deposit, advance fees, etc.) 
stipulated in the Special Events PolieiesPolicy and the Resolution Fees 
Sehedule ResolutionEstablishing Fees For Special Events-and 
puideline~[JLZ9] (e.g., permits, notifieations, insurenee, ete.). 

An issued e1,eAt permitSpecial Event Permit may be revoked by the City 
Manager, or his/her designated representative if conditions during the event' s 
set-up or during the event result in safety hazards~ &-citations~ or frern 
eontinued failure by.if the organ izer/producer or their vendors or providers fail 
to correct conditions identified by City representatives. ~se of profanity is not 
permitte~[JLZ I OJ~ 

City representatives iAelude Parks and Reereation, Publie Works, Fire, Poliee, 

Special Events Po!iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

8 



Oeean Reseue and City Speeial Events Chairman and have the authority to 
require the organizer/produeer to make adjustments as required during the 
festival or special event to meet eireumstanees or to address issues 1Nhieh affeet 
the site, safety of the erowd, safety and sanitation conditions, or ero1,li'd 
eontro LI[ JLZ 11] 

6. Cancellation of an Event 

Reasons for eaneellation of a festival or speeial event by the City of Jaeksonville Beaeh 
inelude:Any special event may be cancelled by the City for reasons including, but not 
limited to, the following: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

Continued failure to correct conditions identified by City representatives which 
affect the site, safety of the crowd, and/or sanitation; or&.-

Weather conditions that would endanger participants during the event_;_m:~ 

( 1) The organizer/producer aatior designated City representatives will 
determine eaneellation of whether an event shall be cancelled due to 
weather conditions. 

(2) Should event personnel, including paid security and police officers, be 
released due to weather conditions, the event is considered cancelled. 

City emergencies that require essential City event personnel or require 
evacuation of the festivalspecial event or downtown area, or endanger the 
community_;_m: 

Violations of laws/ordinances or the Special Event PolieiesPolicy; aneor 

~e. ___ ~ 

__ ___.g......,,Qther conditions and/or circumstances as determined by the Special Events 
Committee. 

NOTE: Events cancelled due to weather conditions or City emergencies will receive a 
refund of fees and deposits paid. Events cancelled for failure to correct conditions 
identified by City representatives or for violations of laws/ordinances or the Special 
Events Policy will result in the forfeiture of fees and deposits . 

B. Denial of Special Event Request 

The Special Events Committee may reject an application for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed event would negatively impact the festiYal area Facility Rental Area 
and/or landscaping and grounds; or 

2. The proposed event planned would produce unsanitary conditions or harm the 
environment; or 

Special Events Po!iciesPolicv & Procedures -June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

9 



3. The proposed event is of such size and scope to potentially surpass the City's ability to 
provide services or its ability to ensure the safety of the public or property of the 
community; or 

4. 

5. 

The proposed event and/or orgaflizer/promoterorganizer/producer was Rot m 
complifmce with is in violation of or has previously violated the City's Special Event 
PoliciesPolicy afld proced1:1res or Special Event Permit requirements in the past, or fees 
and charges -as outlined in the Fee Schedule Resolution that 'Nere geflerated from the 
e¥eflt were not paid within the designated timeframes. An organizer/producer of such 
an event shallmay forfeit the right to produce future events_;_Q[s 

After-action reports completed by City staff following an event previously produced by 
the applicant indicate that the organizer/producer acted in a manner that violated the 
Special Events Policy or the Special Events Penn it, created unsafe conditions, failed to 
correct event problems identified by City representatives at any time, or other problems 
of similar magnitude. 

C. Appeal of Denial of Special Event Request or Cancellation of Special Event Permit 

The City of Jacksonville Beach will not be responsible for any economic loss or damage 
resulting from non-issuance of a special event permit, revocation of a special event permit, 
denial of a special event request, or cancellation of a special event permit. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, an appeal of the decisions of the Special Events 
Committee regarding a permit application shall be submitted to the City Manager for 
consideration. The City Manager has the authority to deny or cancel a Special Event Permit for 
violations of the Special Events Policy or Special Event Permit or for failure to meet the 
requirements specified in either. 

The cancelling of a Special Event Permit by the City Manager may be reviewed If the issue 
UJ:ider appeal cannot be satisfactorily resolved by the decisioR of the City MaAager, the special 
eveAt organizer/producer may seek further review of the matter by the City Council by making 
a written request to the City Manager within ten (10) calendar days of cancellationdeittal.-Y-pett 
the applicant's reqHest, the review process v,•ill be farther eKpedited to the mBKinrnm eKteflt 
possible. This request 1.vill thefl be placed Ofl the neKt available City Council meeting for 
couflcil coflsideratiofl. If the request detailing the reason for appeal is received twelve (12) or 
more calendar days prior to the next City Council meeting, it will be placed on the next Council 
meeting agenda. If the request is received less than twelve (12) calendar days prior to the next 
City Council meeting, it will be placed on the next subsequent Council meeting agenda. The 
decision of the City Council will-shall be final. 

Special Events Pe.'iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

10 



III. III. APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR HOLDING A FESTIVAL OR SPECIAL EVENT 

Organizations or individuals wishing to hold a fesfr,al Of special event within the city limits of 
Jacksonville Beach must secure a Special Event Permit. The following section describes the process te 
be follovred to see1:1fe for securing a Special Event Permit. 

A. Initial Request 

1. All requests and questions regarding special events should be directed to the Parks & 
and Recreation Director or designee, and the following information shall be provided: 

=a·~ __ Event Prod1:1eef/0fganizef' s ofganizef'sorganizers/producer' s name, address~ 
attti-telephone number, and email address; 

=b·~_Type of event, including detailed description (detail desefiption); 

=c. __ Date(s) requested;-flfld 

~d~. __ Facilities requested; and 

e. If alcohol will be sold, distributed, and/or consumed, the name of the temporary 
alcoholic beverage license applicant.~ 

2. The Director of Direetof of Parks &&-flfld Recreation Direetor or designee will review 
the initial request, and, providing there are no scheduling conflicts, a Special Event 
Permit Application Form will be provided rnailed Of ernailed to the event 
organizer/producer. The application is to be completed in full and returned to the Parks 

Special Events PolieiesPolicy & Procedures -June 51 20175 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

11 



&-and Recreation Department. The application's function is to provide complete 
information on the event. Should required information not yet be available determiHed, 
the application should be completed to the best ability of the organizer/producer at the 
time the application is submitted. As additional information becomes available, it must 
be submitted promptly by the organizer/producer. A final determination of approval of 
an application will not be made until all required information has been submitted. 

3. A fully completed application for a Special Event Permit must be received not later than 
ninety (90) calendarsixty (60) days before the date of the event and no earlier than three 
hundred and sixty-five (365 ) calendar days before the date of the event. 

B. Application and Detail FeFms Requirements 

A person seeking issuance of a Special Event Permit shall file an application with the Parks 
&and Recreation Director or designee of Parks a& RecreatioH for review. The application aHd 
detail forms shall include the following information: 

1. Name, date, hours, and description of event; 

2. Event producer/orgaHizer organizer/producer' s contact information, including the name 
of the temporary alcoholic beverage license applicant (if applicable); 

3. Contact information for the person, orgaHizerorganizer/producer, producer, business, or 
organization that is financially responsible for the event, including the name of the 
temporary alcoholic beverage license applicant (if applicable); 

4. Organization's articles of incorporation and registration with the State of Florida 
Division of Corporations (Sunbiz)corporate docu1neAts 8:Fld listiAg of board membersta1, 
exempt status;~ 

5. Most recent IRS 990 form for the non-profit entity obtaining the Temporary Alcohol 
Permit/License and listed as an event producer; 

.§.Q. Type of event and requested location; 

61. Iadicate if Whether the event is a first-time or returning event; 

1.8_. Indicate ifWhether the event is free to the public or if it will include paid preferred or 
prioritypaid, priority seating; 

8.2.. Whether Iadicate if amplified sound is part of the event; 

91.Q_. Thefudicate the type and number of vendors; 

110. Whether Indicate if the event includes_the sale, distribution, selliHg and/or consumption 
of alcohol; A site map showing the location(s) of all distribution points for alcoholic 
beverages. 

12_+. Indicate feHciHgFencing requirements, if any; 

Special Events Po!iciesPolicv & Procedures-June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

12 



u_i. Whether the Indieate if this event requires access to electricity, and, if so, the reason 
why; 

l1_3-. Whetherlndieate if you plan on haAging banners will be erected within the event area~ 
separate pennit is required for banners hung on public street light poles); 

12_4. Requestslndieate if you are requesting foradditional road closures in conjunction with 
the event, including plans to restrict and control access; 

1§.~. Plansfu.dieate how you plan to promote ef..the event; 

116. PlansOutline your plaa for event security and crowd control. lfl.elude, including the 
number of security guards, their locations, and responsibilities, and . Indieate how you 
pkm-plans to restrict and control access to the event area; 

1.8_+. Plans Outline your plan for traffic control. l:Hdieate if permission is being requested to 
elose City streets for the e1t•ent aad your plan to seeure eaeh elosure; 

12.&. Plans for toilets, sanitation, trash management and Outline yow: plaa to keeping the area 
clean during ~ vent~ ane--including plansyour plan for clean up after the 
conclusion of the event; and 

20-t-9. Pre-event and post-event checklists.ftlffi 

+9-:-NOTE: The submittal of event Detail Forms may be neeessarj if additional information -ismay 
be required if necessary to determine the scope of the festival or special event. 

Special Events .PeliciesPolicy & Procedures- June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

13 



IV. IV. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

DE. 

EF. 

GF. 

G. 

FEES AND CHARGES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS HELD ON CITY FA.CILITIES 

Fees and charges for special events are established and periodically adjusted by a resolution 
approved by the Jacksonville Beach City Council. All festiYal and special event fees are 
intendeddesignated primarily to offset the cost to the City resulting from such special events; 
therefore, except for City-produced or City-contracted events, the City does not waive special 
event fees for facility rental§. OF site fees, permits, licenses or fil!Y_Other charges for City 
services. City-contracted events shall not provide alcohol for sale, distribution or consumption. 
~rHY organ.i2ation, event organi2eFlprodueer requestiHg to hold a festival OF speeial event OH City 
property OF faeilities must pay all faeilities rentaYsite fees.I[ JLZ 12] 

The event organizer/producer is responsible for any and all costs for City services as outlined in 
this doeument OF as determined by the Cityeaeh department. 

Fees, sueh as Faeility rental Rental Area fees, seeurity deposit~ and fees for serviees provided by 
City ofJaeksonville Beaeh Departments~ ru·e outlined in a Resolution adopted by the City 
CouAeil establishing fees for speeial events. 

All faeility rental fees, seeurity deposits, and banner fees must be paid to the City of 
Jaeksonville Beaeh thirty (30) business days in advan.ee of the event.Any organizer/producer 
requesting to hold a special event on City property or facilities must pay the security deposit and 
all Special Event Area rental fees prior to the issuance of the Special Event Permit. The 
security deposit may be utilized to pay for City staff, cleanup, maintenance, or repair if the site 
is not cleaned up to the satisfaction of the City ' s representative within forty-eight (48) hours 
after the post-event inspection unless extenuating circumstances exist and are agreed upon by 
City staff at the post-event walk-through. 

All fees, such as facility rental fees, security deposits, administrative fees, and banner fees must 
be paid for and presented to the City not less than forty-five ( 45) calendar days in advance of 
the event. 

All required permits and temporary licenses, if applicable, must be paid to the City not less than 
twenty (20) calendar days in advance of the event. 

All other fees (e.g., personnel costs, damage compensation, etc.) due to the City must be paid 
within fifteen (15) calendar days after the event. 

The security deposit may also be used to pay for other fees that are unpaid by the 
organizer/producer following the event. 

Special Events Po.'iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

14 



....;..;v•;.___v. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS HELD ON CITY 
FACILITIES 

A. Organizer/Producer 

The City requires the organizer/producer of an event using City facilities to provide the City 
with proof of Commercial General Liability Insurance coverage in the minimum amount of ooe 
two million dollars ($1 ,000,000) ($2,000,000). If applicable, insurance certificates shall 
provide coverage for set up days and tear dovm days. 

1. The policy must provide coverage for general aggregate liability losses, personal and 
advertising injury, fire damage, medical expenses and additional coverage for volunteer 
coverage, spectator liability, etc. 

2. The coverage shalls-hetttd be written on a "per occurrence" basis and shalloottl-d be 
inclusive of "set-up and tear-down" dates. 

3. The City of Jacksonville Beach must be named as Additional Insuredadditional iftsured. 

4. Proof of insurance shall be inis to talce the form of a standard Accord Aoord-Certificate 
of Insurance written by a licensed insurer acceptable to the City. 

5. Certificates of Insurance must be submitted to the City not later than 3-0twenty (20) 
calendar days before the date of the event. 

B. Liquor Liability 

If alcoholic beverages are being served, distributed, and/or sold, distributed or consumed at a 
festival or special event, the event organizer/producer must also provide the City with a Liquor 
Liability Endorsement or a separate insurance policy in the amount of $1 ,000,000 two million 
dollars ($2,000,000). A copy of the Certificate of Insurance must be provided to the Parks & 
Recreation Departmenteffiee naming the City as Additional Insuredadditional insured. 
Certificates of Insurance must be submitted to the City not later than 3-0twenty (20) calendar 
days before the date of the event. 

C. Automobile Liability - Driving on the Beach 

For all event organizers/producers, and their representatives, who wish to drive on the beach 
to set up or tear down for events, the following automobile liability insurance is required: 

1. The event organizer/producer must provide automobile liability insurance in the amount 
of $1 ,000,000two million dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit or $1 ,000,000two 
million dollars ($2,000,000) per person bodily injury liability insurance in addition to 
general liability insurance; 

2. The City of Jacksonville Beach must be named as Additional Insured. Certificates of 
Insurance must be submitted to the City within 30 vr0rkingtwenty (20) calendar days of 
the event; 

Special Events PeNciesPolicy & Procedures-June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

15 



{il_~Ifthe vehicle is not personally owned, then purchase HIRED AUTOS and 
NON-OWNED AUTOS insurance is required . This type of insurance is reflected 
in the automobile liability section of the insurance certificate; 

.(QL 4.---1-lf the vehicle is titled and registered in the name of the organization, then 
purchase ALL OWNED AUTOS insurance is required . This type of insurance is 
reflected in the automobile liability section of the insurance certificate; 

1.3,_. __ ::5~. --.In the DESCRIPTION section of the certificate, indicate the make, model, year, 
and VIN of each vehicle and trailer eftwhich will be accessing the beach. Only those 
vehicles listed on the policy may be driven on the beach and will be approved in the 
permit; 

Any unauthorized vehicles on the beach willshall constitute noncompliance with the 
Special Event PoliciesPolicy and nmywill render your permitthe Special Event Permit 
null and void, thus cancelling the event and possibly forfeiting causing forfeiture of the 
opportunity to produce future events; 

Date and time for beach entry and exit by all approved vehicles must be scheduled and 
approved 30 busiaessforty fivethirty (430~) calendar days in advance of the event by 
City special events staffthe Parks & Recreation Department; and 

All drivers of authorized vehicles on the beach are required to attend a Beach Driver 
Training Course provided by Ocean Rescue personnel at least fifteen (15) calendar+§. 
days prior to the special event. No Special Event Permit shall be issued unless the 
Beach Driver Training Course has been completed by those persons driving on the 
beach. Organizers/producers who producede multiple events throughout the year will 
only be required to take the Beach Driver Training Course once per calendar year. 
eetaifl--Aa Beach Driving Pass will be issued from an-Ocean Rescue personnel 
lieutena:nt at the American Red Cross Volunteer Lifesaving building. Only those 
drivers possessing a valid Beach Driving Pass and a valid state-issued driver's license 
shall be allowed to drive on the beach. The Beach Driving Pass must be prominently 
displayed on the driver's side dashboard. 

Special Events Pel.'eiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

16 



VI. \q. REQUIREMENTS REGARDING SALE, DISTRIBUTION, AND/OR CONSUMPTION 
OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AT FESTIVALS A..l\ffi SPECIAL EVENTS 

A. Request at time of Special Event Application 

The sale, distribution, and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages on City property as part of a 
festival or special event poses additional concerns and may lead to additional requirements for 
the organizer/producer. Should an event organizer/producer wish to sell and/or distribute 
alcoholic beverages at an event, the request must be submitted with the Special Event 
Application. 

B. State Temporary License/Permit 

Before issuance of a Special Event Permit, the event organizer/producer must secure a required 
State Temporary License/Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages from the Department of 
Business and Professional Regulation and secure liquor liability insurance in the amount of two 
million dollars ($2,000,000). A copy of all Statestate temporary alcoholic beverage permits 
and alcohol insurance must be provided to the Parks &-and& Recreation Department ~ 
1:msiaess twenty Rfil-calendar days before a Special E11eat Permit v,ill be issued the event. The 
person or entity whose name is listed on the State Temporary License/Permit, if different than 
the person designated as organizer/producer on the Special Event Permit, will be listed by the 
City as one of the event organizers/producers. The person or entity who holds the temporary 
alcohol pennit must submit their most recent prior year IRS 990 form with their Special Event 
Application. 

If a non profit entitv is obtaining the temporary aleohol lieeese, thirtv (30) days after the eYeet the 
eon profit is required to show how the net profits from the aleohol sales were distributed 
to their eharitable eauses, eoesisteet with their 501 (e) status as required by Florida State 
Statute 561.422. 

C. Conditions for Approval 

Approval of the sale, distribution, and-Lor consumption of alcoholic beverages at a festival or 
special event held outdoors at a City facility or on City property shall be determined and shall 
be based upon the event orgfrilizatioa'sorganizer.:.s/producer' s submission to and gaining 
approval by the Special Events Committee of the following criteria: 

1. 

2. 

A designation of the event dates and hours for sale, distribution, and/or consumption of 
alcoholic beverages; 

A site map showing the location(s) of all distribution points for alcoholic beverages. 

=-3.,_. __ .A plan for crowd control, restricting and controlling access to the special event area; 

A plan for the control of the sale, distribution, and/or consumption of alcoholic 
beverages to minors~-; Thethe plan and personnel necessary to implement it shall be 
approved by the Police Department as discussed under Section VI, Subsection D 
below-;!... the The cost for implementation shall be an expense of the special event 
organizer/producer; 

Special Events .Po.'iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

17 



-5_4. 

7. 

A copy of permits and licenses in accordance with Florida State Statutes and the City of 
Jacksonville Beach for the sale, distribution, and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages 
are to be submitted to the City ofJaeksoflville BeaehSpecial Events Committee;-flfld~ 

Certification of liquor liability insurance coverage naming the City of Jacksonville 
Beach as Additional Insuredadditioflal iflsured, holding the City harmless and 
indemnifying the City from all claims, suits and demands7; and 

Within thi1ty (30) calendar days after the completion of a festival, the holder of the 
festival's temporary alcohol pem1it is required to: 

a. Submit a delivery bill of lading from the alcohol provider, signed by the holder of 
the festival's temporary alcohol pennit, indicating the type and amount of alcohol 
that was delivered for the festival, and 

b. Submit a signed, final accounting and invoice from the alcohol provider indicating 
the amount of alcohol that was billed to the holder of the festival's temporary 
alcohol pennit. 

D. Law Eefereemeet Requirements for E¥eets Events Selling, and/or Distributing, aed/ar 
Caesumieg Alcoholic Beverages 

1. 

2. 

~-

4.1. 

A minimum of twe-one (~l) Jacksonville Beach Police Department officers must be 
present during special events held on City facilities where alcoholic beverages are being 
sold, distributed, and/or consumed to ensure that violation of &atestate and local 
laws.Jaw does not occur. The presence of police officers does not relieve the event 
organizer/producer from the responsibility of providing a server for checking 
identification for the purpose of determining compliance with minimum drinking age 
requirements. 

The number of officers required will be determined, in part, by the Chief of Police or 
designee based on, but not limited to, the number of entrances and exits to the alcohol 
designated area of the event and the size and scope of the event. If the event has been 
held previously in the City, the number of officers required will be determined by the 
Chief of Police or designee based additionally on previous attendance, call history, 
incident reports, and after-action reports, if anyarea. ~he Chief of Poliee, or his 
desigriated represefltative, will determine the flumber of offieers required in the festival 
or speeial eveAt area based OR the size, seope, and/or previous eall history of the 
twefttj[ JLZ 13 ]7 

The Speeial Eveftts Committee will determine v,rhether additioRal offieers are Heeded 
for erovt1d eoRtrol or aleoholie beverage eoHtrol. If the e•,eflt has beef! held iH the City 
ofJaeksoflYille Beaeh before, the deeisiofl will be based upofl past e•,eflt atteAdanee afld 
ifleideflt reportst JLZ14] 

AdditioAal iAformatioA regardittg fees for Poliee DepartJReAt serviees are deseribed iR 
the Fee Sehedule ResolutioA.Fees for Police Department services are set by the Police 
Department. 

Special Events .PoliciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

18 



E. General Rules 

The following general rules govern an event where alcoholic beverages will be sold, distributed, 
and/or consumed: 

1. The only alcoholic beverages that may be sold, distributed, and/or consumed at a 
festival or special event are beer and wine; 

2. The entire area where alcoholic beverages will be sold, served distributed, and/or 
consumed must be defined and fenced. The City may provide, for rent, the req1:1ired 
fencing. Delivery and ilnstallation of said fencing is the responsibility of the 
organizer/producer. Alternative fencing may be considered with approval. Fencing for 
paid prefen-ed or prioritypaid, priority seating shall not exceed four ( 4) feet in height 
and shall not obstruct the visibility of others outside the paid preferred or priority paid, 
priority seating area. Banners and any other materials that obstruct the visibility of 
others may not be placed on fencing. No tents, trailers, or other features which obstruct 
the visibility of others outside the paid preferred or prioritypaid, priority seating area 
may be erected. The cost for fencing rental and installation will be at the expense of the 
festival or special event organizer/producer. Additionally, the organizer/producer will 
be responsible for reimbursing the City for damaged fencing; 

3. Jacksonville Beach Police Department officers (on-duty or off-duty) must be present in 
the festival or event area at all times when alcoholic beverages are sold, distributed, 
and/or consumed. The Police Department will determine if officers must man gates or 
will rove the event area. All entrances/exits to/from the area must be secured. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

Depending on the size and scope of an event, and at the sole discretion of the Police 
Department, uniformed professional security guards may be permitted to maintain 
security at entrances and exits to the event in lieu of Jacksonville Beach Police 
Department officers. _ Only City-:approved professional licensed security companies 
may be used . Payment of both professional security guards and uniformed off-duty 
Jacksonville Beach Police Department officers is the responsibility of the 
organizer/producer; 

All entrances/exits must be clearly marked with signs stating "No alcohol beyond this 
point." and "Festival Rules" _8 ignage may be provided by the City and may be mel1:1ded 
iH the faeility reHtalFaeility ReHtal Area fee; 

No business establishment building may be used as the perimeter for the area of 
alcoholic beverage sales, distribution, and/or consumption to the fesfr,al or event area. 
A business located adjacent to public property may request a permit on a one-time basis 
for approval to serve alcoholic beverages on said property solely for a grand opening 
event. Approval must be granted by City Council, and the permit will be subject to all 
rules governing alcoholic beverages outlined in the Special Events PolieiesPolicy; 

The e0Hs1:1mptioa of aleoholie beverages is limited to the festival or eveat area 
identified in Attaehment l of this doe1:1ment. The Boardwalk may not be inel1:1ded within 
the event area; 

Special Events .PolieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

19 



The areas where alcoholic beverages may be sold, distributed, and/or consumed are 
restricted to the Facility Rental Area (Latham Plaza, the Seawalk Sea WalkSeaWalk 
Pavilion, and the municipal parking Jot located adjacent to Latham Plaza}, with the 
exception of the Sea & Sky SpectacularAir Show and on the Pier during Gib': 
sponsoredCity-produced events. 

The area where alcoholic beverages will be sold/distributed must be protected against 
product spillage on the sidewalks, streets and& grass. A catch basin/bucket must be 
placed under each beer/wine dispensing unit/-tap. The event 
producer/organizcrnrganizer/producer is responsible for protecting against spillage and 
for proper disposal of spillage, and the organizer/producer may be required to pressure 
wash areas affected by spillage; and 

Last call for alcohol announcements must be made no later than 30 minutes prior to the 
end of the event. During the last-call time period, sales and distribution are limited to 
one drink per person. Alcohol sales/distribution are required to cease no later than 15 
minutes prior to the end of the event. Last call and hours of alcohol sales/distribution 
will be monitored and strictly enforced by the City ofJacksonville Beach Police 
Department. 

Special Events PoliciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

20 



VIl. VII. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT~ ON CITY 
FACILITIES 

A. Compliance with City Codes 

All activities conducted as part of the festival Off! special event are required to comply with the 
provisions of all City Code of Ordinances and the Special Events PolieiesPolicy and G1:1ideliaes. 
Specific Code of Ordinances include, but are not limited to, Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages: 
Chapter 18, Noise: Chapter 19.5, Special Events and Festivals: and Chapter 34, Land 
Development Code. Speeifieally Roted are: Chapter 4, Aleoholie Beverages, Seetioa 4.3; 
Chapter 18, }foise, Seetioa 18.3 (h) and Seetion 18 8 of the Code of Ordiaaaees; Chapter 3 4, 
Seetion 8.4, Sign Standards, and Seetion 19.5, 01:1tdoor M1:1sieal Entertainment or Fesfr,als. 
Portions of these eode seetions are attaehed in Attaehrneat II. Copies are available from the 
City Clerk an~ via Internet at the following website: www.municode.com. 

1. An event organizer/producer holding a Special Event Permit must abide by all policies, 
procedures, and stipulations outlined in their Special Event Permit. Non:compliance 
may result in the event being shut down. 

2. An organizer/producer of a festival or special event thatwho does not comply with the 
City' s Code of Ordinances, Special Events PolieiesPolicy and Gt1idelines, or the 
conditions outlined in a Special Event Permit~ and who does not pay all event fees and 
charges willshall forfeit the right to produce future events. 

B. Health and Sanitary Requirements 

In order to ensure a clean, sanitary environment during and after events held at City facilities , 
the City's designated representative will approve site elean_t1pcleanup services. The 
organizer/producer is responsible for ensuring their vendors and providers keep City facilities, 
and the surrounding areas used or affected by the crowds attending the festiYal or special event, 
in a clean and sanitary condition during and after an event. Failure to do so will result in 
forfeiture of the security deposit and responsibility for reimbursing the City for any outstanding 
expenses incurred in the correction of the problem. 

C. Fire/Rescue Personnel 

The requirement for a MERV (mobile emergency response vehicle) with two (2) fire/EMS 
personnel, a ltwo-member bike team, or additional medical personnel at special events or 
festivals will be determined by the Fire Chief and/or Fire Marshal prior to the event based on~ 
but not limited to, the type of special event, expected attendance and crowds, number of food 
vendors, sale, distribution, and/or consumption of alcohol, and other factors that would tax the 
department's ability to provide fire/rescue services. the follmNing: 
• T)•pe of speeial e·,ent or festival; 
• Expeeted attendanee and ero·Nds; 
• }fomber of food vendors; 
• Sale of aleohol; and 
• Other faetors that v1ot1ld too( the department's ability to provide fire/rese1:1e serviees. 

Special Events PoNcicsPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

21 



It will be the responsibility of the event organizer/producer produeer/organiz:er to pay the fire 
department for the-fire/rescue personnel required during the special event or festival. 

If personnel are requiredscheduled for and reportrespond to an event, then the minimum time 
frame is tv10 (2)number of hours each shall be paid is three (3) hours. Payment may be made 
the week prior to the event or within fifteen (15) calendar days after iffl1flediately upon 
completion of the event. 

D. Ocean Rescue Personnel 

The requirement for Ocean Rescue participation at special events or festivals will be determined 
by the Ocean Rescue Captain and the Parks &and Recreation Director Reereation 
Superifltendent prior to the event based on, but not limited to, the type of special event, 
weather/water conditions, expected attendance and crowds, and other factors that would tax the 
department's ability to provide ocean rescue services. the following: 
• Type of speeial event or festival; 
• BKpeeted attendanee and ero,Yds; and 
• Other faetors that would taK the department's ability to provide fire/reseue and/or oeean 
reseue serviees. 

It will be the responsibility of the event organizer/producer produeer/organiz:er to pay Ocean 
Rescue for personnel required during the special event or festival. If personnel are scheduled 
and report to an event, then the minimum number of hours each shall be paid is three (3) hours. 
Payment for personnel may-shall be made imfflediately uponwithi:n fifteen (15) ealendar days 
afterimmediately upon completion of the event. 

E. Police Personnel 

F. 

The requirement for police personnel at special events will be determined by the Chief of Police 
or designee. All requests by the organizer/producer for police personnel shall be made sixty 
(60) calendar days in advance of the event through the Special Events Committee. When three 
(3) or more officers are required, one will be designated asan additional supervisor is required 
and will receive supervisory rate of pay. The Chief of Police or designee may require additional 
police personnel for special events which include the sales, distribution, and/or consumption of 
alcohol as deemed necessary for public safety. Payment for personnel shall be made 
immediately upon completion of the event. 

Other City ity DepeFtmeet Personnel 

Should the services of other City department personnel be required to facilitate a special event, 
the event organizer/producer is required to pay for those services within fifteen (15) calendar 
days after completion of the event. 

Special Events PolieiesPolicv & Procedures-June 51 20175 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

22 



Clean_upCleanup 

The organizer/producer will provide all clean upcleanup services for festivals B:Hd special 
events, including any closed roads and streets. Clean upCleanup includes manpower during and 
after the event, as well as adequate dumpsters, trash cans and grease vat(s). The number of 
dumpsters will be determined by the Public Works Department in conjunction with the 
organizer/producer, based upon the scope of the event and previous experience with events held 
in the City of Jacksonville Beach. 

Cleanup also includes the removal of all dumpsters, trash cans, trash, other equipment and 
pressure washing any areas where grease or other substances are present after an event. +he 
Public Works Department will make aArrangements for a grease vat fo r the proper disposal of 
used cooking grease and gray water will be the responsibility of the organizer/producer. The 
grease vat and gray water vendor provider must be City-approved. The cost of these services 
will be the responsibility of the event organizer/producer and will be deducted from the security 
aepest. 

No paint or spray paint may be used on City facilities, sidewalks, roads, right-of-ways or other 
public property. Event organizer/producers who fail to remove such substances prior to the 
post-event site walkthrough will be billed for the cost of removing them. Events whose 
producers, staff or volunteers use chalk or spray chalk will be billed for its removal if the chalk 
or spray chalk is present four ( 4) days after the event. 

The City of Jacksonville Beach has an ordinance prohibiting di scharge of any liquid or solid 
into the stom'I waterstormwater drainage system or onto the grass. This is a health and 
sanitation issue. If provider fail s to comply, they will be issued a violation and fined. In 
addition, the provider will be prohibited from doing business within the City of Jacksonville 
Beach. 

FH. Temporary Bathroom Facilities 

Organizers/producers are required to provide adequate temporary bathroom facilities for their 
event including facilities for handicap access as determined by the Special Events Committee. 
The portalet port-o-let provider must dispose of all trash removed from the inside of toilets. This 
includes items/trash found when vacuuming the waste from the toilet itself. Any debris/material, 
etc., must be bagged and removed from the premises by the provider. No such material may be 
disposed of in City trash receptacles or placed on the sidewalks, grass, landscaping, 0f 

hardscape, or any other part of the Facility Rental Area. _Units may NOT be washed down on 
site, but must be returned to the provider' s facility for cleaningto elean. 

The City of Jacksonville Beach has an ordinance prohibiting discharge of any liquid or solid 
into the storm_waterstormwater drainage system or onto the grass. This is a health and 
sanitation issue. If provider fails to comply, they will be issued a violation and fined. In 
addition, the provider will be prohibited from doing business within the City of Jacksonville 
Beach. 

Special Events PelieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

23 



GI, Banners, Promotional, and Informational Materials 

Event and sponsor banners may be hung within the event site; however, banners and any other 
materials may not be placed on fencing if it obstructs the visibility of others. Nothing shall be 
attached to the landscape or hardscape.~ 

If an event organizer/producer is wanting to hang promotional banners on street light poles, an 
aApplication to Hang Banners on Street Light Poles must be received thirty (30) days prior to 
the requested banner installation date. Application and per banner fees apply and are outlined in 
the Fees and Charges for Special Event held on City Facilities 

HJ. Road Closures 

An event organizer/producer requesting road closures must submit a City of Jacksonville Beach 
Application for Road Closures to the Special Event Coordinator thirty (30) days in advance of 
the requested road closure. 

An event prod1,wer/organi2:er organizer/producer requesting road road elosingsclosures is 
required to provide fifteen (15) calendar days tvto weeks advance notice to all affected 
businesses and residents of the date~ and times of the planned road-closures. _A copy of the 
notice must be provided to the Parks &-and Recreation Department. 

If road closures are approved, the City mayorganizer/producer must provide barricades withift 
the standard festival area and standard road elost:Jre areasfor the standard road closure area 
within the Facility Rental Area; however, the organi2:er/produeer is responsible for the piek l:lp 
and plaeement of aarrieades, and for rett:Jmiflg the aarrieades to their origina-1 loeations at the 
end of the event._ Each intersection affected must be manned at all times during the road 
closure. The organizer/producer is responsible for securing and providing manpower. Should 
professional security personnel be required, the organizer/producer shall hire security personnel 
approved by the City. The cost of professional security personnel and/or police officers for 
traffic control caused by the closure is the responsibility of the organizer/producer. 

The City may provide barricades, cones, etc. , for street closures, if available.,__ 01:Jtside of the 
standard festival areastandard road elosure area 'Nithin the Faeility Rental Area. The standard 
festival area standard road closure area is between the SeawalkSeaWalk Pavilion and Latham 
Plaza - is defined as the Sea Walk PB:Vilion, Latham Pla2:a, the mt:Jnieipal parking lot adjaeeat to 
Latham Pla2:a, and First Street, 1st Street North at 1st Avenue North and 1st Street North northeast 
comer of Latham Parking lot and north of the Hotel' s north parking lot entrance/exit. Nerth, 
aet\veeA the northern feneed perimeter of the SewwalkSeaWalk Sea Walk Pavilion and Latham 
Plaw and the sot:Jthem feneed perimeter of Latham Pla2:a. (See Appendix I.) 

KI. Paid-Municipal Parking Lot 

The rental of municipal parking lots for use as paid parking during festivals or special events is 
NOT allowedprohibited. During the months when City--authorized paid parking is in effect at 
the Latham Plaza parking lot, the organizer/producer will be required to lease parking spaces 
from the paid parking vendor for dumpster placement. 

At all times during the rental of the Latham Plaza municipal lot, the electric charging stations 
must be kept freeaccessible and available for automobile charging. 

Special Events Po.'iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 20] 7§ 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

24 



y . Overnight Parking 

No overnight parking is permitted on City pa-Fks or facilities per City ordinance except with 
specific approval by the City Manager. Authorized overnight security is permitted. 

KM. Additional Licenses 

Events which offer musical entertainment are required to provide the City, if requested, with a 
copy of their Broadcast Music, Ineorporated Inc. (BMI), Society of European Stage Authors and 
Composers (SESAC), and/or American Society of Composers, Authors and Publishers 
(ASCAP} Performaoee Agreemeat performance agreements, or provide the BMI, SESAC, 
and/or AS CAP account number Aeeount Number and the effective date of the license. This 
license agreement covers copyright clearance for music performed. AllThe 
organizer/producerW of such events must complete and sign athe form, "Stage Equipment 
doeumeat_.: attesting to-their having met this requirement. 

I,N. Public Announcements 

Public announcements must be made throughout an event to remind event attendees to access 
the beach only via authorized beach crossovers, to keep off the sand dunes, and not to pick sea 
oats per Florida state law. 

PO. Surf Contests and Beach/Ocean Activities 

PQ. 

§urf contests and any ocean activities are not authorized within 300 feet of the Ppied[JLZ16]. 

Requested Documents for City Signature 

A copy of any documents the organizer/producer is requesting that the City sign must be 
provided to the Parks andParks & Recreation Department thirty (30) calendar days before the 
event. 

QR. Driving in the Event Area 

¥Vehicles may not be driven on the grass within the festival area, medians, or sidewalks. 
Vehicles may be driven on the two major paver sidewalks running east/west from the boardwalk 
though Latham Plaza and the pavers in front of the stage which run east and west from 1st Street 
North to the boardwalk. 

The use of profanity is prohibited. 

Special Events PotieiesPolicv & Procedures-June 51 20175 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

25 



Special Events PelieiesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

26 



VIII. vm. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR FESTIVAL ,A...,.l\ffi SPECIAL EVENT VENDORS 

The City reserves the right to set guidelines and restrictions for vendors,ete. All goods to be sold OA 
City faeilities must be approved by the City. All applicable City, county &and state laws/codesCedes 
will be strictly enforced. The placement of vendors is limited to desigAated areas designated in the 
Special Event Permit for crafts, food, beverages, and amusements. lose of profanity is not 
permitte~[JLZl 7]~ 

Any vendor selling or serving food or beverages must adhere to the requirements of the Parks aAdParks 
& Recreation Department, Gity+Public Works Department, Fire Department, and the State ofFlorida-'-s 
Division of Hotels and Restaurants Department of Business and Professional Regulation. _NO vendor 
will be allowed to open for business until they have been inspected and approved by all three entities. 
(See Appendixes III and IV.) Copies of the City's Fire Department and State of Florida requiremeAts are 
iAcluded at the eAd of this 8ectioA. 

No staking of tents, trailers, or other items is allowed in the festival areaFacility Rental Area, streets, or 
parking lots. Nothing may be attached to the landscape or hardscape. Vehicles may only be driven on 
pavers or concreted areas during set up and tear down of a special event. No vehicle may be driven or 
parked on any grassy areas at any time. 

A. Food and Beverage Vendors 

1. Only authorized licensed food vendors shall be permitted to operate on City property or 
facilities during festivals, special events, or City spoAsored eveAts. 

2. The event organizer/producer must contact the Division of Hotels and Restaurants not 
Jess than ten (10) calendarsevea (7) days before said event with the following 
information: 

a. Date~ and times of event; 

b. Type of food service proposed; 

c. A list of all food service vendor owners and operators participating in each 
event; 

d. The current license numbers of all public food service establishments 
(i'.restaurants1 participating in each event; and 

e. Schedule time of inspection~-; 

f. The Division of Hotels and Restaurants may inspect all food vendors~ 
operations at each event for compliance with minimum sanitation standards._ If the 
operator does not meet the standard, their operation will be shut down until corrections 
are made; and 

g. All food vendors are required to obtain a license from the Division of Hotels & 
Restaurants in order to participate in a fesfr,al or special event. If a food vendor does 
not have a state license, t+he Division of Hotels and Restaurants will issue a Temporary 
Event Vendor License. Licensing requirements and the State of Florida Guide to 

Special Events Po!iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017~ 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

27 



3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

18. 

.8_9. 

9. 

Temporary Food Service Events are available on their website at 
http://www.myfloridalicense.com. (See Appendix IV.) 

The event organizer/producer is responsible for ensuring that food vendors containerize 
all cooking materials and byproducts, especially grease, and that any and all such 
cooking materials, byproducts, and grease are removed from the City's premises and 
disposed of properly, or placed in the event's grease vat provided by the 
organizer/producer. 

Vendors who cook with grease-type products are required, as a part of site preparation, 
to place corrugated boxing paper, or a similar type of protection, -as flooring for their 
booth, or a similar type protection, _and on top of the roofing felt to absorb grease and 
to prevent grease or liquids from falling onto the asphalt, concrete, sidewalks,-61' pavers, 
or any other party of City property. 

Food vendors are required to use a grease trap when cooking with grease. The vendor, 
(or organizer/producer as default1, is responsible for the proper removal and disposal of 
all grease into the event's grease vat or from the festivalevent area. No grease or oil 
may be poured onto the pavement, or grass or into storm_ v,•aterstormwater drains within 
the City of Jacksonville Beach. The event organizer/producer will be accountable for 
any costs associated with clean up of storm drains, sidewalks, streets, flflfr-pavers, and 
any other City property. 

Failure to follow this policy could result in forfeiture of the security deposit, additional 
fees for pressure '+¥ashing, and forfeiture of participation in events on City property. 

Precautions must be made to prevent food, debris, seafood shells, etc. from entering 
into the City' s storm_waterstormwater system. This includes the The placement of 
traps, screens, etc. , may be required. 

No glass cups or glasses may be used for beverage products. Should beer or wine 
products only come in glass bottles, the beverage must be served in a plastic or paper 
cup for distribution to the public. A catch container must be placed under all beverage 
dispensing units-(tapSj/taps. 

Cleaning/p:Pressure washing of feed-vendor and eating areas will be a requirement for 
festivals and special events where food and/or beverages -isare served at the primary 
focus of the event. All costs associated with pressure washing will be the responsibility 
of the event organizer/producer. 

Failure to follow this policy may result in forfeiture of the security deposit, payment of 
additional fees for pressure washing and clean upcleanup, and forfeiture of the 
opportunity to participate in future events on City property. 

B. PFessuFe WashiegCleaning 

At all festivals and special events, should specific vendors have booths which result in odors,_ -Bf 

grease or other substances present after the event, the event organizer/producer will be 

Special Events .Po#C.:esPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

28 



responsible for pressure washingcleaning/pressure washing the event site area including 
roadways. 

C. Amusements 

1. Mechanical or carnival-type rides for children are permitted at the SeawalkSea Walk-sea 
WfH* Pavilion and Latham Plaza. No mechanical or carnival_:-type rides may be erected 
in City parking lots or on roads or sidewalks without the approval of the City Manager. 
A list of proposed children' s rides, along with anchoring methods, must be itemized on 
the Special Event Permit application and presented to and approved by the Special 
Events Committee. A copy of the State inspection certificate must be provided to the 
City before rides can be operated. The rides are only allowed in Lathar-n PJ02;a and Sea 
Walk-: 

2. Inflatable-type amusements are permitted provided appropriate anchoring is in place. 

3. Animal rides and animal exhibitions are not permitted. 

SEE ATTACHMENT W Jaekson-ville Beaeh Minimum Fire Safety Requirements for Food Trueks and 
Trailers 

Special Events .PelieiesPolicy & Procedures June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

29 



IX. IX. CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS FOR FESTIVALS AND SPECIAL EVENTS TG 
BE-HELD ON THE BEACH 

Events such as walks, races, volleyball tournaments, and surf contests that take place on the beach are 
also subject to the conditions and restrictions outlined in Attaehment III by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (EDEP) Requirements for Special Events Located Seaward of the Coastal 
Construction Control Line. The City' s current .EDEP Blanket Field Permit will cover normal .EDEP 
Field Permit requirements and is authorized to permit events that meet its requirements. Should the 
Special Events Chairperson Chairman determine that additional permitting is required, the applicant will 
be required to contact the .EDEP for additional approval. (See Appendix II.) 

Rental fees and security deposits are required for events held on the beach. 

If there is an unauthorized and unpermitted Special Event on the beach in the City of Jacksonville 
Beach, the City Manager or designee shall have the authority to cancel and suspend said Special Event. 

Special Events PelieiesPolicv & Procedures-June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

30 



Special Events Pe!icicsPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

31 



APPENDIXt ... TTACIIMENT I - FACILITY RENTAL AREA 

FESTWAL SITE FACILITY RENT AL AREAS AND AREAS WHERE 
ALCOHOL MAY BE SOLD, DISTRIBUTED, AND/OR CONSUMED 

The following map defines maps define the fesfr,al site:~ 1) Facility Rental and Road Closure Areas; and 2) 
~ reas approved for the sale, /distribution and consumption of alcoholic beverages. 
_Consumption of alcoholic beverages can occur within the entire festival areafacility Rental Area when required 
fencing is in place. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

Facility Rental Area A 

a. The Sea Walk lawn area extends from the east side of 15t Street to the west side of the 
Sea Walk [boardwalk], and from the outer edge of the stage to the south side of the lawn. 

b. No more than 50 percent of the Sea Walk lawn area shall be designated for paid, priority 
seating. If fenced, the fencing will be erected along the north side of the most northern of 
the two IO-foot paved walkways in the middle of the Sea Walk lawn. Nothing shall be 
erected around the paid, priority seating area that would obstruct the view of any spectators 
at the festival. If anything is found to obstruct the view of spectators outside the paid, 
priority seating area, the producer will be required to remove it. 

c. At least one-half of Area A must remain open and free to the general public. 

d. Alcohol may be sold, distributed and/or consumed in this area when the required fencing is 
in place. 

Facility Rental Area B 

a. The Latham Plaza area extends from the west side of 1 st Street to the east side of 2nd Street, 
and from the south side of the sidewalk on I st A venue North to the west side of the paver 
walkway on the north side of the Latham Plaza Parking Lot. 

b. Alcohol may be sold, distributed and/or consumed in this area when the required fencing is 
in place. 

Facility Rental Area C 
A. 
a. Area C can only be rented during the months of October through February. 

b. Exception: Area C can be used for the Great Atlantic Seafood Festival, Springing the 
Blues, and the Air Show~ 

D. Road Closure Area 

a. The standard road closure area is between the Sea Walk Pavilion and Latham Plaza - p t 
Street North at I st Avenue North, and 1 st Street North northeast comer of Latham Parking 
lot and north of the Hotel ' s north parking lot entrance/exit. 

b. Additional road closures will be determined by the Police Department. 

Special Events Pe!iciesPolicv & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

32 



Special Events .PoJiciesPolicy & Procedures - June 51 2017s 
City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida 

33 



FACILITY RENT AL AREA 

A - 8EzA ... \\'ALKSEA WALK 
PAVILION 
B - LATHAM PLAZA 

6GACJ.t 

Area A contains the only 
allowable area for paid 
preferred/priority 
S~eating (outlined in red). 
At least one-half of Area A 
must remain open and free 
to the general public 
withaut ehaFge. 

The standard road closure , 
area is outlined in green. 

C 

Area C can only be 
rented during the 
months of October 
through February. 

Exception: Area C 
can be used for the 
Great Atlantic 
Seafood festival-held 
in MaFeh, Springing 
the Blues, and the Air1 

a===;:-,1 Show. 

ALCOHOL MAY BE CONSUMED, DISTRIBUTED AND SOLD IN ALL AREAS WITHIN 
THE FACILITY RENTAL AREA WHEN REQUIRED FENCING IS IN PLACE 

34 



APPENDIX II - FLORIDA DEP REOUIREMENTSATTl .. CHMENT II 

4 11. 

(1) 

(2) 

B. 

PORTIONS OF CODE OF ORDINl .... ~CES THAT APPLY TO SPECIAL EVENTS 

,4Jeehelie Bwemges ChepteF 4 DFielaeg ie puhlie; pFime feeie evideeee 

(a) Drmkiag ia publie plaees. It shall be l:IB:lav,•ful for aay person to eonsume or drink any beer, wiae, 
liql:lor, or other aleoholie beverage on any pl:lblie street, sidewalks, boardwalk, or other pl:lblie plaee aot 
dl:lly lieensed to permit eoRsl:lmptioR of beverages OA the premises. 

(b) Drinking of aleoholie beverages on premises of aleoholie beYerage establishment. 

Coasl:lmptioA. It shall be UH.lawful for B:AY person to eonsl:lme or drink any beer, wine, liql:lor, or other 
aleoholie beyerage OR the premises of any establishment, exeept OR a patio or poreh ·n<here tables and 
ehairs are provided and approYed and lieeflsed for Ol:ltdoor eonsumption, or withifl the buildi0g 't'r'hieh is 
the address of the establishmeflt. 

Constfl:letiofl. This seetio0 shall not be eonstrued to al:lthorize the eonsumptiofl of any aleoholie beverages 
Ofl afly premises where sueh eonsun'lption v,rould otherwise be prohibited by the proYisiofls of an aleoholie 
beverage lieeflse or by a zofliflg regl:llation of the City or by the laws of the state. 

(e) Prima faeie evideflee. Possessiofl of an opefl eofltainer eoatai0ing an aleoholie beyerage by B:Ay 
person in the areas prohibited by this seetiofl shall be prim a faeie evidenee of a violation of this seetiofl. 

Noise Chapter 18 

Speeiel Event Noise RequiFemeets 
Speeiel events that will have amplified musie OF sound et'e FequiFed ta fellow the eeeditiees eutlieed ie the 

City's Noise 0Fdieeeee ChepteF 18 NOISE. The eveet must he staged hetweee the heuFS of 9 A.M. 
end 10:00 P.M. The peFmitted limited D8ise level may eat exeeed seventy (70) dB (,A· .. ) feF meFe thee 
thFee (3) eumuletive mieutes of eey eeetieueus sixty mieute peFied, whee meesuFed ie eeeeFdeeee 
with Seetiee 18 3(e). The City of JeelcSeeville Peliee DeIJet'tmeet OF Cedes EefeFeemeet 
DeIJet'tmeet will meh.e that deteFmieatiee. 

C. S igR Standards Chapter 3 4 

Speeiel Event Sign RequiFemeets 
TemIJOFtlf'Y speeial e'f'eet haeeeFs may he eFeeted eed meietaieed fat' e IJeried eat ta exeeed tweety eee 

(21) days IJFieF ta the date of the eampeige, dFive, aefoity, OF event is seheduled ta eeeuF aed shall 
he Femeved within thFee (3) days of the teFmieatiee of the event. 

Seipe Sign meses a sige made of aey mateFial whee sueh sige is taelted, eailed, IJ8Sted, IJftSted, glued OF 
ethen.•ise attaehed ta tFees, l)Oles, feeees OF etheF eh:jeets, aed the advertisieg metteF ftlJIJeftFieg 
theFeee is eat tllJIJlieahle ta the IJFeseet use of the pFemises upee whieh sueh sign is leeeted. 

D. AdYertisi0g, Chapter 3, Artiele II Distribution of Hafldbills 

Haedhills shall meee aey l)Fieted OF written matteF, aey samIJle OF deviee, dedgeF, eiFeulaF, leaflet, 
IJftmIJhlet, IJftlJeF heeli:let OF aey etheF IJFieted OF etheFWise FeIJFOdueed eFigieel OF eepies of aey 

35 



matter af literature. 

Seetian 3 21. Plaeing an vehieles. 
No person shall throw or deposit any handbill in or upon any vehiele. 

Seetion 3 22. Restrieted in puhlie plaees. 
It shall he unlawful far any person to hand out or distribute or sell any handbill in any puhlie plaee; exeept 

that a handbill may he personally delinred to any person willing to aeeept the same. 

36 



ATTACHMENT ill 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS 
FOR SPECIAL EVENTS LOCATED SEAWARD OF THE 
COASTAL CONSTRUCTION CONTROL LINE 

The following restrictions will be used to determine approval of activities on the beach. Should further approval 
be needed after review of the completed Special Event Application by the City, the applicant will be required to 
contact the appropriate State Departments. Otherwise, the City' s Blanket Field Permit when attached to the 
Special Event Permit will serve to apply to meet the requirements outlined by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) . 

A. Coastal Construction Control Line (CCCL) 

The FDEP Florida Department of Environmental Proteetion (FDEP) has regulatory authority over 
activities associated with special events such as sporting events, festivals, organized parties, concerts, 
and filming events that are located seaward of the CCCLCoastal Constrnetion Control Line (CCCL). At 
the Jacksonville Beach 8ea1.valkSeaWalk8ea Walk Pavilion, the CCCL is located approximately 50 feet 
east of .l:'._Ftrst-Street, North. Maps of the CCCL are located at the City of Jacksonville Beach Building 
Department or the FDEP, 8800 Baymeadows Way West, Suite 100, Florida Department of 
Environmental ProteetioR, 7825 Baymeadov,•s Way, Seite B200, Jacksonville, FL 32256. 

B. FDEP Beaches and Shores Field Permit 

If a special event or any activity associated with a special event is located seaward of the bulkhead in 
Jacksonville Beach, you must contact the FDEP at 904-256-1700 for information regarding Beaches and 
Shores Field Permits for special events. The following activities are examples of special event activities 
that may require a FDEP Beaches and Shores Field Permit: 

Activities located on the Beach or Dunes 
• Temporary structures 
• Excavation (post and volleyball nets included) 
• Removal or disturbance of beach material 
• Alteration of existing elevations 
• Impacts to native dune vegetation 

Activities located Seaward of the CCCLCaestel Canstruetian Central Line 
• Any additional nighttime lighting between May 1 and October 31 

C. Marine Turtle Nesting Season 

May 1 through October 31 is the marine turtle-nesting season. There are special prohibitions and 
restrictions during this time for most activities located seaward of the CCCL eoastal eonstrnetion eontrol 
+me and seaward of the dune crest. Some of the activities under protected species restrictions include 
the use of lighting, ball catching nets, heavy equipment, and any apparatus that penetrates into the beach 
or dune. You must contact the Bureau of Protected Species Management to verify that these 
requirements have been met if the proposed activity will occur during the marine turtle-nesting season. 

D. ;EDEP Contact 

37 



Field Permits ~nd Bureau ofBeaehes and Coastal 8ystem~[JLZ18] 
904-655-1765 or 904-256-1700850 4 88 7708 

FDEP SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR EVENTS HELD ON THE BEACH 

If the area along the beach impacted by an event is considered suitable nesting habitat, the following conditions 
must be followed . If these conditions are not accomplished, the proposed activity cannot take place. 

1. To minimize potential adverse impacts to marine turtles, daily early morning surveys are required to 
begin on May 1 or sixty five (65} calendar days in advance of the tournament whichever date is later. 
Daily surveys will continue to be conducted until all tear-down activities have finished. 

2. All nest surveys, nest screening, and marking activities shall be conducted by persons listed on a valid 
permit issued by the Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Marine Resources, pursuant 
to Rule 16R- l , Florida Administrative Code. The permitte~d shall contact the appropriate marine turtle 
pennit holder for each event area. The current marine turtle permit holder for this area is Mort Hansen 
who may be contacted at (904) 613-6081. 

3. Nests that are deposited within the event site shall be left in situ unless other factors (inundation) 
threaten the success of the nest. If any nests are determined to have been deposited within the project 
area, such nests will be marked and the actual location of the clutch determined. A circle with a radius 
of ten (10) feet, centered at the clutch, shall be marked by stake and survey tape or string. No event 
activities shall enter this circle and no adjacent event activity shall be allowed which might directly or 
indirectly disturb the area within the staked circle. If the nest cannot be avoided by this distance due to 
the scope of the project, all activity near the nest must be postponed until the nest has completed 
incubation and all hatchlings have emerged. 

4. No activity associated with the event shall take place on the beach prior to the early morning survey or 
after 9:00 P.M. No temporary lighting of the event area is authorized at any time during the marine 
turtle-nesting season, May 1 through October 31. 

5. No operation of heavy equipment, cars, trucks, etc., is authorized seaward of the dune crest, existing 
seawalls, or bulkheads during the marine turtle season. 

6. No construction of tents or any placement of stakes, poles, or other penetrating apparatus may be placed 
on the beach until each individual site location is approved by the duly appointed marine turtle permit 
holder. All temporary structures shall be constructed at the locations depicted in the approved plan. No 
additional temporary structures are authorized. 

7. All sponsor ball catching nets shall be removed daily by 9:00 P.M. and not replaced prior to the 
completion of the marine turtle nesting survey each morning, or the nets shall be erected to allow for a 
minimum of three (3) feet of clearance between the beach surface and the bottom of the net. 

8. Prior to implementing the required monitoring plan, the applicant or contracted marine turtle permit 
holder shall contact FDEP at 904-655-1765 or 904-256-1700 the Bureau of Beaehes and Coastal 
Systems at (850)_ 488 7708 to confirm that the requirements of the monitoring plan have been 
accomplished. 

38 



APPEND JEX ill - FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH MINIMUM FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
FOR FOOD TRUCKS, TRAILERS, AND TENTS* 

Vendor Name: Date: 

* This sample form will be updated periodically and subject to change to reflect the current laws in the State of 
Florida 

JACKSONVILLE BEACH FIRE DEPARTMENT 

The fire department will not allow cooking prior to receiving a passing inspection from the Fire Marshal 
or his designee. Any questions concerning these requirements may be directed to the Fire Marshal at 
247-6239. For after hours and weekends, call the Shift Captain at 247-6240. 

0 1. Vehicle/trailer is to be equipped with a commercial exhaust system 

0 2. Vehicle/trailer is to be equipped with a fire suppression system when cooking produces grease laden 
vapors 

0 3. Fire Suppression System is to be inspected and tagged every 6 months by licensed fire suppression 
contractor 

0 4. Provide (1) 2A10BC fire extinguisher (red extinguisher) 

0 5. If frying or cooking operation produces grease laden vapors, one 40BC fire extinguisher for each piece 
of frying equipment or one K-class extinguisher is required. (silver extinguisher) 

0 6. Fire extinguishers to be mounted in a fixed location and inspected and tagged by a licensed fire 
extinguisher company (within last 12 months) 

0 7. All compressed gas cylinders to be chained or strapped in position 

0 8. Filling of LP gas cylinders on site will not be pennitted 

0 9. There will be no access to the cooking equipment and fuel sources by the general public 

39 



Additional Requirements for Tents: 

D I 0. Tent material will be required to be treated with flame retardant 
The fire department requires a certificate or other evidence of approval by a laboratory of recognized 
standing or the report of tests made by other inspection authorities as evidence that the tent fabric 
materials have the required flame resistance. 

D 11 . The ground enclosed by any tent or temporary membrane structure and for a reasonable distance, but 
not Jess than 10 ft. outside of such structure(s) shall be cleared of all flammable or combustible material 
or vegetation. 
Exception: Cardboard used for protection ofpavement. 

D 12. Frying equipment to be located under the tent protected from rain. 

D 13. Barbeque grills to be located outside of tent to help eliminate smoke buildup and possible flame up. 

D Approved D Disapproved 

Si ed: 
JBFD Fire Inspector 

Comments: 

40 



APPENDIX IV - TEMPORARY FOOD SERVICE EVENTS 

FLORIDA DIVISION OF HOTELS & RESTAURANTS GUIDE TO 
TEMPOARARY FOOD SERVICE EVENTS 

This guide contains the same information as DBPR Form HR 5030-034, Guide to Temporary Food Service 
Events, a PDF document available in English and Spanish at the following website: 
(http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/hr/licensing/GT tempevents.hanl) 

A temporary food service event is an event of 30 calendar days or less in duration where food is prepared, 
served, or sold to the general public and is advertised and recognized in the community. A temporary food 
service establishment or vendor is a participant at a temporary food service event. 

We developed this guideline for temporary events from Chapters 61 C-1 and 61 C-4, Florida Administrative 
Code, and Chapter 509, Florida Statutes. 

A. Licensing 

A public food service establishment or other food vendor must obtain a license from the division for each 
temporary food service event in which it participates (unless exempted). Annual temporary event licenses are 
also available which allow participation in an unlimited number of temporary events. The division will inspect 
temporary events and if minimum sanitation standards are not met, the food service operation will be 
discontinued until corrections are completed and verified by the division. 

Sponsors of a temporary food service event must notify the division of the following items no less than three (3) 
business days prior to the scheduled event. 

1) Type of food service proposed, 
2) Time and location of the event, 
3) Complete list of food service vendor owners and operators participating, and 
4) Current license number of each public food service establishment participating. 

Notification: Event sponsors may complete notification requirements by telephone at 850.487.1395, in person 
at the appropriate district office, via email at dhr.info@myfloridalicense.com or in writing. A public food 
service establishment or food service vendor may not use this notification process to circumvent the license 
requirement. 

41 



The division keeps record of all notifications received for proposed temporary food service events and provides 
appropriate educational materials to the event sponsor. 

Group License: The division may issue a group license to a vendor with multiple units serving a single non
potentially hazardous food (e.g., churros). All grouped units must serve the same food. Foods requiring 
additional preparation or handling are not eligible for group licensing. All qualifying units must be inspected in 
a single location. 

B. Licensing Exemptions 

Public food service establishments holding current licenses from the division may operate at temporary events 
with no additional license fee. 

Temporary events such as carnivals, fairs, or other celebrations operated on church or school property or any 
eating place operated by a nonprofit civic, fraternal or religious organization are exempt from licensing and 
inspection by the Division of Hotels ftfld& Restaurants. 

C. Fees 

Temporary public food service establishments and vendors are required to pay the following license fees at the 
time of licensing: 

• 1-3 dayevent-$91 
• 4-30dayevent - $105 
• Annual - $456 

The division does not accept cash payments for fees at temporary events. The division accepts cashier's checks, 
money orders or other certified payments. Fees are current at the time of Special Event PolieiesPolicy adoption 
and are subject to change. Please check the Florida Division of Hotels & Restaurant website for current fees. 

D. Fire Safety 

Fire Safety Code requires a portable fire extinguisher. Check with the local fire authority for specific 
requirements pertaining to the size, type or tagging of required fire extinguishers or other fire related 
requirements. 

E. Personnel 

Employees may not touch ready-to-eat (RTE) food with their bare hands unless there is a written Alternative 
Operating Procedure (AOP) available that has been approved by the division. Without an approved AOP, 
employees must use suitable utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas, tongs, single-use gloves, or dispensing 
equipment when handling RTE food. 

Food service workers transmit most foodbome disease causing germs to foods. That is why it is so important 
for employees to maintain high standards of personal cleanliness. All personnel must wash hands prior to 
beginning work, when returning to work after any break in food preparation activities, when putting on or 
changing gloves, or any time their hands become soiled. 

Smoking is prohibited in ,varewashiAgware washing, food preparation and food storage areas. 

42 



Personnel must wear clean outer garments, effective hair restraints and no jewelry on their hands or arms 
(except plain wedding bands). If worn, artificial and painted fingernails must be covered by intact gloves. 
All personnel must be free of open sores and skin infections, respiratory infections, upset stomach, diarrhea or 
other communicable diseases. 

F. Facilities 

The specific requirements for the temporary event physical facility where food is prepared or handled are based 
on the length of the event, the type of food that is prepared or served, and the extent of food preparation 
conducted at the temporary facility. Minimum requirements may include: 

I) Food service operators must provide overhead protection if food is prepared or portioned or 
wa:rev.,ashmgware washing is done onsite; 

2) Flooring may be concrete, machine-laid asphalt or dirt/gravel if it is covered with mats, removable platforms, 
-duckboards, or other suitable approved materials that effectively control dust and mud and are graded to drain; 

3) Walls and ceilings must be constructed of a material that protects the interior from the weather, windblown 
dust and debris, or other forms of cross contamination; 

4) When potentially hazardous food is prepared at events of four to thirty ( 4-30) 4-;0-days in length, the 
physical structure where the food preparation occurs must be protected against flying insects and other vermin 

~ 

a) 16 mesh to I inch screens, 
b) Properly designed and installed air curtains, or 
c) Other effective means. 

5) A three-compartment sink is required within the temporary food service for washing, rinsing and sanitizing 
utensils and equipment. If this activity is conducted at an approved, remotely located commissary or food 
service establishment, an adequate supply of spare preparation and serving utensils must be maintained on the 
premises in case the original utensils become soiled; and 

6) A handwashing facility is required. This facility may be a clean, portable container equipped with an on/off 
valve. Soap and single-service paper towels must be available for handwashing and hand drying. 

G. Water 

All food service operations that prepare or portion food on the premises must provide an adequate supply of 
potable water for purposes of cleaning and employee handwashing. Municipal connections, holding tanks or 
portable containers are accepted means to provide an adequate supply. 

Steam used in contact with food or food-contact surfaces must be free from contamination. 

H. Solid and Liquid Waste 

Operators must remove all garbage and rubbish from the premises often enough to prevent nuisance conditions 
and dispose solid waste properly in tight-fitting, covered containers. 

Operators must dispose liquid waste in a public or other approved sewerage system. 

43 



I. Required Items 

• Sanitizer (properly diluted, unscented bleach may be used) 
• Probe thermometer 
• Chemical test strips (for measuring sanitizer concentration) 
• Three-compartment sink to wash, rinse and sanitize equipment and utensils or access to such facilities at 

an approved commissary or food service establishment 
• Hair restraints 
• Adequate supply of back-up utensils 
• Adequate supply of potable water 
• Soap and single-service towels 
• Adequate equipment and facilities to maintain food at the proper temperatures 
• Adequate protection from flying insects, vermin, dust, dirt and weather 
• Adequate protection for displayed, prepared, and stored food 
- If required by local fire authority, properly tagged and sized portable fire extinguisher 

• 

• To Prevent Food borne Illness 

• Obtain foods from an approved source. Home prepared food is not allowed. 
• Wash hands thoroughly before handling food, single-service items and clean equipment and utensils. 
• Maintain hot foods at temperatures of 13 5° Fahrenheit or above. 
• Maintain cold foods at temperatures of 41 ° Fahrenheit or below. 
• Cook pork to a minimum temperature of 145° Fahrenheit for at least fifteen (1 5) seconds. 
• Cook beef to a minimum temperature of 155° Fahrenheit for at least fifteen (15) seconds. 
• Cook chicken and other poultry to a minimum temperature of 165° Fahrenheit for at least fifteen ( 15) 

seconds. 
• Reheat cooked foods to a minimum temperature of 165° Fahrenheit within two (2) hours for hot 

holding. 
• Check food temperatures frequently with a probe type thermometer. 
• Heat foods quickly and cool foods rapidly. 
• Keep raw and cooked foods separated. 
• Thaw foods properly: completely submerged under cold running water not longer than four ( 4) hours, as 

part of the cooking process, or under refrigeration. 
• Use single-service articles whenever possible. 
• Keep foods covered and protected from dust, dirt, insects, vermin and human cross contamination. 
• Protect all food, including displayed food, from customer contamination (touching, coughing, sneezing, 

etc.). 
• Minimize handling of foods before, during and after preparation. 
• Do not store food directly in contact with ice used for beverages. 
• Do not use swollen, leaking or damaged canned goods. 
• Store all food products and equipment at least six inches off the ground. 

44 



APPENDIX V - SITE INSPECTION AND CLEANUP AGREEMENT 

SPECIAL EVENT SITE INSPECTION AND EVENT CLE, ......... ~ UPCLEANUP AGREEMENT 

THIS DOCUMENT PROVIDES THE EVENT ORGANIZER/PRODUCER WITH THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH CLEAJ>t UPCLEANUP STANDARDS AND EXPECTATIONS 
BEFORE, DURING, AND AFTER AN EVENT. 

It is the responsibility of the event organizer/producer to ensure vendors and providers keep City facilities and the 
surrounding areas used or affected by the crowds attending the special event in a clean and sanitary condition 
during and after an event. The cost of elean upcleanup services within the event site including the road closure area 
as specified in the Special Event Permit is the responsibility of the event organizer/producer. Non-compliance may 
result in the event being shut down, forfeiture of the security deposit, additional fees charged, and/or forfeiture of 
participation in future events on City property. 

Jacksonville Beach Parks & Recreation Department personnel and the organizer/producer will conduct a site inspection 
prior to an event. Any areas of concern or damage will be noted with both parties signing the inspection sheet. At an 
agreed upon time, a closing site inspection will be conducted by Parks & -&and-Recreation Department personnel and 
the organizer/producer to identifv any issues, concerns or damages, and to ensure the site is left in satisfactory 
condition. 

Event Name: 

Event Date: 

Inspection Date: 

PRE-EVENT INSPECTION 

45 



D Site Inspection Conducted by Parks & Recreation Department Personnel and the 

Organizer/Producer 

D No Visible Signs of Damage to the Grass, Trees, or Grounds 

D SeawalkSeaWalk Pavilion Clear ofall Equipment, Swept, and Trash Cans Emptied 

D Document Areas of Concern or Existing Damage 

D Irrigation and Electrical Systems are Operational 

D Equipment at the Seawall(SeaWalk Pavilion is Orderly 

Document Existing Areas of Concern or Damage: 

AGREEMENT- SIGNATURE BEFORE THE EVENT 

I have read and understand the Special Event Site Inspection and Event Clean upCleanup Agreement required 
for hosting an event in the City of Jacksonville Beach. I agree te the best ef my ability to follow the Special 
Events PelieiesPolicy, to ensure any providers or vendors used also understand and follow these standards, and 
agree to leave the facilities in the condition required. 

Signature of Event Organizer/Producer Date 

Signature of Parks & Recreation Department Personnel Date 

POST-EVENT INSPECTION 

D Site Inspection Conducted by Parks & Recreation Department Personnel and the 

Organizer/Producer 

D No Visible Signs of Damage to the Grass, Trees. or Grounds 

46 



D Seawall,SeaWalk Pavilion Clear of all Equipment, Swept, and Trash Cans Emptied 

D Document Areas of Concern or Existing Damage 

D Irrigation and Electrical Systems are Operational with No Damage Resulting from Event 

D Equipment at the Sea'll'all.Sea Walk Pavilion is Replaced and Orderly 

D Document Areas of Concern or Damage Along with Remediation Plans 

D All Vendors and Trash are Removed from the Site 

D Areas Where Food was Prepared and Served Have Been Pressure Washed 

D Portable Toilets Removed from Site Without Incident 

Seawall,SeaWalk Pavilion Equipment Inventory 

Trash Cans 

Orange Hollow Barricades 

6' Orange/White Collapsible Barricades 

Traffic Cones 

Signs - 'No Alcohol Beyond This Point' 

Additional Charges 

Boxes of Trash Can Liners 

Dumpster Size(s) 

Signs- 'Festival Rules' 

Signs- Handicapped Parking 

Signs - 'Road Closed' 

Tripods for 'Road Closed' Signs 

Signs 'No Parking' 

Liner Fee Totals 

Dumpster Fee Totals 

Approval is granted for you to provide your own elean upcleanup services. It is your responsibility to ensure 
vendors and providers keep City facilities, and the surrounding areas used or affected by the crowds attending the 
special event, -in a clean and sanitary condition during and after an event. The cost of elean upcleanup services is 
the responsibility of the event organizer/producer. 

The area where food has been cooked, and any other areas deemed necessary by Parks &amt-& Recreation 
Department personnel, must be cleaned/pressure washed after the event. A elean upcleanup inspection of the site, 
to include all rented facilities, landscape, hardscape, storm drains, streets, pavers, and grass, will be conducted by 
Parks & Recreation Department personnel within +iforty-eight (48) hours of the event. 

Failure to follow this policy could result in forfeiture of the security deposit, additional fees charged for 
cleaning/pressure washing, and forfeiture of participation in future events on City property. 

Other Additional Clean UpCleanup Required: 

47 



AGREEMENT-SIGNATURE WITHIN 48nFORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS QFFOLLOWING THE 
EVENT 

The City of Jacksonville Beach and the Event Organizer/Producer both agree to the post-event inspection and any 
necessary remediation plans. 

Signature of Event Organizer/Producer Date 

Signature of Parks &&afl.d Recreation Department Personnel Date 

APPENDIX VI - TIMELINE OF DUE DATES 

48 



TIMELINE OF DUE DATES 

49 



90 days 
prior 

Fully complete application submittal & all 
supporting docs (Organizer/Producer) 

~ Special Events committee meets (City & 
~ Organizer/Producer) 

~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

DRAFT permit issued (City) 

Deposit and all rental, ad min and banner fees 
paid (Organizer/Producer) 

Application to Hang Banners on Street Light 
Poles submitted (Organizer/ Producer) 

Application for Road Closure submitted 
(Organizer/Producer) 

~ All permits, alcoholic beverage permits, licenses 
~ and insurance submitted (Organizer/Producer) 

15 days 
prior 

10 days 
prior 

Notify businesses and residents affected by road closures; 
complete Beach Driver Training Course, if applicable 
(Organizer/Producer) 

Issue permit (City) 

Event date 

All other applicable fees (City departments, 
damage, etc.) paid (Organizer/Producer) 

Delivery bill of lading indicating type and amount of 
alcohol delivered, final accounting and invoice billed to 
holder of temporary alcohol permit (organizer/ 
producer) 

50 



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

1460A Shetter Avenue 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6226 

Fax: 904.270.1639 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

TO: George Forbes 

City Manager 

FROM: Jason Phitides 
Director of Parks and Recreation 

DATE: May 19, 2017 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

RE: Lease Amendment for Golf Course Restaurant 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approve an amendment to the Commercial Lease Agreement with Four Brothers 

of Jacksonville, Inc., for a temporary reduction to the monthly lease rate. 

BACKGROUND: 

The lease agreement with Four Brothers of Jacksonville Inc., for the Golf Course 

restaurant began in June 2016. The lease rate is $3,000 per month with an 

annual increase of 4% on each anniversary date. The initial term is for three (3) 
years ending in May 2019, with two (2) consecutive renewable options of three 

(3) years each, for a total lease term of nine (9) years. 

In November 2016, we amended the lease to provide a temporary reduction in 
the monthly lease rate based on a substantial decline in the number of rounds 

played. 

The amendment reduced the lease payments from $3,000 to $1,000 per month 
from October 2016 through February 2017, and to $1,500 per month from March 

2017 through May 2017. Thereafter, unless authorized by the City Council, the 

lease rate would revert to the original rate, including the annual increase. 

Although the course conditions have improved considerably, the amount of 
rounds played has not reached the same level compared to two (2) years ago. 

Following is a comparison of rounds played for the past three (3) months 
beginning in February and ending in April, versus the same time period in 2015: 

Rounds played February through April in 2015: 
Rounds played February through April in 2017: 
Decrease in rounds played 2015 versus 2017: 

13,165 
11,103 
2,062 {15.7%} 



A corresponding 15. 7% reduction in the original lease rate would yield the 

following : 

Original Monthly Lease Rate: 
Less 15. 7% reduction: 

Revised Monthly Lease Rate: 

$3,000 

$ 471 
$2,529 

Staff recommend a revised monthly lease rate of $2,529 for twelve (12) months 

beginning June 2017 through May 2018. Thereafter the monthly lease rate would 

revert to the original monthly rate of $3,000 plus the annual 4% increase. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve an amendment to the Commercial Lease Agreement with Four Brothers 
of Jacksonville, Inc., for a temporary reduction to the monthly lease rate to 

$2,529 per month for twelve months beginning June 2017 through May 2018, as 
described in the memorandum from the Director of Parks and Recreation dated 

May 19, 2017. 



BEACHES I ENERGY 
S E R V C E S 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

George D. For bes 
City Manager 

Allen Putnam 
Director of Beaches Energy Services 

May 18, 2017 

Electric Supplies - 12 Months Requirements 

ACTION REQUESTED; 

Approval of Bid No. 1617-11 - Electric Supplies - 12 Months Requirements. 

BACKGROUND; 

The City of Jacksonville Beach solicited bids from six (6) vendors. On May 10, 2017, six (6) bids were 
received for Bid No. 1617-11. This bid covers 30 different items stocked in the Storeroom for use by 
Beaches Energy Services for maintenance of the overhead and underground electric system. 

The lowest bidders meeting specifications are as follows: 

Item Description Est. Qty Vendor Unit Price Total 

1 1/0 MODULAR TERMINATOR WITH 100 Stuart Irby $ 122.34 $ 12,234.00 
MOUNTING BRACKET, 25KV 

2 2/0 - 350KCM CONNECTOR 1,000 Stuart Irby $ 2.57 $ 2,570.00 

3 CONNECTOR COVER 1,500 Gresco $ 1.53 $ 2,295.00 

4 SOLID STATE PHOTOCELL W/320 800 Stuart Irby $ 3.47 $ 2,776.00 
JOULE MOY SURGE PROTECTION 

5 ELBOW ARRESTOR 21KV 200 Gresco $ 79.48 $ 15,896.00 

6 FAULT INDICATOR W/PP2 LOGIC 600 Gresco $ 162.15 $ 97,290.00 
DYNAMIC CURVE FIBER REMOTE 

7 600 AMP ELBOW CONNECTOR, 350 75 Gresco $ 94.86 $ 7,114.50 
KCM, 25KV 

8 FOUR POINT LOADBREAK JUNCTION, 50 Stuart Irby $ 165.97 $ 8,298.50 
25KV 

9 1/0 STRAIGHT SPLICE 50 Stuart Irby $ 30.95 $ 1,547.50 



George D. Forbes 
Page 2 
May 18, 2017 

10 10" SUSPENSION INSULATOR, 30,000 
LB. STRENGTH RATING 

11 200 AMP DEADEND LOADBREAK 
RECEPTACLE 

12 1-1/2" SERVICE CONNECTION BOX, 
COMPLETE WITH LID MARKED 
"ELECTRIC" 

13 2" SERVICE CONNECTION BOX, 
COMPLETE WITH LID MARKED 
"ELECTRIC" 

14 CUT-A WAY LOCK (SHORT SHANK) 

15 INSULATED PARKING BUSHING 25KV 

16 1/0 LOADREAK ELBOW CONNECTOR 
25KV 

17 LOADBREAK BUSHING INSERT, 25KV, 
200AMP 

18 TRI-MOUNT CUTOUT & ARRESTOR 
BRACKET W/HARDWARE 

19 MEDIUM BRONZE PARALLEL 
CONNECTOR 

20 SINGLE MOUNT ARRESTOR & 
CUTOUT BRACKET W/2" CAPTNE 
BOLT 

21 SURGE ARRESTOR 21KV C/W 
CROSSARM BRACKET 

22 CUTOUT OPEN DIST. C/W 
LOADBUSTER HOOK 38KV, 100 AMP 

23 TWO WAY FEED THRU CONNECTOR, 
200 AMP, 25KV 

24 CUT-A WAY LOCK (LONG SHANK) 

25 200 AMP SECONDARY PEDESTAL 

26 1 OOOKCM COLD SHRINK 
TERMINATOR WITH MOUNTING 
BRACKET 

27 SINGLE PHASE FIBERGLASS 15 
DEGREE STANDOFF HORIZONTAL 
POST INSULATOR BRACKET 

60 

100 

150 

20 

2,500 

50 

500 

200 

50 

2,000 

100 

200 

50 

75 

200 

75 

30 

200 

2 

Stuart Irby $ 24.92 $ 1,495.20 

Stuart Irby $ 20.88 $ 2,088.00 

Gresco $ 94.30 $ 14,145.00 

Electric Supply $ 126.75 $ 2,535.00 

Electric Supply $ 1.47 $ 3,675.00 

Gresco $ 36.86 $ 1,843.00 

Gresco $ 27.16 $ 13,580.00 

Gresco $ 26.52 $ 5,304.00 

Stuart Irby $ 91.09 $ 4,554.50 

Wesco $ 2.04 $ 4,080.00 

Anixter $ 36.15 $ 3,615.00 

Electric Supply $ 35.25 $ 7,050.00 

Wesco $ 80.81 $ 4,040.50 

Gresco $ 97.68 $ 7,326.00 

Gresco $ 0.62 $ 124.00 

Electric Supply $ 160.00 $ 12,000.00 

Stuart Irby $ 506.70 $ 15,201.00 

Wesco $ 61.83 $ 12,366.00 



George D. For bes 
Page2 
May 18, 2017 

28 100 AMP OVERHEAD POLYMER 
SWITCH PO WERLINE HARDWARE 

29 4/0 MODULAR TERMINATOR WITH 
MOUNTING BRACKET 

30 350MCM MODULAR TERMINATOR 
WITH MOUNTING BRACKET 

TOTALS 

A complete bid tabulation is attached. 

160 

6 

12 

11,113 

Gresco $ 72.68 $ 11,628.80 

Stuart Irby $ 181.10 $ 1,086.60 

Stuart Irby $ 293.80 $ 3,525.60 

$ 281,284.70 

Funds are budgeted in Beaches Energy Services' Operating Supplies and Capital Improvements Accounts. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Award Bid No. 1617-11 to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as explained in the memorandum from 
Beaches Energy Services Director dated May 18, 2017. 

3 



Beaches Energy Services 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Bid No. 1617-11 Electric Supplies 

Item no. Description 
110 MODULAR TERMINATOR WITH MOUNTING BRACKET, 

1 25KV 
2 210 - 350KCr.t CONNECTOR 
3 CONNECTOR COVER 

SOLID STATE PHOTOCELL WJ320 JOULE MOV SURGE 
... PROTECTION 

5 ELBOW ARRESTOR 21 KV 
FAULT INDICATOR W/PP2 LOGIC DYNAM IC CURVE FIBER 

6 REMOTE 
T 600 AM P ELBOW CONNECTOR, 350 KCt.t. 251<V 
II: FOUR POINT LOADBREAK JUNCTION, 25KV 
9 110 STRAIGHT SPLICE 

1 O" SUSPENSIOIII INSULATOR, 30,000 LB. STRENGTH 
10 RATING 
11 200 AM P DEADEND LOAOBREAK RECEPTACLE 

1-112' SERVICE CONNECTION BOX, COMPLETE WITH LID 
12 MARKED "ELECTRIC" 

2" SERVICE CONNECTION BOX, COMPLETE WITH LID 
13 MARKED "ELECT.RIC" 
14 CUT-AWAY LOCK {SHORT SHANK} 
15 INSULATED PARKING BUSHING 25KV 
16 110 LOADREAK ELBOW CONNECTOR 25KV 
17 LOADBREAK BUSHING INSERT, 25KV, 200 AMP 

TRl-t.10UNT CUTOUT & ARRESTOR BRACK:ET 
18, W/HARDWARE 

19 MEDIUM BRONZE PARALLEL CONNECTOR 
SINGLE MOUNT ARRESTOR & CUTOUT BRACKET Wf2" 

20 CAPTIVE IBOL T 
21 SURGE ARRESTOR 2 1KV C/VV CROSSARM BRACKET 

CUTOUT OPEN DIST. C/W LOADBUSTER HOOK 38KV. 100 
22 AM P 
23 TWO WAY FEED THRU CONNECTOR, 200AMP. 25KV 
24 CUT-AWAY LOCK {LONG SHANK) 
25 200 AM P S ECONDARY PEDESTAL 

1000KCM COLD SHRINK TERMINATOR WITH MOUNTING 
26 BRACKET 

SINGLE PHASE FIBERGLASS 15 DEGREE STANDOFF 
27 HORIZONTAL POST INSULATOR BRACKET 

100 AM P OVERHEAD POLYMER SWITCH POWERLINE 
28 HARDWARE 
29, 410 MODULAR TERMINATOR W ITH MOUNTING BRACKET 

3501.tCM MODULAR TERMINATOR WITH MOUNTING 
30 BRACKET 

TOTALS 

Est. Otv 

100 s 
1,000 $ 
1,500 $ 

BOO $ 
20(1 $ 

aoa s 
75 $ 
50 s 
50 $ 

60 $ 
100 $ 

1511 s 

20 s 
2,500 $ 

50 $ 
5011 $ 

200 $ 

50 $ 
2,000 $ 

100 $ 
200 $ 

50 $ 
75 $ 

200 $ 

75 

30 s 

200 $ 

1611 $ 
6 s 

12 s 

11,113 

CITY OF JAOCSON\11l l.E BEACH BIO T.ABU!.ATION fORf.l 

Anixter Electric Sunnlv Gresco Stuart lrbv Tri- State 

134.65 No Bid No Bid $ 122.34 No Bid 
3.79 $ 4.45 $ 3.39 $ 2.57 $ 2.79 
1.74 $ 2.15 $ 1.53 $ 1.80 No Bid 

3.80 $3.47 • No Bid $ 3.47 $ 4.25 

89'.1 0 No Bid $ 71H8 $ 88 .119 No Bid 

163.48 s 163.00 $ 162.1 5 No Bid $ 162.95 
98 .1115 $ 95 .50 $ 94 .&6 $ 97.45 $ 103.40 

183.85 s 198.15 $ 180.85 $ 165.97 $ 169.95 
34-25 No Bid No Bid $ 311.P5 No Bid 

4§.1)0 No Bid No Bid $ 24P2 No B.id 
23 .DO $ 25'.IJO $ 20.PO $ 20 88 $ 22 .35 

122.90 $ 96 .75 $ 94.30 $ 97.23 No Bid 

156.10 s 126.75 $ 130.20 $ 131 .80 No Bid 
·1.50 s 1.47 No Bid $ 1.48 $ 1.49 

40.35 $ 7·~.25 $ 36 .&6 $ 42 .115 $ 7U9 
27.49 $ 34 .80 $ 27 .1 6 $ 28 .D5 $ 27.30 
26.55 $ 31.DO $ 21.1 .52 $ 21.1 .39 $ 28 .30 

93 .55 No Bid No Bid $ 91 09 $ 94.40 
2.1 4 $ 2.77 $ 2.18 $ 2.09 $ 2.20 

311 .15 No Bid No Bid $ 36.12 • $ 41.25 
43 .15 $ 35.25 $ 42 .D2 $ 35 .54 $ 36.75 

82 .10 s 135.50 No Bid S78.49* $ 142.30 
9J.l .85 s 103.35 $ 97 .68 $ 104.99 $ 911 .115 
0.75 $ 0.95 $ 0.62 $ 0.67 $ 1.05 

No Bid s '160.00 $ 162.00 $ 164.24 $ 184.50 

533.75 No Bid No Bid $ 506.70 No Bid' 

62 .00 No Bid No Bid S59.80 • S58.30" 

77.00 $ 90.25 $ 72.68 $ 73.40 No Bid 
191.05 No Bid No Bid $ 181.10 No Bid 

309.75 No Bid No Bid $ 293.80 No Bid 

Notes: Item #4 - • Irby and Electric Supp.ly submitted identical pricing but Irby provided a better lead time - 3 weeks 
Item #20- * Irby All Mfg. HUBBELL 15BM15AMTB5C not accepted by BES 
Item #22 - • 1rt:,y's MACLEAN S & C #89053R10-D produoed in China -BES declined 
Item #27 - • Tri-Stale end lrby"s All Mfg. not accepted by BES 

Wesco Totals 

No Bid $ 12,234.00 
$ 3.64 $ 2,570.00 
$ ·1.66 $ 2,295.00 

$ 3.49 $ 2,776.00 

$ 93.05 $ 15,896.00 

$ 179.04 $ 97,290.00 
$ 10·1.93 $ 7,11 4.50 
$ 17"1.67 $ B,298.50 
$ 31.ll5 $ 1,547.50 

No Bid $ 1,495.20 
$ 21.72 $ 2,088.00 

No Bid $ 14,1 45.00 

No Bid $ 2,535.00 
No Bid $ 3,675.00 

$ 43 .85 $ 1,843.00 
$ 28 .54 $ 13,580.00 
$ 211 .55 $ 5,304.00 

$ 94.42 $ 4,554.50 

$ 2.04 $ 4,080.00 

$ 3!1.48 $ 3,6 15.00 
$ 52.24 $ 7,050.00 

$ 80.B1 $ 4,040.50 
$ 114.84 $ 7,326.00 
$ 0.68 $ 124.00 

No Bid $ 12,000.00 

No Bid $ 15,20 1.00 

$ 61 83 $ 12,366.00 

$ 77.49 $ 11,628.80 
No Bidi $ 1,086.60 

No Bid $ 3,525.60 

.S_ 281...2!:!UQ 



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

Police Department 

101 Penman Road, South 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6343 

Fax: 904.247.6342 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

1995 

To: 

From: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Patrick K. Dooley, Chief of Police 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Patrick K. Dooley 

Chief of Police 

Subject: Request to repeal Chapter 18 "Noise" of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, in its 
entirety, and replace it with new Chapter 18 "Noise," which 
includes a section on Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and 
Acoustic Sound Permits 

Date: May 25 , 2017 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Repeal Chapter 18, "Noise" and adopt a new Chapter 18, to include Section 18-7, 
"Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound." 

BACKGROUND 

Chapter 18, "Noise" was adopted in 2002, and last updated in 2006; the chapter 
regulates sound levels throughout the city. Parts of this ordinance were made 
obsolete when City Council mandated that no new "Outside Sound 
Amplification" permits be issued; however, businesses that had been previously 
issued these permits were "grandfathered," and allowed to continue to emit 
outdoor amplified music under the previous section of the ordinance. 

Currently, 16 locations are still permitted to have outside music. This has created 
an inequity for many newer businesses which have outdoor dining in the city and 
which would like to provide low volume background music to entertain 
customers. 

To avoid conflict and/or confusion, I am recommending the repeal of the current 
Chapter 18 in its entirety, and replacement with new Chapter 18. The major 
changes to the ordinance have been highlighted in yellow. The changes and 
additions to Chapter 18 are as follows: 

1. The Downtown Action Plan directed staff to research and present an 
ordinance that would allow establishments that provide outdoor dining 
to play music at low volume to further increase the beach ambiance, 
while seeking to protect, preserve and promote the health, safety and 
quality of life of its residents and visitors. The result is the new section 
to the Code of Ordinances, Section 18-7, "Low Volume Outdoor and 
Acoustic Sound." This allows for outdoor dining with background 
sound played at low volume. This is a pilot project that expires on June 



5, 2018, unless re-adopted by the City Council. 

2. Low volume is defined in the ordinance as "sound played at a level 
such that a person outside of the property line of the source of the 
sound, speaking in a normal tone of voice, is plainly audible and can be 
heard clearly and understandably by another person standing a 
maximum of thirty-six inches (36") away from the person speaking, 
without the aid of a listening device." 

3. Section 18-7(4)(i) will allow the current 16 businesses permitted under 
the 2002 Outdoor Sound Amplification Permit ordinance to be 
"grandfathered," to operate under that portion of the ordinance. 
However, any change in the ownership, name, or location of the 
business immediately terminates their grandfathered permit. They can 
only obtain a new outdoor sound permit under the new low volume 
sound standards (18-7(g)). 

4. Section 18-5(a)(l ), "Violations; Penalties," changes terminology from 
"warning" to "Notice of Violation". 

5. Section 18-5(a)(2), removed the wording in the paragraph that relates to 
the term "reasonable time." 

6. Section 18-5(b)(l), replaces the wording "a reasonable time" with 
"instant! y." 

7. Section 18-6, "Mobile noise" includes minor changes highlighted in 
yellow. 

8. Changes throughout the chapter for minor scrivener' s errors. 

9. At the City Council meeting on May 15, 2017, Council voted and 
approved the removal of "the following day" in Section 18-7(b )( 4 )g. 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. Amend ordinance 2016-8082 by: 

a. Amending Section 18-5( a)(2) to read as follows: After the person 
or persons responsible for the noise are given such notice, the 
person responsible for the noise shall instantly comply with 
the limits of Table I in Section 18-3(d)(l). 

b. Amending Section 18-5(b)(l) by striking the words, "within a 
reasonable time" and inserting the word, " instantly." 



2. Adopt Ordinance 2016-8082, which repeals the existing Chapter 18 
"Noise" in its entirety, and replace it with a new chapter on noise that 
includes a section on Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic 
Sound Permits. 



Introduced By: Council Member Jeanell Wilson 
1st Reading: May 15, 2017 
2nd Reading: ____ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8082 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 18 
"NOISE", OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF JACK
SONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW 
CHAPTER 18, THAT INCLUDES SECTION 18:? ."LOW VOLUME OUT
DOOR AMPLIFIED AND ACOUSTIC SOUND~, l>ROVIDING FOR THE 
REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDI
NANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABJLITY; PRGVIDING FOR CODI
FICATION; AND PROVIDING FO~ .AN EFFECT~VE DATE AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. - -~-

WHEREAS, there exists the productfd-i or_ emissi&i of noises~or aµiplified 
speech, music, or other sounds that- tend to annoy;Clistffi-6,= or frighten the re11idents and 
guests of the city, and """' -~ 

M'HEREAS, the city understands that outdoor dining adds to the ambiance of a 
establishment and with that, music layed at a low volume can further increase that am-
biance and ~ ~ """ "" 

E :r ·-;...~ 

WHEREAS, '¢.!iapter 1 66,~lorida Statutes, authorizes the City Council, acting for 
the City of Jacksonville Be~ch, Floriqa, to adoptOrdinances and Resolutions necessary 

= - ""' =· -

for the exefois~ ofi}s poweri ·aira fo pi:_e~cripe fines and penalties for the violation of Or-
dinanc~s in accoroanc~ with law~ ~and 

"'T.. ~ ~ 
~ - -~"""· 

WiiE~AS, throbg1kcitizen -ib.put, the City Council has determined a need to 
more effecti~ely control and]tbate n6ise,disturbances in the City, and 

~ ·- ~ ~ 

WHEREi\S~, the city ~eeks to protect, preserve and promote the health, safety, 
welfare, and qualitf ofdife of i{S residents and guests by the reduction, control, and pre-
vention of noise. ~~ ·:.~ r 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 18. Noise of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Chapter 18. Noise 
is hereby adopted and shall read as follows: 

Page 1 



Sec. 18-1. - Legislative findings; declaration of necessity. 

It is found and declared that: 

( 1) The making and creation of excessive, unnecessary or unusually loud noises within 
the limits of the city is a condition which has existed for some time.,, and the amount 
and intensity of such noises is increasing; and 

(2) The necessity in the public interest for the provisions and prohibitions hereinafter 
contained and enacted is declared as a matter oflegislative determination and pub
lic policy, and it is further declared that the provisions and prohibitions hereinafter 
contained and enacted are in pursuance of and for the purpose of securing and 
promoting the public health, comfort, convenience, safety, welfare and prosperity 
and the peace and quiet of the city and its inhabitants. 

Sec. 18-2. - Noncompliance with chapter declared unlawful; exception. 

It shall be unlawful, except as expressly permitted herein, to make, cause or allow the 
making of any noise or sound which exceeds the limits set forth in this chapter. 

Sec. 18-3. - Noise limitations. 

(a) Definitions. For the purpose of this section, certain words and phrases used herein are 
defined as follows: 

A-band level is the total sound level of all noise as measured with a sound level meter 
using the A weighing network. The unit of measurement is the dB(A). 

Daytime is defined as 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and nighttime is defined as 10:00 p.m. 
to 7 :00 a.m. in residential use occupancies. 

Decibel is a unit(dba) of sound equal to ten (10) times the logarithm (base 10) of the 
ratio of any two (2) quantities proportional to power. 

Emergency work is the work made necessary to protect persons or property from ex
posure to danger. 

Noise level is the sound pressure level as measured in dB(A) by a sound level meter. 

Outdoor restaurant or bar means any restaurant or bar, or portion thereof, which exists 
outside of the permanent exterior walls of the principal building(s) on a lot. This definition 
includes any deck or other area constructed and/or utilized on the roof of a structure. 

Page 2 



Person is any person, person's firm, association, copartnership, joint venture, corpora
tion or any entity public or private in nature. 

Sound-level meter is an instrument including a microphone, an amplifier, an outlet me
ter, and frequency weighing networks for the measurement of noise and sound levels in a 
specified manner. 

Sound pressure level, in decibels, of sound is twenty (20) times the logarithm to the 
base ten ( 10) of the ratio of the pressure of this sound to the reference pressure, which 
reference pressure must be explicitly stated. 

Plainly Audible shall mean any sound that can be heard clearly by a person using his/her 
unaided hearing faculties. When music is involved, the detection of rhythmic bass tones 
shall be sufficient to be considered plainly audible sound. 

All time referred to in this chapter shall be the then current legal time in the City of 
Jacksonville Beach. 

All technical definitions are in accordance with American Standard S 1.1-1960 entitled, 
"Acoustical Terminology." 

(b) Classification of use occupancies; proiection of noise from one use to another. 

(1) Classification. For purposes of defining the "use occupancy", all premises contain
ing habitually occupied sleeping quarters shall be considered residential use. 

All premises containing businesses where sales, professional or other commercial 
use is legally permitted shall be considered commercial use. 

All premises where manufacturing is legally permitted shall be considered manu
facturing use. 

In cases of multiple uses, the more restrictive use category shall prevail. Hospitals, 
schools, and church areas are considered residential. Any area not otherwise clas
sified shall conform to commercial standards. 

(2) Projection of noise. Sound or noise projecting from one use occupancy to another 
use occupancy with a different noise level shall exceed neither the noise limits of 
the use occupancy into which the noise is projected nor the noise limits of the use 
occupancy from which the noise originates. 

( c) Measurement of sound or noise. 

( 1) The measurement of sound or noise shall be made with a sound level meter meeting 
the standards prescribed by the American National Standards Institute, S 1.4 Amer
ican National Standard Specifications for sound level meters. The instruments shall 
be maintained in calibration and good working order. A calibration check shall be 
made of the system at the time of any noise measurement. Measurements recorded 

Page 3 



shall be taken so as to provide a proper representation of the noise source. The 
microphone during measurement shall be positioned so as not to create any unnat
ural enhancement or diminution of the measured noise. A windscreen for the mi
crophone shall be used at all times. 

(2) The slow meter response of the sound level meter shall be used in order to best 
determine the average amplitude. 

(3) The measurement shall be made at any point outside of the property line from 
where the noise is being transmitted. 

(4) In case of multiple occupancy of a property, the measurement may be made at any 
point inside the premises to which any complainant has right of legal private occu
pancy; provided, that the measurement shall not be made within three (3) feet of 
any ground, wall, floor, ceiling, roof or other plane surface. 

(5) All noise measurements provided for in this chapter will be made by officials of 
the city who are qualified to operate the apparatus used to make the measurements 
as provided for in this chapter. 

( d) Tables of noise level limits. 

(1) Table I. Table I specifies noise levels which represent limits which if exceeded 
interfere with the-i,eace, quiet and general welfare of the city and its inhabitants. 
No noise shall be permitted within the city which exceeds the noise level limits of 
Table I except as expressly authorized by this chapter. 

Page 4 



TABLE I 

MAXIMUM ALLOW ABLE NOISE LEVEL LIMITS 
IN dB(A) FOR RESIDENTIAL, 

COMMERCIAL, AND MANUFACTURING OCCUPANCIES 

These levels may not be exceeded more than three (3) times in any continuous sixty
minute period. 

/·'·---, 
cC / 

District 
Day ' Night 

(7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.) . (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 

I Residential 70 ····-... 

" "' 65 
, 

/ "'-. ,, 
Day Night 

(7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.) (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 
1 Commercial 75 ' '·. ,' : ) 75 

I Manufacturing ( 
,. 

70 ~ 65 
' 

(2) Table II. Table Il specifies noise levels which if produced by moving vehicles will 
interfere with the peace, quiet, and general welfare of the city and its inhabitants. 

TABLE II 
NOISE LEVEL LIMITS FOR 

MOVING MOTOR VEHICLES* 

(1) Trucks and buses. Eighty-five (85) dB(A) measured fifty (50) feet from the source. 

(2) Passenger cars, motorcycles, and other motor vehicles. Seventy (70) dB(A) meas-
ured at fifty (50) feet from the source. 

*The measurement is made as the vehicle drives past. If the reading is above 
that listed in (1) or (2) of Table II at any time, the vehicle is in violation of 
this chapter. All distances are measured from the center of vehicle or center 
of the driving lane in which the vehicle is being driven. 

Page 5 



( e) Motor vehicles. 

( 1) Stationary vehicles. It shall be unlawful to start, operate, or perform repair work on 
a motor vehicle which creates a noise or sound which exceeds the noise level limits 
in Table II. 

(2)Moving vehicles. It shall be unlawful to operate a motor vehicle in such a manner as 
to exceed the noise level limits of Table II when the vehicle is operating on public 
streets, highways, driveways, parking lots, and ways open to vehicle travel. Normal 
operation includes normal acceleration, deceleration and operation at maximum 
normal speeds in all gears and ranges up to the speed limits currently effective on 
those streets of the city over which the vehicles may be operated. 

(f) Building operations. It shall be unlawful for any person to erect (including excavate), 
demolish, alter, or repair any building other than between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
6:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday, or at any time on Sundays or the following ob
served holidays: New Year' s Day, Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiv
ing, and Christmas, except in the case of urgent necessity in the interest of public safety 
and then only with a permit approved by the city manager, which permit may be re
newed for a period of three (3) days or less while emergency continues. 

(g) Exemptions. The following uses and activities shall be exempt from noise level regu
lations: 

(1) Air conditioners and lawn mowers when this equipment is functioning in accord 
with the manufacturers' specifications and with all manufacturers' mufflers and 
noise reducing equipment in use and in proper operating condition. 

(2) Non-amplified crowd noises resulting from the activities such as those planned by 
student, governmental or community groups. 

(3) Reserved. 

(4) Noises of safety signals, warning devices and emergency pressure relief valves. 

(5) Noises resulting from any authorized emergency vehicle while responding to an 
emergency call or acting in time of emergency. 

(6) Noises resulting from emergency work as defined in Section 18-3(a). 

(7) Any other noise resulting from activities of a temporary duration permitted by law 
and for which a license or permit therefor has been granted by the city in accordance 
with Section 18-3(h) (Special Event Permits). Regulation of noises emanating from 
operations under permit shall be according to the conditions and limits contained in 
Section 18-3(h). 

(8) Noises made by persons having obtained a permit to use the streets are exempt from 
Table I. 

Page 6 



(9) Any aircraft operated in conformity with, or pursuant to, federal law, federal air 
regulations, and air traffic control instruction used pursuant to and within the duly 
adopted federal air regulations shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter. 
Any aircraft operating under the technical difficulties in any kind of distress, under 
emergency orders of air traffic control or being operated pursuant to and subsequent 
to the declaration of an emergency under federal regulations are also exempt. 

(h) Special event permits. Applications for a permit for relief from the maximum allowable 
noise level limits designated in this chapter may be made in writing to the city manager 
or his/her designee. Any permit granted by the city manager hereunder must be in writ
ing and shall contain all conditions upon which the permit shall be effective. The city 
manager or his/her designee may grant the relief as applied for under the following 
conditions: 

(1) The city manager or his/her designee may prescribe any reasonable conditions or 
requirements he/she deems necessary to minimize adverse effects upon the commu
nity or the surrounding neighborhood, including use of mufflers, screens or other 
sound attenuating devices. 

(2) Permits for entertainment. Permits may be granted for the purpose of entertainment 
under the following conditions: 

a. The function must take place on public property. 

b. The function must be staged between the hours of 8 :00 a.m. and 10 :00 p.m. 

c. Functions for which the permits are issued shall be limited to a noise level not 
to exceed eighty-five (85) dB(A) more than three (3) times in any continuous 
sixty-minute period, when measured in accordance with Section 18-3(c). The 
city manager or his/her designee may, at his/her sole discretion, establish a lower 
maximum noise level based on the location or other relevant circumstances re
lating to the specific special event or noisemaking device. 

(i) Other. Special permits for non-entertainment special purposes may be issued under the 
following conditions: 

( 1) a. If the special purpose relates to the operation of a trade or business1 that the 
special purpose not be in the ordinary course of that trade or business; or, 

b. If the special purpose does not relate to the operation of a trade or business, that 
the special purpose not be an ordinary event in the affairs of the applicant; and, 

(2) If the special purpose be a recurring purpose, that it not recur more often than four 
( 4) times each calendar year; and 

(3) a. That the special purpose be absolutely necessary to the operation of the appli
cant's trade or business; or, 

Page 7 



b. If the special purpose does not relate to the operation of a trade or business, that 
the special purpose be compatible with the ordinary activities of the neighborhood 
in which the special purpose is to occur; and, 

( 4) Except in emergency situations, as determined by the city manager or his/her de
signee, the special permit may be issued only for hours between 7 :00 a.m. and 11 :00 
p.m. on week days; and, 

(5) Special permits may be issued for no longer than one week, renewable by further 
application to the city manager or his/her designee. 

(6) No permit shall be issued to permit the use of any loudspeaker or sound device on 
the exterior of any building which at any time exceeds the noise level limits in Table 
I except those used for emergency warnings. 

Sec. 18-4. - Noises prohibited; unnecessary noise standard; statement of intent; sworn 
complaint required. 

(a) Some sounds may be such that they are not measurable by the sound pressure level 
meter or may not exceed the limits of Table I or II, but they may be excessive, unnatural, 
prolonged, unusual and are a detriment to the public health, comfort, convenience, 
safety, welfare and prosperity of the residents of the city. 

(b) Noises prohibited by this section are unlawful notwithstanding the fact that no violation 
of Section 18-3 is involved, and notwithstanding the fact that the activity complained 
about is exempted in Section 18-3(g). Thus, the following acts, among others, are de
clared to be loud, disturbing and unnecessary noises in violation of this chapter, but 
said enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 

(1) The sounding of any horn or signaling device on any automobile or other vehicle, 
except as a danger warning; the creation by means of any signaling device of any 
unreasonably loud or harsh sound; the sounding of any signaling device for any 
unnecessary and unreasonable period of time; and the unreasonable use of any 
signaling device. 

(2) The using, operating or permitting to be placed, used or operated any radio, tele
vision, tape or record player, amplifier, musical instrument, or other machine or 
device used for the production, reproduction or emission of sound, any prolonged 
sounds made by people, and the keeping of any animal or bird which by causing 
frequent or long continuous noise in such manner as to disturb the public peace, 
quiet and comfort of the neighboring inhabitants or at any time with greater inten
sity than is necessary for convenient hearing for the person or persons who are in 
the room, vehicle or chamber in which such sound emitter is operated and who are 
voluntary listeners thereto. 

Page 8 



(3) Any person making a complaint under this section shall be required to sign a sworn 
complaint prior to an enforcement action being taken, otherwise no such complaint 
will be honored. 

Sec. 18-5. - Violations; penalties. 

(a) Notice o{Noise Violation. 

( 1) When the city manager or an official designated by the city manager determines that 
there is a violation of the noise level limits contained within Table I in Section 18-
3( d)(l ), he/she shall issue an official Notice of Noise Violation to the person or 
persons responsible for the noise. The Notice _of Noise Violation shall advise the 
person of the violation of the allowable noise limits, and of the possible penalty if 
he/she fails to reduce or eliminate the noise to such allowable limits. 

(2) After the person or persons responsible for the noise are given such notice, the per
son responsible for the noise shall instantly comply with a reasonable time to com 
pJy with the same shall be given. If the limits of Table I in Section 1J -3(d)(l t -oon
tinue to be exceeded, a "reasonable time" is instantly. Absent special circumstances, 
"reasonable time" (where Table I lipnts are not exceeded) as used in this section is 
considered fifteen (15) minutes in the case ofnonvehicular noise emitters. 

(3) For the purposes of this section, it is sufficient notice for all prohibited noises if the 
person or persons responsible for any succeeding noises are provided a Notice of 
Noise Violation of one offending noise of the same type per twenty-four-hour pe-
riod. "' 

( 4) If a person or persons have been issued one written Notice of Noise Violation, no 
other notice shall be necessary within that sixty-day period following the notice for 
enforcement of the provisions of this chapter for any additional violations occurring 
within the same sixty-day period. 

(b) Arrest; confiscation of noise emitter. 
. £ 

(1) If the noise level is-not reduced or eliminated to allowable limits instantly within 
a Feasonable time after the Notice of Noise Violation as prescribed in Section 18-
5(a), the person so provided a Notice of Violation and not complying shall bear
rested for a violation of this chapter and upon conviction shall be subject to the 
penalties designated in Section 1-11 of the Jacksonville Beach Code of Ordi
nances. Each day the violation continues shall be considered as a separate offense. 

(2) Any person responsible for an unlawful noise shall be subject to the loss of the 
noise emitter or emitters if they are convicted three (3) times under this chapter 
within a twelve-month period and if the convictions were for noises created by the 
same or same type of noise emitter. 

Page 9 



(c) Responsibility of owner o(property. The owner, tenant or lessee of property, or a man
ager, overseer or agent, or any person lawfully entitled to possess the property from 
which the offending noise is emitted and at which time the offending noise is emitted 
shall be responsible for compliance with this chapter, and each may be punished for 
violations of this chapter. It shall not be a lawful defense to assert that some other person 
caused the noise, but the lawful possessor of the premises shall be responsible for op
erating or maintaining the premises in compliance with this chapter and shall be pun
ished whether or not the person actually causing the noise is also punished. 

(d) Violation may be declared public nuisance. The operation or maintenance of any de
vice, instrument, vehicle or machinery in violation of any provisions of this chapter thav 
endangers the comfort, repose, health and peace of residents in the area is declared to 
be a public nuisance and may be subject to abatement summarily by a restraining order 
or injunction issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Sec. 18-6. - Mobile noise. 

(a) It shall be unlawful for the driver of a vehicle to operate or permit the operation of any 
sound amplification system which can be heard and is lainly audible outside the vehi
cle from fifty (50) or more feet while moving or parked on any street, highway, parking 
lot or other public property within the city. 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to operate any type of portable sound amplification 
device so as to emit noise that is plainly audible fifty (50) feet or more from the source. 
Said violation can result in the confiscation of the equipment until such time as the 
offender can positively demonstrate to the court his/her willingness and ability to oper
ate the device within the limits prescribed by this section. 

( c) Violations of this section shall not require a warning prior to issuing the citation. 

Sec. 18-7. - Low Volume Outdoor Am lilied and Acoustic Sound. 

a Definitions. For the purpose of this section, certain words and hrases used herein are 
defined as follows: 

Acoustic sound shall mean the sound that solely or primarily uses instruments that pro
duce sound through acoustic means, as opposed to electric or electronic means. For the 
puI]Jose of this cha ter, drums or drum machines are not considered to be acoustic sound. 

Alcoholic beverage establishment shall mean any commercial establishment located in 
the city which allows for alcoholic beverages e.g. , beer, wine, or Ii uor, etc.) to be sold 
for consumption on the remises. 

Page 10 



Amplified entertainment shall mean any type of music or other entertainment delivered 
through and by an electronic system, including live bands and disc jockeys. 

Amplified Sound shall mean any type of sound delivered through and by an electric or 
electronic system. 

Emergency work shall mean the work made necessary_to-"'--_ 
from ex osure to danger. 

Enclosed Building shall mean a structure with a roof and enclosed walls. 

Entertainment sound shall mean any sound originating from an event performance, or 
act designed to entertain others. 

Licensed Establishment shall mean any business, within the city of Jacksonville Beach, 
licensed to sell food, beverages, and/or alcoholic beverages. The provisions of this section 
shall apply to the following state alcoholic beverage license types: 1-COP (beer only con
sumption on premises), 2-COP (beer and wine consumption on premises), 4-COP Quota 
License (beer, wine, and liquor package sales and consumption on premises), 4-COP-S 
(beer, wine, and liquor consumption on premises in connection with the operation of 
hotel, motel, motor court, or condominium), 4-COP-SRX (beer, wine, and liquor con
sumption on premises in connection with a restaurant), 4-COP-SBX (beer, wine, and liq
uor consumption on premises in connection with a bowling alley), 11-GC (beer, wine, and 
liquor consumption on premises in connection with a golf club), 11-C (beer, wine, an 
liquor in connection with a bona fide club, including fraternal or benevolent association 
lodges or clubs, social clubs, and tennis, racquetball, cabana, or beach clubs, for consump
tion on premises by members and their guests only), ODP (beer, wine, and liquor con
sumption on premises for a bona fide non-profit civic organization for a period not to ex
ceed three (3 days and no more than three (3) times er year). 

Low volume shall mean sound played at a level such that a person outside of the prop
erty line of the source of the sound, speaking in a normal tone of voice, is plainly audible 
and can be heard clearly and understandably by another person standing a maximum of 
thirty-six inches (36") away from the _P.erson s eaking, without the aid of a listening device. 

Momentarily shall mean a very short time e ualing less than 30 seconds. 

Noise shall mean any sound or vibration which may disturb or annoy reasonable per
sons of normal sensitivities; or causes, or tends to cause, an adverse effect on the publio 
health and welfare; or endangers or injures people; or endangers or injures Qersonal or rea 
12roperty. 

Outdoor gathering area shall mean the area outside the confines of an enclosed build
ing, and within the property line of the premises, designated for a person or persons to 
congregate. (e.g. , Ratio, lanai, porch, terrace, veranda, sundeck, deck, courtyard, balcony, 
etc.) 

Page 11 



Outdoor restaurant or bar shall mean any restaurant or bar, or portion thereof, which! 
exists outside of the permanent exterior walls of the principal building(s) on a lot and has, 
in place, tables and chairs set up to accommodate patrons for seating, during all hours o~ 
operation. This definition includes any deck or other area constructed and/or utilized onl 
the roof of a structure. 

Person is any person, person's firm, association, conartnership, joint venture, cor ora
tion or any entity ublic or rivate in nature. 

Plainly Audible shall mean any sound that can be heard clearly by a person using his/her 
unaided hearing faculties. When music is involved, the detection of rhythmic bass tones 
shall be considered to be lainly audible sound. 

Previously Issued Outside Sound Amplification Permits defines businesses holding aJ 

valid Outside Sound Amplification Permit as of August 1, 2016, and shall be permitted to 
be subject to the provisions of Ordinance No. 2002-7834 voted into law on June 3, 2002. 

Property line of the premises shall mean an imaginary line along the ground surface, 
and its vertical extension, which separates the real property owned by any person or busi
ness from that owned by another person or business, but not including intra-building real 
pro erty divisions. 

All references to time in this cha ter shall be the current legal time in the City o 
Jacksonville Beach. 

All technical definitions are in accordance with American Standard S 1.1-1960 enti
tled, "Acoustical Terminology." 

b) Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permits. 

( 1) Permit required. Any person or business owning or operating a licensed establish
ment as defined in Section 18-7( a) that is located in the City of Jacksonville Beach, 
and which provides for low volume outdoor acoustic or amplified sound, shall pos
sess a Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit. This permi 
authorizes licensed establishments to provide low volume outdoor amplified and 
acoustic entertainment to originate from within the property line of a licensed busi
ness, to utilize outdoor sound amplification equipment, and to otherwise permit the 
generation of am lified sound in unenclosed arts of the licensed remises. 

2) Exem tions. 

a. Indoor emergency signaling devices alerting an emergency shall not be deemed 
amnlified or acoustic sound. 

b. An exterior burglar alarm shall not be deemed am lified or acoustic sound. 

(3) Standards a 'Plicable to indoor entertainment sound. 

Page 12 



a. Except as otherwise permitted in this section, no licensed establishment in the 
City of Jacksonville Beach shall convey any entertainment sound, originating 
from within the licensed establishment's enclosed building, to the outside con
fines of the enclosed building, including any outdoor gathering areas. 

b. No licensed establishment shall be in violation of the noise restrictions in Sec
tion 18-4, Noises rohibited. 

c. Amplified and acoustic entertainment sound originating within the enclose 
building housing the licensed establishment shall not be conveyed outside the 
building by any means, including but not limited to open windows, open doors 
except entrance doors when opened momentarily, as needed for ingress and 
egress of persons, or any other means which conveys or facilitates amplified 
music from inside the confines of the building to the outside of the building, 
unless such sound is low volume, as defined in Section 18-7 a). 

4) Standards a licable to outdoor entertainment sound. 

a. Any licensed establishment providing outdoor amplified or acoustic sound, in
cluding background music, must ossess a valid Low Volume Outdoor Am li
fied and Acoustic Sound Permit. 

b. Licensed establishments holding a Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acous
tic Sound Permit shall not generate any sound within or from their outdoor din
ing area that exceeds a level such that a person outside of the property line of the 
originating premises and speaking in a normal tone of voice is not plainly audi
ble, and understood, over this sound by another person standing a maximum o:fi' 
thirty-six inches (36") away from the person SP.eaking. 

c. Outdoor amplified and acoustic sound shall be limited to sound producing de
vices such as low volume amplified sound, low volume acoustic, low volume 
orchestral instrument, or low volume stringed instruments. Drums, drum ma
chines, and sub-woofer bass SQeakers are rohibited. 

d. Outdoor disc jockeys and amplified bands are strictly prohibited, unless specif
ically allowed in writing as part of a permit issued pursuant to Section 4-5 Tem
porary extension of licensed [!remises of Cha ter 4 Alcoholic beverages. 

e. All sound must originate within the property line of the licensed establishment 
MThich holds a Low Volume Outdoor Am lified and Acoustic Sound Permit. 

f. Any sound originating within the enclosed building of a licensed establishment 
shall not be conveyed to the outdoor dining area unless that music is electroni
cally channeled through the low volume speakers, and shall not generate any 
sound that exceeds a level such that a erson outside the ro erty line of the 

Page 13 



originating premises and speaking in a normal tone of voice is not plainly audi
ble, and understood over this sound by another person standing a maximum o:6 
thirty-six inches (36") away from the erson s eaking. 

g. Operation of any outdoor amplified and acoustic sound between the hours o:6 
10:00 .m. and 8:00 a.m. the foll01.ving day is rohibited. 

h. Removing and/or resituating outdoor seating and tables as permitted in this chap
ter (18 Noise), while generating low volume outdoor am_R lified and acoustic 
sound, is rohibited. 

1. Previously Issued Outside Sound Amplification Permits. Beginning on August 
1, 2002, persons or businesses owning or operating an outdoor restaurant, bar, 
or any other establishment utilizing outdoor sound amplification equipment; and 
are otherwise permitted to generate amplified sound or noise in unenclosed parts 
of a premise, are required to QOSsess a valid previously issued Outside Soun 
Am lification Permit. 

5) Renewal for Previously Issued Outside Sound Amplification Permit. 

a. Renewal for previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Permits shall be 
made to the city clerk on forms provided for that purpose. A fee, in an amoun~ 
set by resolution of the city council and payable upon issuance, shall be charged 
for the Outside Sound Amplification Permit. 

b. Persons or businesses possessing a previously issued Outside Sound Amplifica
tion Permit shall file with the city, a sketch plan showing the proposed location 
and orientation of the equipment to be used, the street address and specific loca
tion at t~at address forthe proposed use, the hours of operation of the equipment, 
a valid business tax receipt for the licensed establishment, verification of com
pliance by the licensed establishment with city zoning and code regulations, cer
tification from the applicant that the equipment will be monitored to ensure that 
it is operated within the decibel levels permitted, and the name and street address 
where notices related to this section are to be mailed. 

c. For outdoor restaurants, bars or other establishments adjacent to a public right
of-way, public easement, public property, or public or private body of water 
other than the Atlantic Ocean, the amplification devices shall be directed away 
from any adjacent public right-of-way, public easement, public property, or pub
lic or private body of water other than the Atlantic Ocean; and otherwise oper
ated in accordance with this chapter. 

d. Any person or business owning or operating an outdoor restaurant, bar, or other 
establishment located within two thousand (2,000) feet of the centerline of the 
Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway, said centerline being the western corporate limit 
of the City of Jacksonville Beach; as measured in a straight and continuous line 

Page 14 



from any point on or at the property line of such restaurant, bar, or other estab
lishment, to the nearest point of the centerline of the Atlantic Intracoastal Wa
terway, may make application for an Outside Sound Amplification Permit. If 
such permit is granted by the City of Jacksonville Beach, the person or business 
is permitted to generate amplified sound or noise in unenclosed parts of a prem
ise up to, but not to exceed, a maximum decibel level of 40 dB(A). The maxi
mum decibel level established in this section applies only to outdoor restaurants, 
bars, or other establishments located within two thousand (2,000) feet of the 
centerline of the Atlantic Intracoastal Waterway, as defined above. All other out
door restaurants, bars, or other establishments throughout the City of Jackson
ville Beach must meet the requirements for maximum noise levels set forth in 
Section 18-3(d)(l); Table 1. 

e. No permit shall be valid for the ope~ation of any outside sound amplification 
equipment between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m. the following day. 

f. A permit shall be effective for a one-year period beginning on October 1 of each 
year, and is renewable for additional one-year periods upon reapplication and 
payment of the annual (ee. 

g. Permit not transferrable. Any change in the ownership, name, and/or location 
of a licensed establishment with a valid previously issued Outside Sound Am
plified Permit, as described in this section, shall cause the permit to be immedi
ately invalid, and will only be issued as a new Low Volume Outdoor Am lified 
and Acoustic Sound Permit. 

(6 A1zglicationfor a Low Volume Outdoor Am lified and Acoustic Sound Permit. 

a. An application for a Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Per
mit shall be made to the city clerk on forms provided for that purpose. A fee in 
an amount set by resolution of the city council and payable upon issuance shal 
be charged for the Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit. 
The permit shall be issued within thirty (30) days of recei t of a com lete ap
plication. 

b. Minimum information required. Any licensed establishment wishing to produce 
low volume outdoor amplified and acoustic sound shall complete an application 
form provided by the city. An annual fee in an amount set by resolution of the 
city council and payable upon issuance shall be charged for the permit. The 
a:imlication form shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: 

1. Name and street address of the owner of the licensed establishment; 

11. Valid business tax recei t for licensed establishment; 

m. The hours of operation of the licensed establishment and a listing of the 
hours of o eration of the entertainment sound equi ment roposed to be 

Page 15 



used under the Low Volume Outdoor Am lified and Acoustic Sound 
[Permit, if a_2proved; 

v. Verification of compliance by licensed establishment with city zonin 
and code regulations; 

v. Specific type of state alcoholic beverage license held by the licensed es
tablishment, if a1mlicable; 

v1. A sketch plan of the proposed location and orientation of the equipment 
to be used, the proposed orientation of outdoor seating and tables, and 
including a statement signed by the applicant that the equipment will be 
monitored to ensure that it is o erated within the sound levels ermitted; 
and 

v11. The name and street address where notices related to this section are to 
be mailed. 

he city clerk shall review the application and, if the application is complete, 
and the licensed establishment is in compliance with the Code of Ordinances, 
a permit shall be issued allowing low volume outdoor amplified and acoustic 
sound. A Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit is is
sued by the city clerk. The permit shall contain conditions and limitations as 
listed in this ordinance including, but not limited to, hours of o eration. 

(7 Permit not transferrable . Any change in the ownership of a licensed establishmen 
after the issuance of the Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Per
mit shall cause the permit to be immediately invalid and cause the new owner to 
reapply for the permit. The city shall be notified immediately, and the licensed es
tablishment shall apply for a new permit if a transfer of ownership of the licensed 
establishment has occurred. Until such time as the new owner of the licensed estab
lishment makes application for a new permit and is approved for the permit, the 
privilege of low volume outdoor amplified and acoustic sound shall be sus ended. 

8) Renewal. Such permit shall be renewed by the city annually on or before the 31 s 

day of December, provided that none of the following has occurred: 

a. The permit has been suspended by the special magistrate and the conditions o 
the suspension have not been met; 

b. A transfer of ownership of the licensed establishment has occurred, and this in
formation was not rovided to the city; or 

c. A change in location of the licensed establishment has occurred, and this infor
mation was not rovided to the city. 

Page 16 



9) Expiration ("Sunset") date. Section 18-7(6), Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and 
Acoustic Sound Permit, shall expire on June 5, 2018, unless the city council of the 
City of Jacksonville Beach amends this section by extending the expiration or re
pealing this aragra h in its entirety. 

10 Notice of violation, hearing, and penalties. 

4 

a. Low volume outdoor amplified and acoustic sound is a privilege. The ability 
of a licensed establishment to generate outdoor amplified and acoustic sound 
during the licensed establishment's hours of operation on any day of the week 
is hereby declared to be and is a privilege subject to suspension, and no perso 
may reasonably rely upon a continuation of that privilege. As a condition o:ff 
the continuation of the privilege, licensed establishments are required to take 
all necessary steps to minimize the sound level originating from the licensed 
establishment. The following are representative, but not all-inclusive, of ac
tivities that may result in suspension of the rivilege of low volume outdoor 
am lified and acoustic sound: 

1. Violations of any provisions of Chapter 18 of the City of Jacksonville Beach 
Code of Ordinances relating to noise and sound limitations; 

11. Failure to obtain a Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Per
mit or failure to renew the _Qermit as reguired; or 

iii. Failure to renew a reviously issued Outside Sound AmQlification Permit as 
re uired. 

b. Action by city manager. The previously issued Outside Sound Amplification 
Permit and Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit can be 
revoked at any time by the city manager or his/her designee if the operation fails 
to follow the terms of the permit or for a violation of any city ordinance. The 
city manager's or his/her designee ' s revocation of a permit may be a ealed to 
the special magistrate. 

c. Notice of violations, hearings, and penalties. 

1. Finding of violation. In order to invoke the enforcement provisions of this 
section, a violation must be verified and documented by a police officer or 
code enforcement officer. A violation by a licensed establishment of any sec
tion of this ordinance shall result in a written notice of violation, issued by a 
police officer. The notice of violation shall be served by hand delivery or 
certified mail to the owner, proprietor, manager, or highest-ranking em
ployee then on the premises of the licensed establishment. Issuance of a no
tice of violation of this section shall not prevent the filing of charges against 
the licensed establishment or any erson for any other violation of the Code 
of Ordinances or state statutes. 

Page 17 



11. Jurisdiction of the special magistrate. A notice of violation shall be taken 
before the city's special magistrate for consideration of suspension of the li
censed establishment's previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Per
mit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit. The 
special magistrate shall exercise jurisdiction over such matters as set forth i 
Article VI, Section 2-1 70 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jackson
ville Beach. 

111. Action by the special magistrate. Upon completion of the hearing, the specia 
magistrate shall deliver a ruling either that no action shall be taken againsi 
the licensed establishment's previously issued Outside Sound Amplification 

ermit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit, or 
that the previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Permit or Low Vol
ume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit shall be suspended. A 
suspension of the previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Permit or 

ow Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit for a first find
ing by the special magistrate of a violation shall be not less than thirty (30) 
days nor more than ninety (90) days. A second and any subsequent finding 
by the special magistrate of a violation of the previously issued Outside 
Sound Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acous
tic Sound Permit within one year (three hundred, sixty-five (365) days) of 
the date of completion of the most recent suspension period shall result in a 
suspension of not less than ninety (90) days nor more than one hundred, 
eighty (180) days. In addition to any suspension of the previously issued Out
side Sound Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and 
Acoustic Sound Permit, the special magistrate may issue a fine of not more 
than five hundred dollars ($500.00) per violation of this section. The special 
magistrate shall base his/her ruling upon substantial, competent evidence 
presented that supports a finding of non-compliance with this section. The 
special magistrate's written order of suspension of the previously issued Out
side Sound Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and 
Acoustic Sound Permit shall state the effective date of the suspension and 
shall give the licensed establishment ten (1 0) calendar days notice of the ef
fective date of the suspension. 

1v. Failure of license holder to appear. If a licensed establishment served with 
a notice of violation fails to appear at the hearing after having received proper 

otice, the special magistrate shall take testimony from city staff, and other 
relevant testimony, as available, and shall deliver a ruling either that no ac
tion shall be taken against the licensed establishment's previously issued Out
side Sound Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and 
Acoustic Sound Permit, or that the previously issued Outside Sound Ampli
fication Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Per-

it shall be suspended for a period of time as set forth in this section. A 
ruling that the previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Permit or Low 
Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit be sus ended shall 

Page 18 



take effect on the tenth calendar day after the ordered is issued. The enforce
ment of such order shall be stayed if the licensed establishment files a reques 
or a rehearing with the city clerk's office before the date the order is sched

uled to take effect. In such case, the licensed establishment shall be resched
uled for a hearing before the special magistrate. At that hearing, the special 
magistrate shall take testimony from the licensed establishment, and other 
relevant testimony, as available, and shall deliver a ruling upholding the pre
vious order suspending the previously issued Outside Sound Amplification 
Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit, 
amending the order suspending the previously issued Outside Sound Ampli
fication Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Per
mit, or rescinding the order suspending the previously issued Outside Soun 
Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic 
Sound Permit. If the special magistrate upholds a suspension of the previ
ously issued Outside Sound Amplification Permit or Low Volume Outdoor 
Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit, such sus ension shall take effect te 
calendar days after the ruling is issued. 

v. Modification of ownership status to avoid suspension. Any licensed estab-
ishment that has had a previously issued Outside Sound Amplification Per

mit or Low Volume Outdoor Amplified and Acoustic Sound Permit sus
pended cannot avoid the consequences of the s ecial magistrate's action b 
changing its business name or co orate status. 

v1. Alternative enforcement procedures. The enforcement procedures contained 
herein are alternative procedures, and the city reserves the right to arrest, 
prosecute, or take action utilizing any other enforcement rocedures author
ized by law. 

Sec. 18-8. - Severability. 

Each separate provision of chapter 18 and the ordinances herein shall be deemed to be 
severable. If any provision, word or section within this chapter or ordinances herein is 
deemed unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such determination shall not affect the va
lidity ofi any other provisions, section or word of this cha ter or ordinances. 

Page 19 



SECTION r2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance 
are, to the extent that the same may conflict, hereby repealed. 

SECTION~. This ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption in accordance with the 
law. 

DONE IN OPEN MEETING THIS __ DAY Of" _____ , A.D. 201 . 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 

Page 20 



JACl{SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

Police Department 

101 Penman Road, South 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6343 

Fax: 904.247.6342 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

1995 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

George D. Forbes, City Manager 

Susan S. Erdelyi, City Attorney 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Proposed amendments to Chapter 5 "Animals and Fowl" of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, by 
amending section 5-24, "Dangerous dogs" and section 5-24.1 
"Attack or bite by dangerous dog." 

May 5, 2017 

ACTION REQUESTED 

Adoption of Ordinance #2017-8088 amending section 5-24, "Dangerous dogs" 

and section 5-24.1 "Attack or bite by dangerous dog" of Chapter 5 "Animals and 

Fowl" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida. 

BACKGROUND 

Sections 5-24 and 5-24.1 of the City's Code of Ordinances specifies the time 

allowed to the owner of a dog that has been declared dangerous to appeal the 

classification and any orders of the special magistrate to county court. The current 

ordinance allows 10 business days to file an appeal. In 2016, state law was 

modified to now allow a person to utilize the Florida Rules of Appellate 

Procedure when filing an appeal. These rules allow 30 days. In addition, the 

appellant will file their appeal with the Circuit Court, and not the County Court. 

Changes to Section 5-24 and 5-24.1 are being proposed to (1) follow state law and 

allow 30 days to file an appeal. This change will fall under Chapter 5 "Animals 

and Fowl," of the Code of Ordinances. (2) Change the filing court from County 

Court to Circuit Court. Additional changes were made to assure that the sections 

comply with the Florida Statutes that govern dangerous dog issues and to remove 
the ability of the dog owner to submit written statements in lieu of attendance at a 

hearing. This change was made to assure due process at special magistrate 

hearings and to give interested parties the right to cross-examine dog owners. 

The proposed additions are redlined and deletions have strikethroughs. Generally 
the changes: 



1. Provide for consistency with state law. 

2. Provide for appeal to circuit court in 30 days in conformance with 

the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and state law. 

3. Eliminate the right of dog owners to provide written statements to 

the Special Magistrate in lieu of attending the hearing as this precludes 

cross-examination of witnesses and impacts due process rights of the 

interested parties. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt City Ordinance #2017-8088 amending specified sections of Chapter 5, 

Section 5-24, "Dangerous dogs" and Section 5-24.1 "Attack or bite by dangerous 

dog". 



5.5.17 Introduced by: Council Member Jeanell Wilson 
pt Reading: May 15, 2017 

2nd Reading: 

ORDINANCE 2017-8088 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA; AMENDING CHAPTER 
5, "ANIMALS AND FOWL," ARTICLE II. - DOGS AND CATS, 
DIVISION 1. - IN GENERAL, SECTION 5-24 "DANGEROUS DOGS," 
SECTION 5-24.1 "ATTACK OR BITE BY DANGEROUS DOG." 
SECTION; AMENDING TO APPEAL TO THE CIRCUIT COURT AND 
NOT COUNTY COURT, PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Sec. 5-24. "Dangerous dogs."; of Article II, Division 1, Chapter 5, "Animals 
and Fowl" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida is amended and 
shall henceforth read as follows : 

Sec. 5-24. Dangerous dogs. 

(a) Procedures for designating a dog as dangerous and actions following a designation are: 

(1) The Animal Control Officer shall investigate reported incidents involving any dog 
that may be dangerous and, shall,-if possible, shall interview the owner and require a 
sworn affidavit from any person including any animal control officer or enforcement 
officer, desiring to have a dog classified as dangerous. 

QLAny animal that is the subject of a dangerous dog investigation because of severe 
injury to a human being may be immediately confiscated by the Animal Control 
Officer if the Animal Control Officer believes such impoundment is in the best 
interests of public safety due to the severity or number of attacks. If the dog has bitten 
a human being or domestic animal causing a break in the skin, or has in any manner 
appeared to have transferred bodily fluids such as saliva to the skin of a human being, 
or the skin or hair of a domestic animal, as determined by the Animal Control Officer, 
the dog may be impounded and placed in quarantine for the proper length of time. The 
owner shall be responsible for payment to the City of Jacksonville Beach of all 
boarding costs and other fees as may be required to keep the animal in a safe and 
humane manner pending expiration of any quarantine period and/or the outcome of 
the investigation and resolution of any hearings related to the dangerous dog 
classification, unless the animal is ultimately determined not to be a dangerous dog. 

Q.LAny animal that is the subject of a dangerous dog investigation that is not impounded 
by the Animal Control Officer shall be humanely, safely, and securely 

Ordinance No . 2017-8088 Page 1 of 6 



confined by the owner indoors or in a securely fenced or enclosed area pending the 
outcome of the investigation and resolution of any hearings or appeals related to the 
dangerous dog classification or any penalty imposed under this section. The address 
of where the animal resides shall be provided to the Animal Control Officer. No dog 
that is the subject of a dangerous dog investigation may be relocated or ownership 
transferred pending the outcome of an investigation or any hearings or appeals 
related to the determination of a dangerous dog classification. In the event that a dog 
is to be destroyed, the dog shall not be relocated or ownership transferred. 

(±4_l_A dog shall not be declared dangerous if the threat, injury, or damage was sustained 
by a person who, at the time, was unlawfully on the property or, who while lawfully 
on the property, was tormenting, abusing, or assaulting the dog or its owner or a 
family member. No dog may be declared dangerous if the dog was protecting or 
defending a human being within the immediate vicinity of the dog from an 
unjustified attack or assault. 

(;.5.}_If the investigation by an Animal Control Officer finds sufficient cause to classify a 
dog as dangerous, the Animal Control Officer shall forward a report to the Special 
Magistrate with a recommendation that the dog be designated a dangerous dog. The 
Special Magistrate shall provide written notification of the sufficient cause finding 
to the owner by registered certified mail return receipt requested, certified hand 
delivery, or service in conformance with the provisions of Chapter 48 of the Florida 
Statutes relating to service of process. The owner may file a written request for a 
hearing within seven (7) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notification of 
the sufficient cause finding and, if requested, the hearing shall be held as soon as 
possible, but not more than thirty (30) calendar days and no sooner than five (5) 
calendar days after receipt of the request from the owner. In rendering its decision, 
the Special Magistrate may consider information and/or documentation including, 
but not necessarily limited to, written or verbal reports and/or statements, medical 
reports, if available, photographs, and/or other facts or details that the Special 
Magistrate, in its sole discretion, determines will assist in its decision. If the owner 
fails to timely request a hearing, or fails to appear for the hearing after requesting it, 
the Special Magistrate shall render a decision based upon information and/or 
documentation provided by the Animal Control Officer and any victim(s) or 
witness( es). The owner may provide a •.vritten statement to the Special Magistate in 
lieu of attending the hearing. The Special Magistrate shall render a decision within 
fourteen (14) calendar days of the conclusion of the hearing. 

( 4§.) If a dog is classified as a dangerous dog by the Special Magistrate, the Special 
Magistrate shall provide ~ written final order notification to the owner by registered 
certified mail return receipt requested, certified hand delivery or service in 
conformance with the provisions of Chapter 48 of the Florida Statutes relating to 
service of process, within seven (7) calendar days after a decision is rendered. The 
owner may file a written request for a hearing in the county court to appeal the 
classification, penalty, or both, within ten (10) thirty (30) business days to the 
circuit court in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure after 
receipt of the final order. a written determination of a dangerous dog classification 
and, i If the dog is not impounded, the owner must securely confine the animal 
indoors or in a securely fenced or enclosed area pending a resolution of the appeal. 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 Page 2 of 6 



(b) Within fourteen (14) calendar days after a dog has been classified as dangerous by the 
Special Magistrate, or a dangerous dog classification is upheld by the county circuit 
court on appeal, the owner of the dog must obtain a certificate of registration for the dog 
from the City of Jacksonville Beach, and the certificate shall be renewed annually. The 
City of Jacksonville Beach shall issue such certificates of registration, and renewals 
thereof, only to persons who are at least eighteen (18) years of age and who present to the 
City of Jacksonville Beach sufficient evidence of: 

( 1) A current certificate of rabies vaccination for the dog; 

(2) A proper enclosure for a dangerous dog, as defined in Sec. 5-23(4) of this 
ordinance, and the posting of the premises with a clearly visible warning sign at all 
entry points that informs both children and adults of the presence of a dangerous 
dog on the property; and 

(3) Permanent identification of the dog, such as a tattoo on the inside thigh or 
electronic implantation. 

( c) An annual fee of fifty dollars ($50) shall be paid to the City of Jacksonville Beach by the 
owner of a dangerous dog before issuance of a certificate of registration. 

( d) The owner shall immediately notify the Animal Control Officer or the Jacksonville Beach 
Police Department when a dog that has previously been declared dangerous is loose or 
unconfined ( dangerous dog at large) either off the owner's property or outside a securely 
fenced or enclosed area on the owner' s property. The Animal Control Officer shall 
attempt to locate and, if found, immediately impound the dog, and document the 
circumstances in a report to the Special Magistrate. The Special Magistrate shall conduct 
a hearing on a complaint of a dangerous dog at large following notification procedures as 
set forth in Sec. 5-24(a)(;2) of this article. Pending any hearing before the Special 
Magistrate, the owner shall be responsible for payment to the City of Jacksonville Beach 
of all boarding costs and other fees as may be required to keep the dog impounded animal 
humanely and safely. If the owner of the dangerous dog at large fails to appear for the 
hearing, the Special Magistrate shall render a decision based upon information and/or 
documentation provided by the Animal Control Officer and any witness(es). The ovmer 
may provide a written statement to the Special Magistrate in lieu of attending the hearing. 
The Special Magistrate shall render a decision within seven (7) calendar days of the 
conclusion of the hearing and issue a finding upholding or rejecting the complaint of a 
dangerous dog at large. If the Special Magistrate issues a finding upholding the 
dangerous dog at large complaint, the owner shall be guilty of a non-criminal offense, 
punishable as provided in Sec. 5-24.2 of this article. If a dog that has previously been 
declared dangerous and has previously been declared by the Special Magistrate to be a 
dangerous dog at large becomes loose or unconfined a second time, either off the owner's 
property or outside a securely fenced or enclosed area on the owner' s property, the 
Animal Control Officer shall attempt to locate and, if found, immediately impound the 
dog, and document the circumstances in a report to the Special Magistrate. The Special 
Magistrate shall conduct a hearing on a second complaint of a dangerous dog at large 
following notification procedures as set forth in Sec. 5-24(a)(;2) of this article. Pending 
any hearing before the Special Magistrate, the owner shall be responsible for payment to 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 Page 3 of 6 



the City of Jacksonville Beach of all boarding costs and other fees as may be required to 
keep the 4.Qg_impounded animal humanely and safely. If the owner of the dangerous dog 
at large fails to appear for the hearing, the Special Magistrate shall render a decision 
based upon information and/or documentation provided by the Animal Control Officer 
and any witness(es). The ovmer may provide a Vflitten statement to the Special 
Magistrate in lieu of attending the hearing. The Special Magistrate shall render a 
decision within seven (7) calendar days of the conclusion of the hearing and issue a 
finding upholding or rejecting the complaint of a dangerous dog at large. If the Special 
Magistrate issues a finding upholding the dangerous dog at large complaint for the 
second time, the dog shall be held for ten-thirty (-l-.;iO) business days after the owner is 
given written notification as provided in Sec. 5-24 (a)(4§.) of this article, and thereafter 
destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. This ten- thirty day time period shall 
allow the owner to appeal request an appeal hearing in the county circuit court as 
provided in Sec. 5-24(a)(4§.). The owner shall be responsible for payment of all boarding 
costs and other fees as may be required to keep the animal humanely and safely during 
any appeal procedure. 

(e) The owner shall immediately notify the Animal Control Officer or the Jacksonville Beach 
Police Department when a dog that has been classified as dangerous: 

(1) Has bitten a human being or attacked another animal; 

(2) Is sold, given away, or dies; or 

(3) Is moved to another address. 

Prior to a dangerous dog being sold or given away, the owner shall provide the name, 
address, and telephone number of the new owner to the Animal Control Officer. The new 
owner must comply with all of the requirements of applicable Florida Statutes including 
those contained in Chapter 767, Florida Statutes, and this article, even if the animal is 
moved from one local jurisdiction to another within the state. 

(f) The Animal Control Officer or the Jacksonville Beach Police Department must be 
notified by the owner of a dog classified as dangerous under another jurisdiction's 
ordinances, or under provisions of Florida Statutes 767.11 , 767.12, or 767.13 , that the 
dog has been brought into the City of Jacksonville Beach. The owner, whether bringing 
the said-dangerous dog into the City of Jacksonville Beach temporarily, or for purposes 
of establishing residency within the City, shall comply with the provisions of this article. 

(g) It is unlawful for the owner of a dangerous dog to permit the dog to be outside a proper 
enclosure, or off the owner's property on either public property or private property of 
another, or while being transported in a vehicle, unless the dog is muzzled and restrained 
by a substantial chain or leash and under control of a competent person. The muzzle must 
be made in a manner that will not cause injury to the dog or interfere with its vision or 
respiration but will prevent it from biting any person or animal. The owner may exercise 
the dog in a securely fenced or enclosed area that does not have a top, without a muzzle 
or leash, if the dog remains within his or her sight, and only members of the immediate 
household or persons eighteen (18) years of age or older are allowed in the enclosure 
when the dog is present. When being transported, such dogs must be safely and securely 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 Page 4 of 6 



restrained within a vehicle. 

(h) An Animal Control Officer shall immediately impound a dangerous dog if the owner fails 
to comply within the timeframes set forth in this article with any of the requirements for 
maintaining a dangerous dog. A dangerous dog impounded under this section may be 
redeemed by the owner upon the owner' s compliance with all applicable provisions of 
this article and upon payment of impound fees, boarding fees, and applicable veterinary 
or other medical expenses. If the owner fails to comply with all applicable provisions and 
redeem the dangerous dog within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date the dog was 
impounded, the dog shall be destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. 

(i) This section does not apply to dogs used by law enforcement officials for law 
enforcement work. 

SECTION 2. That Sec. 5-24.1. "Attack or bite by dangerous dog.", Subsection 5-24.1 (2) of 
Article II, Division 1, Chapter 5, "Animals and Fowl" of the Code Ordinances of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach, Florida is amended and shall henceforth read as follows: 

Sec. 5-24.1. Attack or bite by dangerous dog. 

(a) If a dog that has previously been declared dangerous attacks or bites a person or a 
domestic animal without provocation, the owner is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first 
degree, punishable as provided in Florida Statute 775.082 or 775.083. In addition, the 
dangerous dog shall be immediately confiscated by an animal control officer, placed in 
quarantine, if necessary, for the proper length of time, or impounded and held for ten ( 10) 
business days after the owner is given written notification as provided in Sec. 5-24(a)(4~) 
of this article, and thereafter destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. This 1 O
day time period shall allow the owner to request a hearing with the special magistrate m 
the county court as provided in Sec. 5-24 (a)(4~). The owner shall be responsible for 
payment of all boarding costs and other fees as may be required to humanely and safely 
keep the animal during any hearing and appeal proceedingsaure. 

(b) If a dog that has not been declared dangerous attacks and causes severe injury to or death 
of any human, the dog shall be immediately confiscated by an animal control officer, 
placed in quarantine, if necessary, for the proper length of time, or held for ten (10) 
business days after the owner is given written notification as provided in section 5-
24(a)( 4~) of this article, and thereafter destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. 
This ten day time period shall allow the owner to request a hearing with the special 
magistrate in the county court as provided in section 5-24(a)(4~). The owner shall be 
responsible for payment of all boarding costs and other fees as may be required to 
humanely and safely keep the animal during any hearing and appeal proceedings.dufe,. 

(1) If the owner of the dog had prior knowledge of the dog's dangerous propensities, 
yet demonstrated a reckless disregard for such propensities under the 
circumstances, the owner of the dog is guilty of a misdemeanor of the second 
degree, punishable as provided in Florida Statutes 775.082 or 775.083. 

(2) If the owner of the dog had no prior knowledge of the dog's dangerous 
propensities, the owner of the dog shall not be guilty of a criminal offense, but 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 Page 5 of 6 



instead shall be guilty of a non-criminal offense, punishable as provided in section 
5-24.2 of this article. 

(c) If a dog that has previously been declared dangerous attacks and causes severe injury to 
or death of any human, the owner is guilty of a felony of the third degree, punishable as 
provided in Florida Statutes 775.082, 775.083 , or 775.084. In addition, the dog shall be 
immediately confiscated by an animal control officer, placed in quarantine, if necessary, 
for the proper length of time, or held for ten (10) business days after the owner is given 
written notification as provided in section 5-24(a)(4~.) of this article, and thereafter 
destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. This ten (10) day time period shall 
allow the owner to request a hearing with the special magistrate in the county court as 
provided in section 5-24(a)(4~.) of this article. The owner shall be responsible for 
payment of all boarding costs and other fees as may be required to humanely and safely 
keep the animal during any hearing and appeal proce~dingsm:e. 

(d) If the owner files a written appeal in the circuit county court as provided in section 5-
24(a)(4Q.) of this article, the dog must be held and may not be destroyed while the appeal 
is pending. 

(e) If a dog attacks or bites a person who is engaged in or attempting to engage in a criminal 
activity at the time of the attack, the owner is not guilty of any crime specified under this 
article. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the particular application of this 
Ordinance shall be held invalid by any Court, administrative agency or other body with 
appropriate jurisdiction, the remaining section, subsection, sentences, clauses or phrases shall 
remain in effect. 

SECTION 4. That all other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this 
ordinance are, to the extent the same may be in conflict, repealed. 

SECTION 5. Codification of this ordinance in the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Jacksonville Beach is authorized and directed. 

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption. 

AUTHENTICATED THIS _ __ DAY OF May, 2017. 

William C. Latham, Mayor 

Laurie Scott, City Clerk 

Ordinance No. 2017-8088 Page 6 of 6 



JACl<SONVILLE 
BEACH 

City of 

Jacksonville Beach 

City Hall 

11 North Third Street 

Jacksonville Beach 

FL 32250 

Phone: 904.247.6231 

Fax: 904.247.6107 

Planning@jaxbchfl .net 

www.jacksonvillebeach.org 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

I 
George D. Forbes, City Manager / ' 

William C. Mann, Planning and Development Dir~ctor # 
Ordinance No. 2017-8089, to amend a Redevelopment District: RD 
zoning district within the City, as provided under Chapter 34 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City. 

May 19, 2017 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-8089, to amend a Redevelopment District: RD 
zoning district within the city, as provided under Chapter 34 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City, to allow the modification of a development of a six-story, 
mixed-use multifamily residential, hotel and commercial use project. 
(Applicant- Dolphin Depot, LLC) 

BACKGROUND: 

The applicant owns three contiguous vacant parcels in the block on the west side 
of 1st Street North between 6th and 7th Avenues North. The subject property 
was approved by City Council for Redevelopment District: RD rezoning via 
Ordinance 2016-8070 in April 2016. The 2016 application was for a six-story 
mixed-use project with 2,500 square feet of commercial space, parking on the 
ground floor and second floor, 54 apartment units, and 36 hotel rooms. The 
maximum allowable height on the subject property is 68 feet, pursuant to a 
judicial order. The applicant now wishes to amend the scope of the project and 
was informed by staff that an amendment to the approved RD ordinance would 
be required. 

In the time since the current RD ordinance for the property was approved in April 
of 2016, the applicant has determined that he would like to increase the number 
of hotel rooms provided, and has proposed changes to the final design of the 
project. The RD zoning amendment application seeks to amend the approved 
project to provide 57 hotel rooms instead of 36, and to increase the number of 
parking spaces from 164 to 193 spaces. The applicant has also selected a 
different architect and would like to replace the approved building site plan and 
elevation drawings with the new design for the project. 



The vacant oceanfront block to the east across 1st Street North (former Atlantis 
hotel), was recently rezoned to Redevelopment District: RD to allow a 220-room 
hotel and commercial project. Other adjacent uses include a recently renovated 
retail strip center to the south across 6th Avenue North, new two-family dwellings 
to the west across 2nd Street North, multi-family uses to the north along 7th 
Avenue North, an ocean front condominium to the northeast, and a historic hotel 
to the southeast. The area has undergone significant revitalization since 2012. 

The proposed project, as amended, will serve to continue the revitalization of the 
downtown area, will complement the character of the surrounding neighborhood, 
and fits within the context of the Downtown Vision Plan goals and objectives. 
Adjacent property values should be enhanced by the proposed development of 
the subject property. 

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) met to consider the application at 
their March 27, 2017 meeting and voted to recommend approval, finding the 
project consistent with the Downtown Community Redevelopment Plan. The 
Planning Commission subsequently conducted a public hearing on this 
application on April 24, 2017, and recommended approval of the requested 
amendment by the City Council. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 2017-8089, to amend Redevelopment District: RD 
Ordinance No. 2016-8070 governing the property located on the 
northwest corner of 1st Street North and 5th Avenue North. 

2. Approve Findings of Fact, Ordinance No. 2017-8089, dated June 5, 
2017. 



FINDINGS OF FACT 

Ordinance No. 2017-8089 
June 5, 2017 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2017-8089, amending a Redevelopment District: RD 
zoning district within the City, as provided under Chapter 34 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City. 

Pursuant to Article VI, Section 34-2Il(c) of the Land Development Code of the Jacksonville 
Beach Code of Ordinances, the City Council shall consider the adoption of an ordinance enacting 
an amendment to the Zoning Atlas or Code based on only one (1) or more of the following 
factors, provided however, that in no event shall an amendment be approved which will result in 
an adverse community change in which the proposed development is located. 

(1) Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the comprehensive 
plan; 

(2) Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of the 
LDC; 

(3) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is consistent 
with existing and proposed land uses; 

(4) Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that 
require an amendment; 

(5) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in 
demands on public facilities, and whether and the extent to which the 
proposed amendment would exceed the level of service standards 
established for public facilities in the comprehensive plan; 

(6) Whether, and the extent to which, zoning district boundaries are not 
properly drawn on the official zoning atlas; 

(7) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in 
significantly adverse impacts on the natural environment, including, but 
not limited to, water, air, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, 
wetlands, and the natural functioning of the coastal environment; 

(8) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would 
adversely affect the property values in the area; 

(9) Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in 
a logical and orderly development pattern; 

(10) Whether it is impossible to find other lands in the city for the proposed use 
in a zoning district that permits such use as of right. 

- 1 -



Based on a review of the Zoning Amendment application, staff analysis of the information submitted, 
Community Redevelopment Agency review and approval of the amendment on March 27, 2017, a Plan
ning Commission public hearing conducted on April 24, 2017, and a City Council Public Hearing con
ducted on May 15, 2017, the City Council has found that the applicant has fulfilled their burden to show 
that the project should be approved as follows: 

1. The applicant has demonstrated significant experience relative to the development and management 
of, and demand for, residential rental properties through his existing businesses in the city. 

2. Adequate public facilities are available to serve the proposed development. 

3. The proposed permitted residential and commercial uses of the subject property are deemed to be 
consistent with the Downtown Community Redevelopment Plan and the Future Land Use Element 
and Map for the Jacksonville Beach 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

4. The proposed residential and commercial uses for the subject property are consistent with existing 
and potential future land uses in the surrounding neighborhood. 

5. No evidence was presented that demonstrated that the requested amendment to the Redevelopment 
District: RD Ordinance governing the subject property will have an adverse impact on property val
ues in the area. 

-2-



Introduced by: Council Member J eanell Wilson 
1st Reading: May 15, 2017 

2nd Reading: --- --

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-8089 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: RD 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-8070, SUPPLEMENTING THE COMPREHEN
SIVE ZONING REGULATIONS AND PLAN FOR THE CITY OF 
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FLORIDA, AS PROVIDED UNDER 
CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, heretofore 
enacted and established a Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas for said City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the rezoning of certain lands in the City from 
Commercial, limited: C-1 to Redevelopment District: RD on April 18, 2016, establishing a 
Redevelopment District, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2016-8070; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of the subject property desires to modify the development plans 
for the project approved via Ordinance No. 2016-8070; and 

WHEREAS, such modifications require an amendment to Ordinance No. 2016-8070 
governing the subject property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the application to amend Ordinance No. 
2016-8070, all relevant support materials, the staff report, the recommendations of the Community 
Redevelopment Agency and the Planning Commission, and public testimony given at the public 
hearings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSONVILLE 
BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That the City Council has considered the adoption of this ordinance based 
on one or more of the factors listed in Section 34-21 l(c) of the Land Development Code and hereby 
finds that this amendment will not result in an adverse change in the community in which it is 
located. 

SECTION 2. That the Land Development Code and Zoning Atlas previously adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Jacksonville Beach, Florida, be and the same is hereby amended 
and, as amended, shall henceforth read as follows : 

SECTION 3. That Ordinance No. 2016-8070 is hereby amended by replacing the 
Preliminary RD Development Plan and Project Narrative received on January 22, 2016 and 

1 
Ord. No. 2017-8089 



included in Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 2016-8070, with a new Project Narrative dated March 7, 
2017 attached hereto as Exhibit A, and Preliminary RD Development Plan, Site Data Sheet and 
Building Elevation Drawing dated March 23, 2017, attached hereto as Exhibit B to this ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Except as provided herein, all other portions of the Jacksonville Beach Land 
Development Code and Zoning Atlas remain in effect. 

SECTION 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be, and the same 
are, to the extent the same may be in conflict, hereby repealed. 

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect upon its adoption and recordation with the 
Clerk of Circuit Court, Duval County, Florida. 

AUTHENTICATED TIDS DAYOF ________ ,2017. 

William C. Latham, MAYOR 

Laurie Scott, CITY CLERK 

2 
Ord. No. 2017-8089 



Exhibit A, Ord. No. 2017-8089 
( 3 pg.s ) 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING MAP DESIGNATION 

March 7, 2017 

Mixed Use Facility @ ist Street North and 6th Avenue North 

2. An 8 1/2 "x 11" vicinity map identifying the property proposed for amendment: 

See Attached Exhibit #2. 

3. An aerial photograph, less than twelve (12) months old, of the land proposed for amendment, 

with the boundaries clearly marked: 

See Attached Exhibit #3. 

4. For a rezoning, include a narrative description of the proposed amendment to the Zoning Map 

designation and an explanation of why it complies with the standards in the LDC governing a rezoning: 

A. Existing conditions on the property: 

The subject property is bounded on the North by 7th Avenue North; on the East by 1st Street North, on 

the West by 2nd St North, and on the South by 6th Ave North. The site is vacant land. The property is not 

landscaped and has been an eyesore to the surrounding neighborhood for years. 

B. Existing Surrounding Uses: 

The existing surrounding use of this property is single family & commercial to the West; multi-family to 

the North; commercial to the East and the Casa Marina hotel to the Southeast; commercial to the South. 

C. Proposed Mixed-Use Development: 

The owner of the subject property is proposing a six story, mixed use project with approximately 2,500 

sf of commercial space, 54 multi-family units, and a maximum of 57 Hotel Rooms. A pool & deck will be 

located outside on the 3rd floor on the Southside of the structure. 

The subject property has a maximum allowed height of 68'. The allowable height is greater than 35' due 

to the negotiated settlement with the previous owner and the City of Jacksonville Bch. The site plan 

attached herein contemplates a building height of 65'. 

Parking spaces will be located on the ground level and the 2nd level. 

D. Consistency w/ the Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan: 

General Objectives: 

Aids in elimination of "Blight" conditions created by the vacant parcel. 

1 



Exhibit A (cont.) 

Augments the growth of the vibrant Mixed-Use residential/commercial community that has developed 

in the downtown "core" district during the last several years. 

The creation of an attractive exterior design to encourage standards of high quality for future 

redevelopment in the area. 

The addition of residents to help make the overall neighborhood safer and provide patrons to the 

nearby businesses. It will also provide an increased tax base, foster the growing mixed-use community, 

generate a hub of activity in the neighborhood, and turn a long-standing eyesore into an attractive 

mixed-use community in the downtown core area. 

The current owner has completed development of a mixed use building in the block to the North, and 2 
apartment buildings each containing 22 residential units on 9th Ave S, and 2nd Ave S. 

The owner has received numerous inquiries from prospects about renting the fully appointed units at 

these projects on a short term basis. There is demand for fully appointed units that are available for a 

term less than 7 months. 

The Hotel units will provide temporary housing with the conveniences of home for the existing visitor 

traffic to sporting events, health care clinics, military temporary duty assignments, corporate 

relocations, and colleges and universities in the area. 

The development follows already established street and utility patterns. 

The new proposed development promotes pedestrian activity through improved paving and an 

appropriately scaled building which will be compatible with the current downtown environment. 

E. Consistency w/ the LDC applicable to RD District designation: 

The proposed project maintains consistency with the objectives of the Redevelopment District 

designation, the major elements of which, are shown below and represent key components of the 

zoning code. 

The proposed development is appropriate to the Jacksonville Beach Community Redevelopment Plan 

and is compatible with the surrounding uses. Furthermore, it does not propose one of the specifically 

prohibited uses listed in LDC Sec 34-347 (c)(3)i. 

It is consistent with the Future Land Use Map Designation and C-1 Zoning designation of the subject 

property, and is also consistent with the CBD district site design and lot layout standards. 

The proposed zoning will be RD (Redevelopment District), Downtown Sub district and is consistent with 

all the permitted uses. 

The structure will be 65' which will consist of 2 levels of parking, 4 levels of multi-family and hotel space, 

and commercial space on the ground level. 2' of side yard setback has been provided for each foot in 

excess of 35' as required by the LDC. The minimum side yard requirement for the project is 60', the 

current site plan provides a minimum side yard of 65' of total side yard. 

The Hotel Units would be restricted to hotel use only via a document acceptable to the City and the 
Owner, executed by the owner to run in perpetuity with the property. 

2 



Exhibit A (cont.) 

Any signage related to the new development will be consistent with the Jacksonville Beach Community 

Redevelopment Plan and standards of LDC Article VIII, Division 4. 

Civil Engineer: 

Kimley Horn & Associates 

Joe Mecca & Brian Deitsch 

12740 Gran Bay Parkway West, Suite 2350 

Jacksonville, FL 32258 

904-828-3900 

Architect: 

Humphreys & Partners 

Dallas, TX 

Attorney: 

Balch & Bingham 

Steve Greenhut 

841 Prudential Dr, Suite 1400 

Jacksonville, FL 

904-348-6855 

3 



O'I 
co 
0 
co U) 

I . 
[' tJ'l 
r-1 0.. 
0 
N '<:I' 

........ 
0 z . 
'O 

1,..1 
0 

... 
,:0 

.l,J 
•r-i 
.0 
·r-i 
.c: 
>< 
~ 

' ' ; 
\ 

.,,,~ I l ,......__ __ ~. ' I 

' .:· 
··., -~ .;. ~--:..· , .... ---·-·------------· -·---

• \ ,'\ I /• 
'J// ~_,,,,- '=-· -· 

,.,-:r;;. 
f' , 

!<-. i 
I' -,_ 

3 olf cart·~ 

0--

·. 

~l 
~ :.:.': 

N 
SCALE: 1' = 40' - o· (24'x36' SHEET) 

@ O' 40' 80' 160' 

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, L. P. 
5339 Alpha Rd , Solle 300, Callas, TX 75240 I 972 701 9636 1 WWW tunphrey, com 

---1! 

--~---µ 

·" 
' 

:1 
~ ! 

' .. "' .. ·-··~· ,;. .......... - ... ,. ... . . .. ' ... . 

L___------Q-~~~~~ 

I i ..__,, u 

'--.._ 
ote 

· ·-· --·-·toboy -···- --
1683 sf 

DOLPHIN DEPOT, LLC 

L) 

1 

LJ 

.. ~ 
~ . 

Retail 
.---+-, 2500 sf 

·, '-. 

1st - floor 

Preliminary RD Development Plan 
March 23, 2017 

7 

o _ _ _ 

bike area 

I '= 
\ I 
\:~ 

•-u-c 

A-202 

DOLPHIN DEPOT 
Jadtsonvllle Beach. FL 

HPA# 16601 



-. 
.i.J 
C: 
0 
u -
Ill 

.i.J 
•..-l 
.0 
•..-l 
.c 
>< 
riJ 

N SCALE: 1" = 40' - o· (24"~36" SHEET) 

@ o· 40' 80' 160' 

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, L.P . 
5339 Alpha Rd , St.Ille 300 Oalas, TX 75240 I 972 701 9636 I www hurTl)hreys com 

TABULATION: 
6 STORY 

TOTAL SITE AREA: 1.36 ACRES 

LOT COVERAGE RATIO: 

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 1.25 ACRES (92%) 
PERVIOUS AREA: 0.11 ACRES (8%) 

RETAIL : 2500 SQ.FT 
CLUB HOUSE : 3734 SQ.FT 

TOTAL NO.OF UNITS APARTMENTS : 54 UNITS ( 980 SF AVG) 50% 1BR/1BA - 50% 2BR/2BA 

TOTAL NO OF ROOMS HOTEL : 57 UNITS 
32 UNITS - 450 SF AVG 
25 UNITS - 550 SF AVG 

TOTAL : 111 UNITS 

PARKING: 

ONSITE: 
1 ST LEVEL PARKING 
INSIDE BLDG. 69 
OUTSIDE BLDG. 26 

2ND LEVEL PARKING 98 

TOTAL PARKING PODIUM 167 
TOTAL PARKING 193 SPACES (including 8 HC spaces) 
REQUIRED 188 SPACES 

Calculation parking spaces required: 
Apartments 54x2=108 spaces 
50 Hotel Units 50x1 .25=63 spaces 
7 Hotel Units 7x1=7 spaces 
2500 sf retail 2500/250=10 spaces 
Total 188 spaces 

OFF SITE STREET PARKING :25 SPACES 

DOLPHIN DEPOT, LLC 

SIDE YARD SETBACK 

NORTH PORTION OF BUILDING: 

EAST SIDE YARD: 6' 
WEST SIDE YARD: 59' 
TOTAL: 65' 

SOUTH PORTION OF BUILDING: 
EAST SIDE YARD: 6' 
WEST SIDE YARD: 60' 
TOTAL 66' 

ARCHITECTURAL SITEPLAN 
SCHEME 07 

March 23, 2017 

A-201 

DOLPHIN DEPOT 
Jaci<soffl ... Beach FL 

HPA# 16601 

., ...... . ,, ,, _, , ....... ' ······ ., , , ,., . ... . 

N 



.µ 
C: 
0 
CJ 

o:i 

.µ ..... 

.0 ..... 

..c:: 
~ 
w 

, - m _ch:::::,:: ..... : I -~~~!I hall 

•I' 
13 

-~ 

, i ! i 89"58':;:::) I I I I \ L_:; t I \ l \ z±:::; t I\ t i I I I I ! ,( L.,'....l i 

k ~ , ~~ ., M~"-~ = '"--=' r ==· 

:'9nat MlORANT I 
'L.fnW4TtR VALVES 

/ii 

;,/ 
\ '--=; . /', / --< ~ - V ~ - -~- -~-

\, "' "' ~ "" "' . ~ ·' \ ~ ""· "· "' "" . "" '\. ' ' "x- ' - ' . ' ~ ~ ' '\. ' ' 

sruccop.1ETAL rwooDTONE r srucco r cur STONE 
AWNING I SIDING 

SIDING r CLOTH AWNING 

... 

r 
"' 

SOUTH ELEVATION 

STUCCO 

,~- I / 
·o / 

JACKSCN"1LU WA Ti!, / 
WORKS MANHOI.£ ~)// "" 

~- ~--

"" "'--- 14 WA l'ER VALVE 

SIDING r srucco rwooDTONE 
SIDING 

A-204 

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, L.P. DOLPHIN DEPOT, LLC SOUTH ELEVATION DOLPHIN DEPOT 
5339 Alpha Rd S1J1le 300, Dalal, rx 75240 I 972 701 9636 I #W'# ~ reys com March 23 2017 

Jacksonvlle Beach. Fl. 
HPA# 16601 

' .. .. ' 

("t") 



.l,J 

C: 
0 
u ....... 

'1l 

.l,J 
·r-1 
..0 
•r-t 
..c: 
~ 
r,] 

.,,/ ~ 

~ 
a, 
Q. e 
Q. 
! 

1 
Provided ,.,._,, 

( 60' required ) 

cc 
"t3 _g 
G) 
U> i 

' ·~·Jl 

~ 

Apartments 

Apartments 

Apartments 

Apartment! 

Parking Garage, 

Parking Garage 

(I) 
C: __," 
,= 
>. 
t:: 
(I) 
Q. 

e ~ 
Q. 

I 

16'Pn vid 

ftcs· leq1 
! 

ed 

,red) 

~ 


	ADPC16D.tmp
	OPENING CEREMONIES:
	Council Member Wilson gave the invocation, followed by the salute to the flag.
	CALL TO ORDER:
	ROLL CALL:
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	ADPF664.tmp
	The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M.
	UPurpose of Briefing
	The purpose of the briefing is to update the Council Members on projects and discuss the Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan.
	UCity Manager
	UPublic Works -
	Mr. Forbes stated that an application is required to lease the bandwidth for the new water meter reading program that uses radio communications. Ty Edwards, Public Works Director, explained the application required the Council Members to verify citize...
	UDune Restoration -
	Mr. Forbes announced that at the dune renourishment update meeting held on Thursday, May 11, 2017, it was reported that the contract between the Army Corps of Engineers and the Great Lakes Dredge and Dock Company would be signed on Friday, May 12, 201...
	UBoard Appointments -
	Mr. Forbes informed the Council that Board appointments would be on the June 5, 2017, meeting agenda. He advised there were two appointments to be made to the Planning Commission and two appointments to be made to the Community Redevelopment Agency.
	UShade Meeting -
	City Attorney Susan Erdelyi stated that there needed to be a shade meeting held to discuss litigation strategy and expenditures regarding the current lawsuit between the City of Jacksonville and Las Olas Development, LLC. It was decided that the shade...
	ULive Streaming -
	Mr. Forbes announced that live streaming of the Council meetings has begun on YouTube.
	UFour Brothers Lease -
	Mr. Forbes advised the Council that the Four Brothers Incorporated of Jacksonville lease at the Golf Course would be on the June 5, 2017, agenda. Four Brothers operates the restaurant at the Golf Course.
	UOutdoor Seating –
	Mr. Forbes reported that if the Low Volume Noise Ordinance is adopted, he will go to the Planning Commission to change the Ordinance to allow outdoor seating as a permitted use rather than a conditional use for establishments that are 200 square feet ...
	UDix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan Update
	Bill Mann, Planning and Development Director, updated the Council on the progress of the Downtown Action Plan. He stated the first phase of the contract with Dix.Hite+Partners, which was to produce the Implementation and Management Plan of the Downtow...
	Mr. Mann and the Council reviewed the Statement of Probable Costs. He stated he was looking for guidance while breaking out the different components and potential steps forward.
	UPier EntryU -
	The Council reviewed the overall Pier Entry concept design. The design depicts a large lifeguard chair at the entrance of the pier. It was also discussed that an archway feature had been designed for the Pier Entry, and it was shown on the wayfinding ...
	Mr. Vogelsang stated that the chair could be utilized as a potential archway. Mr. Mann explained that could be decided at the preconstruction design phase.
	Mr. Doherty suggested continuing using the surfboard theme.
	Mr. Mann stated that based upon Council feedback, the City would ask for an additional design concept to be produced for the Pier Entry area to have something to compare the first design with. He added Phase 1 would remain open for the additional work...
	UWayfinding and SignageU -
	Mr. Mann stated that the wayfinding signage component using the surf-related theme would be moved to Phase 2 with Council approval.
	USite Furnishings U-
	Site furnishings, which include some type of low wall seating surrounding existing Palm tree planter areas and free-standing cast stone benches, would be forwarded to Phase 2 of the project.
	UBicycle ParkingU -
	The new bicycle rack locations were discussed. Mr. Mann stated that in the high-volume areas, basic bicycle racks would be used. In other areas, there would be more artistic bicycle racks installed. This component would be moved to Phase 2.
	UProposed Lighting PlanU -
	Mr. Vogelsang inquired about more lighting on the Boardwalk, which would encourage more people to utilize it. Mr. Mann suggested installing a single railing along the Oceanfront to give protection to the ground-level lighting that is contemplated. The...
	UPublic ArtU -
	Mr. Mann stated that Dix.Hite has identified opportunities and locations for the display of public art. Existing blank wall spaces, the roundabout at 2PndP Avenue and the Pier Entryway are all areas that could be used. It was agreed to move forward th...
	UBrandingU -
	Mr. Mann explained that the logos were presented at the workshop held on December 5, 2016. One depicted the City’s lifeguard chair and said “Relax in Jax” which seemed to promote the City of Jacksonville. The “Jax Beach” logo appeared to be well-recei...
	ULatham PlazaU  -
	Mr. Mann reminded the Council that this design was a result of public input as well as Council input. Dix.Hite came up with the redesign of the plaza to maximum attraction and appeal to families while still maintaining flexibility for large events.
	Mr. Thomason asked what problem were they trying to solve as he supports Latham Plaza as it is designed now. Mr. Mann answered that the plaza is underutilized. He further stated that he felt the terraced seating at the south end of the Seawalk Pavilio...
	Greg Bryla, with Dix.Hite+Partners, stated that there are many components to the redesign of Latham Plaza. He explained that the plaza is closed off from everything that is around it. He added that it was redesigned to improve access from the edges. M...
	Mr. Forbes suggested this design be looked at further before moving to Phase 2.
	The briefing adjourned at 6:48 P.M.
	Submitted by:  Catherine Ponson
	Assistant City Clerk
	Approval:

	CC 170515 Briefing mins.pdf
	The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M.
	Purpose of Briefing
	The purpose of the briefing is to update the Council Members on projects and discuss the Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan.
	City Manager
	Public Works -
	Mr. Forbes stated that an application is required to lease the bandwidth for the new water meter reading program that uses radio communications. Ty Edwards, Public Works Director, explained the application requires the Council Members to verify citize...
	Dune Restoration -
	Mr. Forbes announced that at the dune renourishment update meeting held on Thursday, May 11, 2017, it was reported that the contract between the Army Corps of Engineers and the Great Lakes Dredge and Dock Company would be signed on Friday, May 12, 201...
	Board Appointments -
	Mr. Forbes informed the Council that Board appointments would be on the June 5, 2017, meeting agenda. He advised there were two appointments to be made to the Planning Commission and two appointments to be made to the Community Redevelopment Agency.
	Shade Meeting -
	City Attorney Susan Erdelyi stated that there needed to be a shade meeting held to discuss litigation strategy and expenditures regarding the current lawsuit between the City of Jacksonville Beach and Las Olas Development, LLC. It was decided that the...
	Live Streaming -
	Mr. Forbes announced that live streaming of the Council meetings has begun on YouTube.
	Four Brothers Lease -
	Mr. Forbes advised the Council that the Four Brothers Incorporated of Jacksonville lease at the Golf Course would be on the June 5, 2017, agenda. Four Brothers operates the restaurant at the Golf Course.
	Outdoor Seating –
	Mr. Forbes reported that if the Low Volume Noise Ordinance is adopted, he will go to the Planning Commission to change the Ordinance to allow outdoor seating as a permitted use rather than a conditional use for establishments that are 200 square feet ...
	Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan Update
	Bill Mann, Planning and Development Director, updated the Council on the progress of the Downtown Action Plan. He stated the first phase of the contract with Dix.Hite+Partners, which was to produce the Implementation and Management Plan of the Downtow...
	Mr. Mann and the Council reviewed the Statement of Probable Costs. He stated he was looking for guidance while breaking out the different components and potential steps forward.
	Pier Entry -
	The Council reviewed the overall Pier Entry concept design. The design depicts a large lifeguard chair at the entrance of the pier. It was also discussed that an archway feature had been designed for the Pier Entry, and it was shown on the wayfinding ...
	Mr. Vogelsang stated that the chair could be utilized as a potential archway. Mr. Mann explained that could be decided at the preconstruction design phase.
	Mr. Doherty suggested continuing using the surfboard theme.
	Mr. Mann stated that based upon Council feedback, the City would ask for an additional design concept to be produced for the Pier Entry area to have something to compare the first design with. He added Phase 1 would remain open for the additional work...
	Wayfinding and Signage -
	Mr. Mann stated that the wayfinding signage component using the surf-related theme would be moved to Phase 2 with Council approval.
	Site Furnishings -
	Site furnishings, which include some type of low wall seating surrounding existing Palm tree planter areas and free-standing cast stone benches, would be forwarded to Phase 2 of the project.
	Bicycle Parking -
	The new bicycle rack locations were discussed. Mr. Mann stated that in the high-volume areas, basic bicycle racks would be used. In other areas, there would be more artistic bicycle racks installed. This component would be moved to Phase 2.
	Proposed Lighting Plan -
	Mr. Vogelsang inquired about more lighting on the Boardwalk, which would encourage more people to utilize it. Mr. Mann suggested installing a single railing along the Oceanfront to give protection to the ground-level lighting that is contemplated. The...
	Public Art -
	Mr. Mann stated that Dix.Hite has identified opportunities and locations for the display of public art. Existing blank wall spaces, the roundabout at 2nd Avenue and the Pier Entryway are all areas that could be used. It was agreed to move forward the ...
	Branding -
	Mr. Mann explained that the logos were presented at the workshop held on December 5, 2016. One depicted the City’s lifeguard chair and said “Relax in Jax” which seemed to promote the City of Jacksonville. The “Jax Beach” logo appeared to be well-recei...
	Latham Plaza  -
	Mr. Mann reminded the Council that this design was a result of public input as well as Council input. Dix.Hite came up with the redesign of the plaza to maximum attraction and appeal to families while still maintaining flexibility for large events.
	Mr. Thomason asked what problem were they trying to solve as he supports Latham Plaza as it is designed now. Mr. Mann answered that the plaza is underutilized. He further stated that he felt the terraced seating at the south end of the Seawalk Pavilio...
	Greg Bryla, with Dix.Hite+Partners, stated that there are many components to the redesign of Latham Plaza. He explained that the plaza is closed off from everything that is around it. He added that it was redesigned to improve access from the edges. M...
	Mr. Forbes suggested this design be looked at further before moving to Phase 2.
	The briefing adjourned at 6:48 P.M.
	Submitted by:  Catherine Ponson
	Assistant City Clerk
	Approval:

	CC 170515 mins draft.pdf
	OPENING CEREMONIES:
	Council Member Wilson gave the invocation, followed by the salute to the flag.
	CALL TO ORDER:
	ROLL CALL:
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	CC 170515 Briefing mins.pdf
	The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M.
	Purpose of Briefing
	The purpose of the briefing is to update the Council Members on projects and discuss the Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan.
	City Manager
	Public Works -
	Mr. Forbes stated that an application is required to lease the bandwidth for the new water meter reading program that uses radio communications. Ty Edwards, Public Works Director, explained the application requires the Council Members to verify citize...
	Dune Restoration -
	Mr. Forbes announced that at the dune renourishment update meeting held on Thursday, May 11, 2017, it was reported that the contract between the Army Corps of Engineers and the Great Lakes Dredge and Dock Company would be signed on Friday, May 12, 201...
	Board Appointments -
	Mr. Forbes informed the Council that Board appointments would be on the June 5, 2017, meeting agenda. He advised there were two appointments to be made to the Planning Commission, two appointments to be made to the Community Redevelopment Agency, and ...
	Shade Meeting -
	City Attorney Susan Erdelyi stated that there needed to be a shade meeting held to discuss litigation strategy and expenditures regarding the current lawsuit between the City of Jacksonville Beach and Las Olas Development, LLC. It was decided that the...
	Live Streaming -
	Mr. Forbes announced that live streaming of the Council meetings has begun on YouTube.
	Four Brothers Lease -
	Mr. Forbes advised the Council that the Four Brothers Incorporated of Jacksonville lease at the Golf Course would be on the June 5, 2017, agenda. Four Brothers operates the restaurant at the Golf Course.
	Outdoor Seating –
	Mr. Forbes reported that if the Low Volume Noise Ordinance is adopted, he will go to the Planning Commission to change the Ordinance to allow outdoor seating as a permitted use rather than a conditional use for establishments that are 200 square feet ...
	Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan Update
	Bill Mann, Planning and Development Director, updated the Council on the progress of the Downtown Action Plan. He stated the first phase of the contract with Dix.Hite+Partners, which was to produce the Implementation and Management Plan of the Downtow...
	Mr. Mann and the Council reviewed the Statement of Probable Costs. He stated he was looking for guidance while breaking out the different components and potential steps forward.
	Pier Entry -
	The Council reviewed the overall Pier Entry concept design. The design depicts a large lifeguard chair at the entrance of the pier. It was also discussed that an archway feature had been designed for the Pier Entry, and it was shown on the wayfinding ...
	Mr. Vogelsang stated that the chair could be utilized as a potential archway. Mr. Mann explained that could be decided at the preconstruction design phase.
	Mr. Doherty suggested continuing using the surfboard theme.
	Mr. Mann stated that based upon Council feedback, the City would ask for an additional design concept to be produced for the Pier Entry area to have something to compare the first design with. He added Phase 1 would remain open for the additional work...
	Wayfinding and Signage -
	Mr. Mann stated that the wayfinding signage component using the surf-related theme would be moved to Phase 2 with Council approval.
	Site Furnishings -
	Site furnishings, which include some type of low wall seating surrounding existing Palm tree planter areas and free-standing cast stone benches, would be forwarded to Phase 2 of the project.
	Bicycle Parking -
	The new bicycle rack locations were discussed. Mr. Mann stated that in the high-volume areas, basic bicycle racks would be used. In other areas, there would be more artistic bicycle racks installed. This component would be moved to Phase 2.
	Proposed Lighting Plan -
	Mr. Vogelsang inquired about more lighting on the Boardwalk, which would encourage more people to utilize it. Mr. Mann suggested installing a single railing along the Oceanfront to give protection to the ground-level lighting that is contemplated. The...
	Public Art -
	Mr. Mann stated that Dix.Hite has identified opportunities and locations for the display of public art. Existing blank wall spaces, the roundabout at 2nd Avenue and the Pier Entryway are all areas that could be used. It was agreed to move forward the ...
	Branding -
	Mr. Mann explained that the logos were presented at the workshop held on December 5, 2016. One depicted the City’s lifeguard chair and said “Relax in Jax” which seemed to promote the City of Jacksonville. The “Jax Beach” logo appeared to be well-recei...
	Latham Plaza  -
	Mr. Mann reminded the Council that this design was a result of public input as well as Council input. Dix.Hite came up with the redesign of the plaza to maximum attraction and appeal to families while still maintaining flexibility for large events.
	Mr. Thomason asked what problem were they trying to solve as he supports Latham Plaza as it is designed now. Mr. Mann answered that the plaza is underutilized. He further stated that he felt the terraced seating at the south end of the Seawalk Pavilio...
	Greg Bryla, with Dix.Hite+Partners, stated that there are many components to the redesign of Latham Plaza. He explained that the plaza is closed off from everything that is around it. He added that it was redesigned to improve access from the edges. M...
	Mr. Forbes suggested this design be looked at further before moving to Phase 2.
	The briefing adjourned at 6:48 P.M.
	Submitted by:  Catherine Ponson
	Assistant City Clerk
	Approval:




